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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Mistral Solutions Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Mistral Solutions Private Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changesb in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date. ’

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obfained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or erTor.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
2 whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatemnents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
| whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of interna! control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in piace and the operating effectiveness of such
controls. : '

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
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or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material unlcertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to

cease to continue as a going concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
intcrnal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023, included in these
standalone financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an .
nnmaditied opinion on those stalements on May 21, 2023.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

[. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Cenlral
Government of India in terms of Sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specilied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on -record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been paid/
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

(b)

0

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone financial statements — Refer note 32 to the standalone financial statements;

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
stundard for material foresccable [osses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts - Refer notes 17 and 39 to the standalone financial statements;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 12 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been
advanccd or loancd or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entily, including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 42 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
belicve that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any materal
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.
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vi.

The Company has used two accounting software’s for maintaining its books of account.
With respect to one accounting !software, the Company has migrated to an upgraded
version of accounting software from legacy accounting software during the year effective
from June 19, 2023. Based on our examination which included test checks, the accounting
software used has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except
in respect of legacy accounting software where audit trail feature was not enabled, as
described in note 45 to the standalone financial statements. Further, during the course of
our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with,
in respect of upgraded version of the accounting software.

As further described in note 45 to the standalone financial statements, based on our
examination which included test checks, the audit trail feature is not enabled for
accounting software used for inventory management. Consequently, we are unable to
comment on audit trail feature of the aforesaid accounting software.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Place of Signature: Bengaluru
Date: May 08, 2024
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Mistral Solutions Private Limited (“the Company’)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

(i)  (a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

(b

(©

(dy

(e)

(i (@

(b)

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles

assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the Management during

the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company
and accordinply, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use
assets) or intangibie assets during the year ended March 31, 2024.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the Management during the year except
for inventories lying with third parties. In our opinion, the frequency of verification by
the Management is reasonable and the coverage and procedure for such verification is
appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were
not noticed. Inventories lying with third parties have been confirmed by them as at March
31, 2024 and no discrepancies were noticed in respect of such confirmations.

As disclosed in note 13 to the standalone financial statements, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks
during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the
records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the financial statements, the
quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with
the books of accounts of the Company. The Company do not have sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from financial institutions during
the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.
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(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(2)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

During the year the Company has not provided advances in the nature of loans to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other party. Further, during the
year the Company has granted loan, provided security and stood guarantee to its Holding
Company as follows:

Loans (INR in Guarantee/
lakhs) Security (INR
in lakhs)

Aggregate amount granted during the year '

- Holding Company ' 3,200 21,000
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet
date in respect of above case

- Holding Company 3,200 10,500

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans,
stood guarantee and provided security to any subsidiaries and associate.

During the year, the Company has not provided advances in the nature of loans to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Further, during the
year the guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of
all loans, guarantees provided and securities given to the Holding Company is not
prejudicial to the Company's interest.

The Company has granted loan during the year to its Holding Company where the
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. The loan
and interest were not due as at the year end.

There are no amounts of loans or advances in the nature of [oans granted to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more
than ninety days.

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties which had fallen due during the year.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of Sections
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the
Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to
the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture of goods and
services provided by it and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and
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(vil) (a)

()

(viii)

(x) (a)

(b)
(c)
(d)

(e)

(f)

records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the same.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to
the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed
by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding,
at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory
dues that have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name Nature of Amount Amount Period to Forum where
of the | the dues (INR in paid which the the dispute is
statute lakhs) under amount pending
protest relates
(INR in
lakhs)
The Income Tax 638.79 492.80 | Financial Commissioner
Income Year 2011~ of Income
Tax 12, Financial | Tax (Appeals)
Act, Year 2015-
1961 ' 16 to
Financial
Year 2017-
18

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded
in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as
income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings or interest thereon due
to any lender during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause ix(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority. '

The Company did not have any term loan outstanding during the year hence, the
requirement to report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence, the requirement to report on
clause (ix){(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the.
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries or associate.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company. :
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(b)
(xi) (a)
(b)
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(xii)
(xiii)
(xiv) (a)
(b)
(xv)
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The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has complied with provisions of Sections 42 and 62 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of private placement of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
during the year. The Company has not made any private placement of fully or partly
convertible debentures or preferential allotment of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. As informed by the Management, the funds raised has not
been utilised till the year end and has been kept in a separate bank account.

No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

During the year, no report under Sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) to (c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes
to standalone financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

There is no Core Investment Co}npany as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current and immediately preceding
financial year.

The previous statutory auditors of the Company have resigned during the year and we
have taken into consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing
auditors.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 41 to the standalone financial

statements, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Compary as and when they fall due.

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has spent
the required amount during the year towards corporate social responsibility. Accordingly,
there are no unspent amounts to be transferred to special account in compliance with
provisions of Sub-section (5) and Sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013. This matter has been disclosed in note 34 to the standalone financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Fi

rgiﬁstration Number; 101049W/E300004

Place of Signature: Bengaluru
Date: May 08, 2024
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT !AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MISTRAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE
LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
Mistral Solutions Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls |
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“"ICAI”).

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its

business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention |
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the |
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAIL Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these
standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
included- obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements. :

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Standalone Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
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preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of Management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Standalone Financial
Statements '

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per SupiNGaggar

Partner

MembershipWNumber: 104315
UDIN: 241043 15BKEXHL7821

Place of Signature: Bengaluru
Date; May 08, 2024

O




Mistra] Solutions Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

€IN: UT2200KAI999PTCO25232
{All amounts in Rs. lakhs, untess otherwise stated)

As at Asat
Notes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 1,036,92 867.06
Intangible assets 5 231.85 154,12
Ripht-of-use assets 31 1,395.70 437.41
Financial asscts
Investments 6 922.16 960,39
Loans 7 3,260.00 -
Other financial assets 8 - 737.34 221.03
Deferred tax assets (net) 29 133.01 120.03
Non-current tax asset (net) 9 181.76 182.43
Other non-current assets 10 1.20 6.03
- 7,839.94 2,948.50
Current assels
Inventories il 6,532.36 6,085.96
Financial assets
Investments 6 2,783.94 2,453.21
Trade receivables 12 6,996.15 5,327.10
Cash and cash equivalent 13 1,199.17 1,222.68
Bank balances ether than cash and cash equivalent 14 597.63 1,446.63
Other financial assets 8 777.83 691.35
QOther current assets 10 4,523.80 5,747,717
23,410.88 22,974.70
Total assets 31,250.82 25,923.20
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 15 203.39 203.39
Instruments entirely equity in natore 15 6,04 1.90
Other equity 16 20,851,76 16,359.92
Total equity 21,061.19 16,565.21
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 31 1,040.15 169.26
Provisions 17 145.69 126.63
1,185.84 . 205,89
Current [iabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 31 364.05 297.95
Trzde payables 18
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 77.72 135.84
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro eaterprises and 2,593.22 2,464.23
small enterprises
Other financial lisbilities 19 T11.77 1,066.34
Other current liabilities 20 3,642.49 3,786.86
Provisions 17 1,068,87 1,021.92
Current tax [iabilities (net) 545.67 288.06
9,003.79 9,062.10
Total liabilities 10,189.63 9,357.99
Total equity and liabilities 31,250.82 25,923.20

The accompanying netes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements.

As per our report of cven date

for 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number; 101049W/E300004
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Chief Executive Officer and Director
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Director
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Mistral Solutions Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

CIN: U72200KAI1999PTC025232
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from contracts with cusiomers 21 31,473.10 27,012.00
Other income ) 22 565.26 244.53
Total income 32,038.36 27,256.53
Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumed 23 13,102.81 10,018.65
Purchase of traded goods ' 2,078.43 3,205.57
Decreasef(increase) in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods 24 56.94 (204.00)
Employee benefits expense 25 8,654.15 8,247.09
Finance cosls 26 97.68 78.29
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 759.61 678.13
Other expenses 28 1,996.32 1,919.81
Total expense ! 26,745.94 23,943.54
Profit before tax ’ . 5,292.42 3312.99
Income tax expense
Current tax 29 1,360.11 1,168.76
Deferred tax credit 29 (3.29) (31.09)
_1,351.82 1,137.72
Profit for the year ' 3,940.60 2,175.27
ther comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans (18.63) (147
Income tax effect 4.69 0.37
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods (13.94) (1.10)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (13.94) (1.10)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 3,926.66 2,174.17
Earnings per share
Basic (Rs. 5 per share), computed on the basis of profit for the year 30 94.66 5393
Diluted (Rs. 5 per share), computed on the basis of profit for the year 30 94.66 53.93
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalene Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date
for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Mistral Solutions Private Limited
Firm registration number: [01049W/E300004 CIN: U72200KA1999PTC025232
'_f P Lt
SupthGaggar Mujahid Ala Rajeev Ramachandra
Chief Executive Officer and Director Director

DIN: 02651595

. Place: Los Angeles, USA
ay 2024 Date: 08 May 2024

DIN: 00178796

Place: Phoenix, USA
Date: 08 May 2024




Mistral Solutions Private Limited

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: U72200KA1999PTCO025232

(Al amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 March 2024

n. Equity Share Capital |
! Equity shares
Equity shares of Rs. 5 each issued, subscribed and fully paid Number
1 in lakhs Amount
As at 1 April 2023 40,68 203.39
Add: Issued and subscribed during the year - R
As at 31 March 2024 40.68 203.39
b. Instruments entirely equity in nature
: . R . . Number
i) Series B preference shares of Rs. § each issued, subscribed and fully paid : in lakhs Amount
As at 1 April 2023 038 1.90
Add: Issued and subscribed during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 0.38 1.90
if) Series C hares of Rs. 5 each issued, subscribed and partly paid Number
it) Series C preference shares e . 5 each issued, subseribed and partly pai in lakhs Amount
As at 1 April 2023 - -
Add: Issued and subscribed during the year (partly paid-up, Rs. 1 each paid-up) (Note; 15) . 4,14 4.14
As at 31 March 2024 . 4.14 4.14
Total instruments entirely equity in nature 4.52 6.04
For the year ended 31 March 2023
8. Equity Share Capital.
Equity shares
Equity shares of Rs. 5 each issued, subscribed and fully paid Number
in Jakhs Amount
As at 1 April 2022 38.05 1%0.27
Add: Issued and subscribed during the year* (Note: 15) - 2.63 13.12
As at 31 March 2023 40.68 203.39

* During the previous year ended 31 March 2023, the Company zllotted 262,500 equity shares of Rs. § each aggregating Rs. 13.12 lakhs, consequent to the exercise of stock options
by employees of the Company under the “Mistral Solutions Private Limited Employee Stock Option Plan 2010™.

b, Instruments cntirely equity in nature

i) Series B preference shares of Rs. 5 each issued, subscribed and fully paid Ij:::::: Amount
Asat ] Aprii 2022 0.38 1.90
Add: Issued and subscribed during the year . -
As at 31 March 2023 0.38 1.90
ii) Series C preference shares of Rs. Nil each issued, subscribed and partly paid Number

in lakhs Amount
Asat ] April 2022 - -
Add: Issued and subseribed during the year . .
As at 31 March 2023 - ~
Total instruments entirely equity in nature 0.38 1.90

This space bas been intentionally left blank,




Mistral Solutions Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
CIN: U72200KA1999PTC025232

{All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless othenvise stated)

¢, Other Equity (refer note 16)
For the year ended 31 March 2024

Reserves and surplus

Securities Sharc based  Equity contribution by preference Capital Capital General Retalned
premium payment reserve and equity share holders on redemption reserve reserve carnings Total
relinquishment of rights reserve
As at 1 April 2023 1,193.70 - ' 241,65 4573 1,414.44 5530 12,709.10 16,359.92
Profit for the year ] - - - - - - 3,940.60 3,940.60
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans, net of tax - - - - - - (13.94) (13.94)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 3,926.67 3,926.67
Opfion premium on fair valuation of derivative (refer note 39) - - - - - - 565.18 565.18
As al 31 March 2024 1,193.70 - 541.65 45.73 1,414.44 55.30 17,200.94 20,851.76
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Reserves and surplus
Securities Share based  Equity contribution by preference Capital Capital General Retained Total
premium payment reserve and equity share helders on redemption reserve reserve earninpgs
relinguishment of rights reserve )
Asat 1 April 2022 838.19 470.28 941,65 4573 - 55.30 11,390.02 13,791.17
Profit for the year - - - - - - 2,17527 2,175.27
Re-measurement losses in defined benefit plans, net of tax - - - - - - (1.10) (1.10)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 2,174.17 2,174,17
Share based payments to employees (refer note 25 and 38) - 403,14 - - 556.62 - (289.91) 669.85
Transfer from share based payment reserve (refer note 38) 305.51 (873.42) . - 857.82 - - 289.91
Option premium on fair valuation of derivative (refer note 39) - - - - - - (565.18) (565.18)
As at 31 March 2023 1,193.70 - 941.65 45.73 1,414.44 55.30 12,709.10 16,359,92
‘The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date
for 8.k Batliboi & Associates LLP for and on behalf of te Board of Direstors of
Chartered Accountants . Mistral Solutions Private Limited
Firm registration number; 101049W/E300004 CIN: U72200KA199976025232
\ \ - K — s T
3 Mujahid Aldm Rajeev Ramachandra
Chief Executive Officer and Directar Director
DIN: 02651595 DIN: 00178796
Place: Los Angeles, URA Place: Phoenix, USA

Datg: 03 May 2024 Date: 08 May 2024




Mistra) Solutions Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024

€IN:; U72200KA1999PTC025232 : \
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year eaded Year ended

Notes 31March2026 31 March 2023

Operating activities
Profit before tax 5,292.42 3,312.99
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses _ 27 759.61 67813
Share based payments to employees 25 - 403.14 |
Payment by Holding Company for cancellation of ESOPs promised but not granted - 556.62 |
Option premium on fair valuation of derivative 565.18 (565.18) |
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss (net) 22 {96.51) (47.34)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment . 28 3.65 237
Provision no longer required, written back 22 (2.12) -
Provision for doubtful debis 28 307 15,79
Provision for warranties, foreseeable loss on contracts and others (net of reversals) 28 - 19.37
Advances written off 28 - 0.40
Net foreign exchange differences (unrealised) 0.55 (4.73)
Dividend income 22 {15.68) -
Finance income ' 22 (340.08) (138.81)
Finance costs 26 97.68 78.29
6,267.77 4,311.04
Working capital adjustments: . .
(Increase) in inventories (446.40) (1,426.15)
(Increase) in trade receivables (1,679.97) (525.82)
Decrease/(increase) in other assets including financial assets 1,329.75 (628.8%)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables, other liabilitics and provisions (371.28) 1,497.60
5,099.87 3,227.78
Income tax paid (net) (1,102.72) (900.97)
Nét cash flows from aperating activities 3,997.15 2,326.81
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (618.59) (435.91)
Proceeds from sole of property, plant and equipment 26.26 4.50
Purchase of units of mutual fund (10,865.00) (8,650.11)
Proceeds from sale of units of mutual find : 10,669.01 6,606.38
Investment in fixed deposits (598.22) (55.86)
Redemption/ maturity proceeds of fixed deposits 689.07 838.37
Interest received (finance income) .340.81 136.66
Net cush Muws used in investing aclivities (356.6) (1,555.47)
Financing activities
Payment of principal and interest portion of lease liabilities 3] (452.20) (413,05)
Proceeds from issuance of preference shares 15 4.14 -
Inter corporate deposit glven ) 7 (3,200.00) -
Interest paid (15.94) £191)
Net cash flows used in financing activities . (3,664.00) (420.%6)
Net {decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalent , (23.51) 350.38
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 13 1,222.68 §72.30
Cash and cash equivalents at year end 13 1,199.17 1,222.68
Notes: |
. Asat Asat |
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 ‘
a) Cash and cash equivalent include:
Cash on hand 026 0.30
Balances with banks
On current accounts . 1,194.77 1,222.38
On Escrow account "4.14 -
1,199.17 1,222.68

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

Opening balance of lease liabilities 467.21 593.89
Non-cash items
Additions to lease liability 1,307.45 216.00
Accretion of interest 3174 70.37
Cash flows (452.20) (413.05)

Closing balance of lease liabilities . 1,404.20 467.21




Mistral Solutions Private Limited

Standalone Statement of Cashk Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
CIN: U72200KA1999PTC025232

(ANl amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Asat As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
c) Non cash financing and investing activities
Acquisition of Right-of-use assets (Note 31) 1,357.68 22479
Changes in fair value of investment in mutual and other funds (Note 33) 96.51 47.34
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date
for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Direciors of
Chartered Accountants Mistral Solutions Private Limited
Fimm registration number: 101049W/E300004 CIN : U72200KA1999PTC025232 \‘/¥

Mujahid Ai Rajeev Ramachandra

Chief Executive Officer and Director
DIN: 02651595

Place: Los Angeles, USA
Date: 08 May 2024

Director
DIN: 00178756

Place: Phoenix, USA
Date: 08 May 2024




Mistral Solutions Private Limited !
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: U72200KA1999PTC025232

(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated) |

1 Corporate information:
The Standalone financial statements comprise financial statements of Mistral Solutions Private Limited (‘the Company/ 'Mistral’) (CIN:
U72200KA1999PTC025232) for the year ended 31 March 2024. Mlstral Solutions Private Limited is a company domicilied in India, with its registered
office situated at Bangalore. The Company was incorporated on 20 May 1999 under the provisions of the Indian Companies Act. The Registered Office of
the Company is "#60, Adarsh Regent,100 Feet Ring Road, Domlur, Bangalore, Karnataka, India, 560071".

The Company is primarily engaged in rendering end-to-end services for product design and development in the embedded space. The Company offers
design and development services covering hardware and software, customizable product designs and IPs, system integration and other solutions that
improve quality and accelerate time-to-market for a broad range of embedded systems.

The Standalone financial statements were approved For issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 08 May 2024.

2 Material accounting policies
A. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule IIT to
the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule IIT), as applicable to the standalone financial statements.

The Cémpany has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.

B. Functional and presentation currency

These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been
rounded off to two decimal places to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

C. Basis of measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been
measured at fair value:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value [refer accounting policy 3(f) relating to financial instruments]
- Share bused payments

D. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Company’s Standalone financial statements requires management.lo make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, asseis and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected
in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.
Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant ellil
on the amounts recognised in the Standalone financial statements

- Note 21 - revenue recognition: whether revenue from professional engineering service is recognized over time or at a point in time.

- Note 31 - leases: whether an arrangement contains a lease. Whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise extension options.

- Note 36 - measurement of defined benefit obligations - Key actuarial assumptions

Assumptions and estimation uncertainities

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Standalone financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur.

- Note 29 - recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used;

- Note 31 - leases: lease term and incremental borrowing rate

- Note 36 - measurement of defined benefit obligations: key acturial assumptions;

- Note 17 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of
resources;

- Note 40 — fair valre measurement of finaneial 1neruments

- Note 4 and 5 - useful life of property, plant and equipinent and intangible assets

- Note 6,7, 8, 12, 13 and 14 - impairment of financial assets

This space has been intentionally left blank.



Mistral Solutions Private Limited .-
Notes on standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)

E. Measurement of fair values

Certain accounting policies and disclosures of the Company require the measurément of fair values, for both financial and non financial assets and
liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices)

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the

fair value of an asset or a liability fall into a different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirely in
the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement,

Further information about the assumptions made in the measuring fair values is included in the following notes:
- Note 38 - share-based payment; and
- Note 40 - financial instruments

F. Current/ Non-current elassification

The Compeny presents assets and labilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months afier the reporting pertod; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when —

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its seitlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification. '

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ¢lassified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

3 Summary of material accounting policies

(a) Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs
for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. Repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The
present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition
criteria for a provision are met.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under
other non-current assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. Subsequent expenditures
relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon dispesal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The Company depreciates the following assets over their estimated useful lives using the written down value {WDV) methed except for vehicles, The
estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Asset Useful Life

Plant and equipment 15 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computer system {including testing equipment)* 6 years

Fumiture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles* 6 years .

Leasehold improvements are depreck er its lease period including renewable period or estimated useful life, whichever is shorter, on a_vwritten

down value (WDV) basis.




Mistral Solutions Private Limited
Notes on standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
*Summary of material accounting policics (continued)

(a) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
* Based on an technical assessment, the Management believes that the useful lives as given above represents the period over which Management expects
to use the assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies
Act, 2013,

The expected useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at-least annually.

Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under development as at the balance sheet date.

(b) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when
development is complete, and the asset is available for use, It is amortised over the period of expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Others
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

r

Amortisation:
Intangible assets are amortized on written down value method over their respective individual estimated useful lives commencing from the date the asset is

available to the Company for its use.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Useful Life
Computer Software ‘ 6 years

The expected useful lives are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriate.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset are considered to medify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of
another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

(¢) Impairment
i. Financial Assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the.Company expects 1o
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral
held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result fiom default events that are possible within the next 12-months {a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initfal recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). .

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

ii. Non - financial Assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an-indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets, When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken inlo account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.




Mistral Solutions Private Limited .
Notes on standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

il Non - financial Assets (continued)

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s
CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a
long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods
covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for
subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
products, industries, or country or countries in which the Company operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised, The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

(d) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is or contains & lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As a Lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

a) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease {i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received, Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
If ownership of the right-of-use asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

b) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease

term. The lease pavments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
" depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a

purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the

Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are

incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in
the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchas¢ the underlying asset.

¢) Short-term leases

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have 2 lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(e) Inventorics

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and conditien. Cost is determined
on first in, first out basis. ’

Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal
operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing lhe inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined
on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.
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Notes on standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

(f) Financial instruments |

i Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securites issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities when it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 'All financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on initial recognition.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through
profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Trade receivables that do not contain significant financing component are measured at
transaction price. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

Classification and subsequent measurement

-
-+

Financial Assets

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

‘ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
| A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is
| achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

Investment in subsidiaries and associate

Investment in subsidiaries and associate is carried at cost in the financial statements.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one
| year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.
| .

-

ifi Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the right to
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred
or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial
asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby the transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the medified terms are substantially different.
Tn this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and a new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv Offestting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsct and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to seitle them on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

(2) Foreign currencies

The Company’s Standalone financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions and balances:

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign cwrrency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined, The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
the change in fair value of the item (i.e.,, translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also
recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

It determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income {or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which the Company initially recognises
the
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Notes on standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
Summary of material accouanting policies (coatinued)

(h) Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the
principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of the transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that
petformance obligation.

The Company derives its revenue primarily from professional engineering services, sale of products and system engineering and traded sales.

Revenue from professional engineering services includes development contracts is either on time-and-material basis or fixed price contracts. Revenue on
time-and-material basis is recognised as the related services are rendered. Revenue from fixed price contracts, where the performance obligations are
satisfied over time and where there is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of consideration, is recognised as per the percentage-of-completion
method, When there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. Costs
expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity.

Revenue from sale of products is recognized at the point in time when control of the goods is passed to the customer. The point at which control passes is
determined based on the terms and conditions by each customer arrangement, but generally occurs on delivery to the customer. The contracts that Company
enters into relate to sales order containing single performance obligations for the delivery of goods as per Ind AS 113, Transaction price is the amount of
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods to a customer. Variable consideration is estimated using the
expected value method or most likely amount as appropriate in a given circumstance. Payment terms agreed with a customer are as per business practice
and there is no financing component involved in the transaction price. The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are
separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated.

Maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the term of the underlying maintenance arrangement.

Provision for estimated losses, if any, on incomplete contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the current
contract estimates.

Other operating income includes benefits arising out of transactions from the operations at the Company where payment is not done by the Company. The
same is recognised when there is reasonable certainity about its realisation,

Revenue in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (referred as unbilled revenue) while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as
contract liabilities (referred as deferred revenues).

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope or contract price. The accounting
for modifications of contracts involves whether the services added to an existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling
ptice, Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumnulative catch up basis, while those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively,
either as a separate contract, if the additional services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a
new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

Income from support services is recognized and accounted in accordance with the terms of the agreement for service.

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i) Investment in subsidiaries and associate

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by another entity.

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence, Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Company’s investments in its subsidiarics and associates are accounted at cost less impairment.

Impairment of investments:
The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the Investment is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the cost of the Investment. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in Statement of
Profit or Loss.

This space has been intentionally left blank.
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.Notes on standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
Summary of material accounting policies (contirued) : '

(i) Income Tax |

Tax expense comprises current tax expense and deferred tax. !
1
i Current Tax |

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amourit expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation anthorities. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company
operates and generates taxable income,

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Cutrent tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each
uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the

treatment.

-

ii Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts

for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences;

In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither (Le accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences;

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profil will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assct to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the Company relies on the same forecast assumptions used elsewhere in the financial statements
and in other management reports. ) -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (gither in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tex liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity which intends eithier to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realisc the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

(k) Provision and contingent liabilities
i General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present cbligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable hat an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required Lo settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss
net of any reimbursement. :

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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Notes on standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued) '
Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

() Provision and contingent liabilities (continued)

ii Warranty provisions

‘The Company pravides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale, as per the terms of contract. Provisions related to these
assurance-type warranties are recognised when the product is sold, or the service is provided to the customer. Initial recognition is based on historical
experience. The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is revised annually.

iii Onerous contracts

If the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision. However, before a
separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that
contract.

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the Company cannot avoid because it has the contract) of
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect
the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to
fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract (i.e., both incremental costs and an allocation of costs
directly related to contract activities).

iv Contingent Liability

Contingent liability is:

(a) a possible obligation arising from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity or

(b) apresent obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because;

-it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or

-the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

(1) Employee benefits

i

-
L=

Defined contibution plans

A defined contribution ptan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no
legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards government administered
provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the
periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Provident fund

Contribution towards providént fund for certain employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such
benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made-on a
monthly basis.

i Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined
benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in the current and prior periods, discounting that
amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The Company's gratuity plan is a defined benefit plan, The present value of gratuity obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on
actuerial valuations carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving
rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at
the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is
based on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to the terms of related
obligations. :

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the
effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in QCIL The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net
defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual
period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a
result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

iii. Compensated leave

Compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date using the
projected unit credit method.
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(m) Share-based payments

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value ':‘Ii! the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is
recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and / or
service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of diluted eamings per share.

{n) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The director of
the Company is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments and accordingly is identified as the CODM.

(o) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the Standalone statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

(p) Earnings per share

Basic camings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of parent company (after deducting preference
dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid
equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus
issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders of the Company and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding duriny Lhe period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential cquity shares.

(q) Share capital

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issued equity shares are recognised as a deduction from equity, Income tax relating to transaction costs of an
cquity transaction is accounted for in accordance with IND AS 12,

(r) New and amended standards

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the
following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023, The Company applied for the first-time these amendments,

(t) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinetion between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting polivies and the correetion of errors. It has also
been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s standalone financial statements,

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide.accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their
‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material” accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept
of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures. ’

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any
items in the Company’s financial statements.

(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases,

The Company previously recognised for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. As a result of these amendments, the Company has recognised a separate
deferred tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability in relation to its right-of-use assets. Since, these balances qualify for offset as
per the requirements of paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12,there is no impact in the balance sheet. There was also no impact on the opening retained eamnings as
at 1 April 2022.

Apart from these, consequential amendments and editorials have been made to other Ind AS like Ind AS 101, Ind AS 102, Ind AS 103, Ind AS 107, Ind AS
109, Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 34.

(s) Climate — related matters
The Company considers climate-related matters in estimates and assumptions, where appropriate. ‘This assessment includes a wide range of possible
impacts on the Company due to both physical and transition risks. Even though climate-related risks might not currently have a significant impact on
measurement, the Company is closely menitoring relevant changes and developments, such as new climate-related legislation.
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(All amounts in Rs. lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

4 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Plant and Office Furniture and Computer Vebhicles Test Leasehold Total
equipment equipment fixtures system cquipment improvements
Cost
As at 1 April 2022 33111 48.33 70.46 473,13 375.39 335.55 51.81 1,685.78
Additions 10.15 18.71 7.82 53.75 144.15 34.83 38.09 307.50
Disposals - - - (349 (28.83) - - (32.32)
As at 31 March 2023 341.26 67.04 78.28 523.39 490.71 370.38 89.90 1,960.96
Additions 6.74 9.35 0.02 130.58 258.29 4736 23.90 476.24
Disposals (16.52) (0.42) (0.51) (0.70) (76.49) (1.63) - (96.67)
As at 31 March 2024 331.08 7597 - 7179 653.27 672.51 416.11 . 113.80 2,340.53
Depreciation
As at 1 April 2022 65.29 33.34 37.23 303.10 138.71 256.95 28.04 862.66
Charge for the year 46.15 11.37 16.73 67.23 58.42 27.42 29.38 256.70
Disposals ) ' - - - (2.55) (22.91) - - {25.46)
As at 31 March 2023 111.44 44.71 53.96 367.78 174.22 284.37 57.42 1,093.90
Charge for the year 38.73 9.83 8.18 75.64 88.10 33.57 2242 276.47
Disposals (12.84) {0.38) {0.51) {0.61) (51.19) _(1.23) - {66.76)
As at 31 March 2024 13733 54.16 61.63 442.81 211.13 316.71 79.84 1,303,61
Net book value
As at 31 March 2024 193.75 21.81 16.16 210.46 461.38 99.40 33.96 1,036.92
As at 31 March 2023 229.82 22.33 24.32 155.61 316.49 86.01 32.48 867.06
Property, plant and equipment pledged as security
Detzils of PPE pledged are as per note 13.
Capitalised borrowing cost
No borrowing costs are capitalised during the year ended 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: Nil).
Capital work in progress (CWIP)
As at 31 March 2024
1 April 2023 Additions during Capitalised 31 March 2624
theyear  during the year
Projects in progress - 23.90 (23.90) -
Total - 23.90 (23.90) -
As at 31 March 2023 -
1 April 2022 Additions during Capitalised 31 March 2023
the ycar  during the year
Projects in progress - 21.08 (21.08) -
Total - 21.08 (21.08) -
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(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 5

5 Intangible assets !

Computer Total
software

Cost
Asat 1 April 2022 301.16 30116 .
Additions 112.88 112.88
As at 31 March 2023 414.04 414.04
Additions 161.50 161.50
As at 31 March 2024 575.54 575.54
Depreciation
Asat1 April 2022 208.52 208.52
Charge for the year 51.40 51.40
As at 31 March 2023 259.92 259.92
Charge for the year 83.77 83.77
As at 31 March 2024 343.69 343.69
Net book value
As at 31 March 2024 231.85 231.85
As at 31 March 2023 154.12 154.12

Details of Intangible assets pledged are as per note 13.

This space has been intentionally left blank.
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(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Investments
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Non-current
Unquoted investments -
Investment in cquity shares of subsidiaries carried at cost:
Mistral Solutions Inc., USA 307.42 307.42
1,000 equity shares (31 March 2023: 1,000) of no par valus
Aero Electronics Private Limited ~ - 451.11
Nil equity shares (31 March 2023: 70,688) of Rs. 5 each, fully paid up
Mistral Technologies Private Limited 106 1,00
20,000 equity shares (31 March 2023: 20,000) of Rs. 5 cach, fully paid up

308.42 759.53
Investment in cquity shares of nssociate carried at cost:
Aero Electronics Private Limited ~ . 451.11 -
70,688 equity shares (31 March 2023: Nil) of Rs.5 each, fully paid up

451.11 -
Total investment carried at cost 759.53 759.53
Investments at fair value through FVTPL
Investment in real estate fund 162.63 200,86
Total FYTPL investments 162.63 200.86
Total non-current investments 922.16 960.39
Current
Quoted investments
Tovestments at fair value through FVIPL
Investment in mutual funds 2,783.94 2,453.21
Total FVTPL investments 2,783.94 2,453.21
Total current investments 2,783.94 2,453.21
Aggrepete value of investments 3,706.10 3,413.60
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 922.16 960.39
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 2,783.94 2453.21
Agprepate market value of quoted investments 2,783.94 2,453.21

Aggregate provision for impairment in value of invesiments -

Refer note 13 for details of investments pledged as security.

A As per the Shareholders” Agreement and Share Subscription Agreement (“Shate Agresments”) between the Company, Aero Electronics Private Limited (“Aero Electronics™), 2
subsidiary of the Company and third-party Investor (“Investor™), it is agreed between the pasties 1o issue 67,900 Equity Shares and 89,486 Cumulative Convertible Preference
Shares of Aero Electronics to the Investor for a purchase consideration aggregating Rs. 1,397.59 lakhs and the Investor is entitled to appoint and remove the majority of directors
on the Board of Dircctors of Aero Electronics., Accordingly, the Company has lost control over Aero Electronics but continues to exercise significant influence over Aero

Electronics and hence accounts for the investments in Aero Electronics as an associate with effect from 04 September 2023,

Loans
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non-current
(carried at amortised cost)
Unsecured, considered good:
Inter<corporate deposit to related party (refer note 35) 3,200,00 -
3,200.00 -

Disclosure required under Sec 186(4) of the Companics Act 2013
Tncluded in Joans are certain intercorporate deposits the particulars of which are disclosed below as required by Sec 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013

Name of the loance Rate of interest Due date Secured/ unsecured Asat Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
AXISCADES Technologies Limited 11.50% 10 May 2026 Unseccured 1,500.00 -
AXISCADES Technologies Limited 11.50% 03 Dec 2026 Unsecured 1,760.00 -
3,200.00 -

(i) The loan has been utilized for meeting their working capital requirements/corparate restructuring.

(i) Loans are nan-derivative financial assets which generate a fixed interest income for the Company and are measured at amortised cost, The carrying value may be affected by

changes in the credit risk of the counterparties.
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
CIN: UT2200KA1999PTC025232

(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unfess otherwisc stated)

Refer note 13 for details of other assets pledped as security.

This space has been intentionally left blank.

Qther financial assets
\ Asat Ag at
1 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non-current
(carried ot amortised cost)
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 179.81 221.03
Margin Money deposit with banks 375.54 -
Interest accrued but not due from related parties (refer note 35) 181.5%9 -
73734 121.03
Current
(carried at amortised cost)
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 51.96 -
Margin Mongy deposit with banks 382.60 -
Eamest money deposit 2.68 4,00
Interest accrued but pot due on margin money deposit 31.29 32.01
Unbiiled revenue® 140,72 20.94
Eamnest money deposit - -
Other receivables from related parties (refer note 35) - 600,00
Liquidated damages recoverable from customers 153.69 -
Others 14.89 34.40
. 777.83 69135
* Includes Rs. 133.76 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs, 14.30 lakhs) from related party (refer note 35)
Refer note 13 for details of other financial assets pledged as security.
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost
Loans (Non-current} (refer note 7) 3,200,00 -
Trade receivables (Current) (refer note 12) 6,996.15 5,327.10
Cash and cash equivalent (refer note 13) 1,199.17 1,222.68
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent (refer notc 14) 597.63 1,446.63
Other financial assets (Current and Non-current) (refer note 8) 1,515.17 912.38
13,508.12 8,908.79
Non-current tax asset, net
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advance income tax 181.76 182.43
181.76 182.43
Other assets
Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid expenses 1.20 6.03
' 1.20 6.03
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Duties and taxes recoverable 269.18 1,027.28
Export incentive receivable 72.79 72.79
Prepaid expenses 197.28 197.23
Advance to suppliers 779.63 348.00
Advance to employees 3.50 6.36
Contract assets 3,200.75 4,076.00
Deferred rent 0.67 0.96
Other gdvances - 19.15
4,523.80 §,747.77
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Notes to Standnlone Financial Statenents for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
CIN: U72200KA1999PTC025232

(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Inventories (at the lower of cost and net realisable value)

Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Raw material and components [In transit of Rs.77.07 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs,112.44 lakhs)] 4,999.45 4,496.11
Work in progress 1,080,88 818.08
Finished goods 35141 624.00
Stock-in-trade [In transit of Rs. 39,09 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 28.96 lakhs)] . 100,62 147.77
6,532.36 6,085.96
Value of inventories above is stated afler provisions for obsolescence/slow moving of Rs. 1,193.65 [akhs (31 March 2023: Rs. $09.12 lakhs).
Refer note 13 for detnils of inventories pledged as security.
Trade receivables
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current
Trade receivables from other parties 6,644.20 5,361.84
Trade receivables from related parties (refer note 35) 411.24 21.48
Total trade receivables 7,055.44 5,383.32
Break-up for security details:
Secured, considered poad - -
Unsecured, considered good 6,996.15 5,327,10
Trade receivables, which have significant increase in eredit risk 46,85 56.22
Trade receivables - credit impaired 12.44 -
7,055.44 5,383.32
Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubt{ul debts)
Trade receivables, which have significant increase in credit risk (46.85) (56.22)
Trade receivables - credit impaired (12.44) -
Total trade receivables 6,996.15 5327.10
Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2024
Unbilled Current but Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
(Toctuded Less than 6 6 months to More than
. not due 1-2 years  2-3 years Total
in note 8) months 1 year J years
Undisputed trade receivables -- considered good 140,72 3,405.56  3,54751 3575 7.33 - - 6,996.15
Undisputed trade receivables - which have - 283 468 105 3829 - - 46,85
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed trade receivables —~ credit impaired - - - - - - 12.44 12.44
Disputed trade receivables — considered pood - - - - - - - -
Disputed trede receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk ) ' B ) ) . ) )
Disputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - - -
Total 140.72 3,408.32  3,552.19 36.80 45.62 - 12.44 7,055.44
As at 31 March 2023
Unbilled Current but Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
(Included ot due Less than 6 6 months to 12 years  2-3 years More than Tatal
in note 8) months 1 year ¥ ¥ 3 years
Undispated trade receivables — considered good 20,94 2,092.29  3,135.15 96.57 30 - - - 5,327.10
Undisputed trads recalvebes - which have - oz 2264 016 108 2244 - 56.22
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables — considered good - - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables — which have
sigmificant increase in credit risk h ) ) ) ) " ) )
Disputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - - -
Total 20.94 2,092.41 3,157.79 96.73 13.95 22.44 - 5,383.32
No trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person.
For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer note 35,
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generully on terms of 30 to-90 days.
Asat Asat
. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Set out below is the movement in the allowance for expected credit losses of trade reccivables:
Asat 1 April 5622 40,43
Provision for expected credit losses 3.07 15.79
As at 31 March 59.29 56.22

Refer note 13 for details of trade receivables pledged as security.
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
CIN: U72200KA1999PTC025232

(All amounts in Rs, lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Cash and cash equivalent ' .

! Asat Asat
| 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balances with banks; |
= On current accounts * ! 1,194.77 1,222.38
- On Escrow account® 4,14 -
Cash on hand 0.26 0.30
1,199.17 1,222.68

* includes debit balance in cash credit of Rs. 962.66 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 836.32 lakhs)
- Total Limits sanctioned (including non working capital) is Rs, 4,930.00 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 4,730.00 lakhs)

- first pari-pasu charge on receivables, current assets and fixed assets of the Company. The quarterly retums or statements filed by the Company against the sanctioned working

capital limits with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts.
- Cash credit rate of interest - HDFC Bank Limited "10.4%", Axis Bank Limited "Repo + 3.75%", Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited "Repo + 3.75%"

~ amount received from proceeds of issuance of preference shares during the year which is to be utilised for the purpose for which it is received. Refer note no. 15 c{ii) for details

At 31 March 2024, the Company had available Rs. 676.41 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs, 963.17 lakhs) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities.-

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent comprise the following:

Balances with banks;
- On current accounts 1,194.77 1,222.38
= On Escrow account™ 4.14 -
Cash on hand 0.26 0.30
1,199.17 1,222.68
Beak balances other than cash and cash equivalent
Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Margin money deposits (with eriginal maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months) 597.63 1,343.20
Bank deposits {with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months) - 103,43
591.63 1,446.63

Refer note 13 for details of bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent pledged as security.

This space has been intentionally left blank.
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b (i)

Mistral Solutions Private Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
CIN: U72200KA1999PTC025232

(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
.__(in lakhs) (in lakhs)
Authorized share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 5 each 60.00 300,00 60,00 300.00
Preference shares of Rs. 5 each 10.00 50,00 10,00 - 50.00
70.00 350,00 70.00 350.00

Terms/ rights attached fo equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 5 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to cne vote per share. Tire Company declares
and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

b (i) Terms/ rights attached to prefercnce shares

(i) Series B preference shares

The Company has 38,000 (31 March 2023: 38,000) Fully Convertible Cumnulative Participative Preference Shares (FCCPPS) of Rs, 5 each at a premium of Rs, 225 each per
share outstanding as at the end of the year.

Eachi Series B preference share has a par value of Rs. 5 and is convertible upon the first occurrence of: (a) the majority investors consenting to such conversion; (b) the
closing of an underwritten public offering of the Company’s equity shares at a minimum valuation specified in the Shareholders Agreement dated 7 January 2008 (‘the
Series B Agreement’); or (€) on 30 June 2027. The preference shares carry a dividend of 0.01% per annum. The dividend rights are cumulative. In addition, FCCPS are
entitled to participate in the distribution of the profits of the Company to the other shareholders of the Company as per the Agreement.

In the event of any liquidation event (defined in the Serics B Agreement), to the extent Series B preference shares are not converted into equity shares, the holders of Series
B preference shares shall have a preference over the other sharcholders of the Company (inciuding the founders and the other sharcholders and any remaining equity
shareholders, including the investors' equity shares) for retum of capital as set out in the Series B Agreement.

(ii) Series C preference shares

The Company has issued 414,039 Convertible Cumulative Participative Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 5 each at a premium of Rs. 964,11 per share (partly paid-up of Rs.
1 each aggregating Rs. 4.14 lakhs) to Grand Anicut 2 as per the Shareholders Agreement dated 22 July 2023 and amended Shareholders Agreement dated 29 September
2023 ‘(collectively ‘the Series C Agreements’). As per the amended Shareholders Agreement dated 29 September 2023, the unpaid monies for the Series C preference shares
shall be called by the Board of the Company, at its sole discretion and further it is agreed that the Company shall not as an obligation but only on best endeavour basis

_ provide exit to the investor upen receipt of request from the investor,

cfi)

¢ (ii) Series B isszed convertible preference shares of Rs. 5 each issued and fully paid

Each Series C preference share has a par value of Rs. 5 and is convertible at the option of the shareholders into Equity shares of the Company on receipt of final investment

amount as specified in the Series C Agreements in the ratio of one equity share for each Series C preference share held. In the event the conversion option is not exercised

by the shareholders, preference shares will be automatically converted into one equity share for every one Series C preference share held upon the first occurrence of: (a)

Liquidity event in the Company as specified in the Scries C Agreements; (b) one day prior to the expiry of five years from the date of receipt of final investment amount. The

preference shares carry a dividend of 0,01% per annum. The dividend rights ere cumulative. In addition, Series C preference shares are entitled to participate pari-passu in

any cash or non-cash dividends paid to the holders of shares of all other classes, on an as-if converted basis. Till such time that the Series C preference shares remain partly

paid, the dividend payable shall be apportioned and paid proportionately to the amounts paid or credited as paid during any portion or portions of the period in respect of
which the dividend is paid, ’

Subject to the Subscription Shares being fully paid up, in the event of oceurence of a liquidation event {other than a liquidity event defined in the Series C Agreements), the
jnvestor shall be entitled to receive, in preference to the Promoter, the higher of: (i) an amount equal to one time of the investment amount plus any accrued and unpaid
dividends; or (ii) any amounts to be distributed on a pro-rata basis amongst all shareholders. In the event the proceeds from liquidation are inadequate to pay the amounts in
full to the Series C preference share holders, the entire proceeds from liguidation shall be granted to the Series C preference share holders. It is clarified that the Series C
preference share holders shall be entitled to the preference on and from the date on which the subscription shares are fully paid up.

Issued equity capital

Equity shares of Rs. 5 each issued, subscribed and fully paid Number of shares . Amount
(in lakhs)

As at 1 April 2022 38.05 190.27

Chenges during the year® 263 13.12

As at 31 March 2023 : 40.63 203.39

Changes during the year - -

As at 31 March 2024 40.68 203.39

* During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company allotted 262,500 equity shares of Rs. 5 each aggregating Rs. 13.12 lakhs, consequent to the exercise of stock options
by employees of the Company under the “Mistral Solutions Private Limited Employee Stock Option Plan 2010”,

Series B mandatorily convertible cumulative participative preference shares of Rs. 5 each issued, subscribed and fully paid Number of shares Amount
{in lakhs)

Asat 1 April 2022 0.38 1.90

Changes during the year - -

As at 31 March 2023 0.38 1.90

Changes during the year ) - -
As at 31 March 2024
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(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

15 Share capital (continued)

c (iif) Series C issued convertible preference shares of Rs. 5 each Issued and partly paid

Series C mandatorily convertible cumulative participative preference shares of Rs. 5 each issued, subscribed and partly paid Number of shares - Amount
(partly paid-up, Rs. 1 each paid-up) (In lakhs)
Asat1 April 2022 - -
Changes during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 - -
Changes during the year 4.14 4.14
As at 31 March 2024 4.14 4.14
d  Shares held by holding company and its subsidiary
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Out of equity and preference shares issued by the Company, shares held by its Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
holding company and its subsidiary are as below: (in Iakhs) (in lakhs)
Axiscades Technologies Limited, a Holding Company ' .
-Equity shares 23.64 118.21 23.56 117.81
- Series B preference shares 0.38 1.90 038 1.90
Exvlosoft Tech Solutions Private Limited. e fellow subsidiarv - Eauitv shares 16.79 83.97 16.79 83,97
e  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares:
Asat Asat
. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Name of the Shareholder . Number of shares % holding in the Number of shares % holding in the
(in lakhs) class (in Iakhs) class
Equity shares of Rs. 5 each, par value .
Axiscades Technologies Limited, a Holding Company ' 23.64 58.12% 23.56 57.92%
Explosoft Tech Solutions Private Limited, a fellow subsidiary 16.79 41.28% 16.79 41.28%
Scries B fully convertible camulative participative preference of Rs. 5 each, par value
Axiscades Technologies Limited, a Holding Company 0.38 100.00% 0.38 100.00%
Series C mandatorily convertible cumulative participative preference of Rs. 5 each, par value
Grand Anicut Fund 2 4.14 100.00% - 0.00%
{  The Company has not issued any bonus shares or bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.
g  The Company has not issued any shares for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.
h  Shares reserved for issue under options
For details of shares reserved for issue under the “Mistral Solutions Private Limited Employee Stock Option Plan 2010%, please refer note 38.
For details of shares reserved for issue on conversion of convertible preference shares, refer note b(ii) "Terms/ rights attached to preference shares” above.
i Details of shares held by promoters
As at 31 March 2024 Number of shares are in lakhs
Number of shares at Change during Number of shares % of total Shares % change during
Promoter Name the beginning of the the year  at the end of the the year
year year
Equity shares of Rs. 5 each, par value ’
Axiscades Technologies Limited 23,56 0.08 23,64 58.12% 0.34%
Explosoft Tech Solutions Private Limited 16.79 - 16.79 41,28% 0.00%
Series B mandatorily convertible cumulative ’
participative preference of Rs. 5 each, par value
Axiscades Technologies Limited 0.38 - 033 100.00% 0.00%
As at 31 March 2023 . Number of shares are in lakhs
No. of shares at the Change during  No.of shares at % of total Shares % change during
Promoter Name beginning of the the year the end of the year the year
year
Equity shares of Rs. 5 each, par value
Axiscades Technologies Limited 16.33 7.23 23.56 57.92% 431%
Explosoft Tech Solutions Private Limited 16.79 - 16.79 41.28% 0.00%
Anees Ahmed 295 (2.95) - 0.00% -100.00%
Series B mandatorily convertible cumulative
participative preference of ¥ 5 each, par value
Axiscades Technologies Limited - 0.38 0.38 100.00% 100.00%
-100.00%

Anees Ahmed 0.25 (0.25) 0.00%
Rajeev Ramachandra -

-100.00%
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
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{All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Qther cquity
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Securities preminm 1,193,70 1,193.70
Equity contribution by preference and equity share holders on relinquishment of rights 941.65 941.65
Capital redemption reserve 45.73 4573
Capital reserve . 1,414.44 1,414.44
General reserve . 55.30 5530
Retained earnings 17,200.94 12,709.10
20,851.76 16,359.92

Refer Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity, for movement in other equity
Nature and purpose of other reserves

Sccurities premivm

Securities premium is used o record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accardance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Equity contribution by preference and equity share holders on relinquishment of rights

Represents the liability foregone by certain equity and preference share holders on relinquishment of buyback rights.
Capital redemption reserve

The Campany had purchased its own shares and as per the provisions of the applicable laws, & sum equal to the nomina! value of the shares so purchased is required to be transferred
to the capital redempiion reserve. i
Capital reserve
Represents payment made by the AXISCADES Technologies Limited, a Holding company, for eancellution of options which were granted but not vested and options promised but not
granted under the “Mistral Solutians Private Limited Employee Stock Option Plan 20107,

General reserve
Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through transfer of net income for the purpose of issuance of bonus shares.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to sharehalders. Retained eamings
include re-measurement loss/ (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Provisions
As at Asat
31 March 2024 3] March 2023
Noon-current
Employee defined benefits liability
- Provision for compensated absences 145.69 126.63
145.69 126.63
Current
Employee defined benefits liability
- Provision for gratuity (refer note 36) 99.10 76.39
- Proviston for compensated absences 27.35 2311
Provision for foreseeable loss on contracts® 22.97 2297
Provision for warranty** 171.38 125.44
Provision for liquidated damages*** 748.07 774.01
1,068.87 1,021.92

* The provision is created to provide for expected losses in the project based on the expected cost overruns, These provisions are expected to be utilized over a period of anc year,

** provision for warranty costs are estimated on the basis of a technical evaluation and past experience. Provisicn is made for estimated liability in respect of wasranty costs in the year
of sale of goods. These provisions are expected to be utilized over the period of warranty,

¥ Provision for liquidated damages relates to estimated outflow in respect of products sald by the Company and estimated to be incurred due to delay in delivery of products to
customers, These provisions are expected to be utilized over a period of one year.

The disclosure of provisions movement as required under the provisions of Ind AS 37 *Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets" is as follows:

Provision far

. Provisien for
foresceable Provision for

Iosses on warranty hg:ﬁ:tg.::

contracts
Asat 1 April 2022 3.59 74,65 629.08
Provisions made during the year 21.33 171.19 870.91
Reversal made during the year - - (516.84)
Utilizations during the year {1.95) {120.40) (209.14)
As at 31 March 2023 22,97 125.44 774.01
Provisions made during the year ’ 10.50 182.70 1,507.32
Reversal mads during the year - - (1,420.84)
Utilizations during the year (10.50) {136.76) (112.42)

As at 31 March 2024 ' . : 22.97 171.38 748.07
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Notes to Stendalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (coint!nued)

CIN: U72200KA1999PTC025232
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Trade payables
| Asat As at
1 ' 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 18A below) 7172 135.84
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enferprises and small enterprises 2,306.19 2,323.20
Accrued expenses - 287.03 141.03
2,670.94 2,600.07 |
Trade payables to other parties 1,818,03 2,274,15
Trade payables to related parties (refer note 35) 852.91 325.92
2,670.94 2,600.07
Trade payables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2024
Cutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Accrued ot gue Loss than 1 More th
expenses s tuan 1-2 years 2-3 years an Total
year 3 years
(i) Undisputed dues of micro enterprises and sinall enterprises 0.20 65.73 11.79 - - - 77.72
(i) Undisputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 286.83 2,155.04 150.14 - 1.21 - 2,593.22
small enterprises :
(iii) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small - - - - - - -
enterprises
2587.03 2,220.77 161.93 - 1.21 - 2,670.94
As at 31 March 2023
Cutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Accrued Notdue Lessthanl More than
expenses year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3years Total
(i) Undisputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 38.57 95.18 - 0.09 2.00 135.34
(ii) Undisputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 141.03 1,586.53 651.17 85.50 2,464.23
small enterprises
(iii) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small - - - - - - -
enterprises
141.03 1,625.10 746.35 85,50 0,09 2.00 2,600.67

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled in 0-60 day terms
For terms and conditions with related parties, refer note 35.

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

As ot As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

‘The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 17.72 135.84
Interest due on above - -

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of
2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appainted day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during
the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unti! such date when the interest dues above are

actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and - -
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

The amount of the payments made to micro and small enterprises beyend the appointed day during each accounting year 46.47 64.84

Notes:

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medfum Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recammends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should
mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the
amounts payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2024 end 31 March 2023 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the Company.

The Company has not received any ¢laim for interest from any supplier under the said Act. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in
accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material.
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {continued)

CIN: U72200KA1999PTC025232
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Other financlal liabilitles
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current
(carricd at amortised cost)
Dues to employees 624.84 491.50
Other payables 86,93 9.66
(carried at FVTPL)
Option premium on fair valuation of derivative (refer note 39) - 565.18
L 1,066.34
Breakup of financial liabilities earried at amortised cost As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade payables (Current) (refer note 18) 2,670.94 2,600.07
Lease liabilties (Non-current and current) (refer note 31) 1,404.20 467.21
Other financial liabilities (Current) (refer note 19) 71177 501.16
4,786.51 3,568.44
Other current liahilities
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Statutory linbilities 491.86 285.46
Contract liabilities
- Advance from customers 2,033.40 2,575.65
- Uncarned revemss 1,117.23 925.75
3,642.49 3,786.86

This space has been intentionally left blank.
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Revenue from contracts with customers
Yeor ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from operations 31,200.54 26,338.27
Other operating revenue 272.56 673.73
Total revenue from contracts with customers 31,473.10 27,012,00

. A. Disaggregated revenue information
The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers by type, geography and timing of revenue recognition, The Company believes that this
disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other ecanomic factors,

Type of goods or service
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Product sales
Sale of products 15,102,22 12,927.34
System engineering and traded sales 3,152,659 4,318.52
Sale of services
Professional engineering services 8,945.63 9,092.41
Other operating revenue
Other operating income * 272.56 673.73
31,473.10 27,012.00
* Input availed on import of FOC materials shipped by cutomers and duty paid by them
Primary Geographical Markets
Ge h Year ended Year ended
o8rapty 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
India 17,902.24 13,419,18
QOutside India 13,298.30 12,919.09
31,200.54 26,338.27
Timing.of revenue recogoition
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 3] March 2023
Goods or services transferred at point in time 22,074.74 16,944.25
Goods or services transferred over time 9,125.80 9,394.02
31,200.54 26,338.27

Note : The amount of Rs. 272.56 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 673.73 lakhs) pertaining to other operating revenue has not been considered in the above revenue disclosure.

B. Contract balances

Asat Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Trade receivables 7.055.44 5383.32
Contract assets 3,341.47 4,096.94
Contract liabilities 3,150.63 3,501.40

Trade receivables are nor-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days. In 31 March 2024, Rs. 3.07 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs, 15.79 lakhs) was
recognised as provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables, As at 31 March 2024, the Company has provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables of
Rs. 59.29 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 56.22 lakhs).

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as unbilled revenue, A receivable is a right to consideration that is
unconditional upon passage of tlime, Revenue in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (unbilled revenue) while invoicing in excess of revenue are classified
as contract liabilities (unearned revenues). X

Contract assets mainly relates to revenue eamed from professional engineering services. As such,. the balances of this account vary and depend on the quantum of
engineering services at the end of the year. Refention money receivable from customers does not contain any significant financing element, these are retained for
satisfactory performance of contract.

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received for sale of products and to render enginecring services in the future as well as transaction price allocated to
performance obligations not yet completed.

In case of long - term contracts payment is generally due upen completion of milestone as per terms-of contract. [n certain contracts, shot-term advances are received
before the performance obligation is satisfied. Advance from customers pertain to balance received as advance from various parties as certain percentage of the order

value, The same will be adjusted against the order on the basis of delivery and collection of receivables. There is no significant financing component for those contracts
where the customer pay in advance as per the terms of the contract,

C. Performance obligation
Information about the Company’s performance obligations are summarised below:

Professional engineering services
The performance obligation is satisfied over-time and payment is generally due within 30 10 90 days from the date when the related services are rendered.

Sale of products and System engineering and traded sales
The performance obligation is mainly satisfied upon transfer of cantrol of the pramised goods and payment is generally due within 30 to 50 days from delivery,
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Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March are, as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Within one year 5,134,58 5,881.12
More than one year 45.00 -
§,179.58 588112
D. Changes in unbilled reveaue or contract assets are as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 4,096.94 3,595.38
Additions during the year ©,490.46 9,934.26
Reclassification adjustments;
- Billing from opening balance of contract assefs to trade receivables (2,830.28) (1,377.58)
- Billing from contract assets transferred to trade receivables (7,415.65) (8,055.12)
Closing balance 334147 4,096.94
E. Changes in deferred revenue or contract liabilities are as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 3,501.40 2,353.81
Additions during the year 339.70 1,448.14
Reclassification Adjustments; :
- Transfer of opening balances of contract liabilities to revenue (690.47) (300.55)
Closing balance 3,150.63 3,501.40
F. Reconciliation of revenue from contracets with customers
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from contracts with customers as per the contract price 31,373.95 26,692.34
Adjustments made to contract price on account of :-
a} Liquidated damages (86.4R) (354.07)
b) Interest charged by customer on advances given (86.93) -
Revenue from contracts with customers as per the Statement of Profit and Loss 31,200.54 26338.27
22 Other income
Interest Income
- from fixed deposit 85.79 99.27
- from financials assets carried at amortised cost 15.68 15.40
- from intercompany desposits to related parties 221.87 3.96
- from others 16.74 20.18
Net gain on financial asset measured at fair valve through profit and loss 96,51 47.34
Income from support services 124,33 49.99
Provisien no longer required, written back 212 -
Exchange differences (net) - 7.94
Miscellaneous income 222 045
565.26 244,53
23 Cost of raw material and components consumed
‘Tnventory at the beginning of the year 4,496,11 3,273.96
Add: Purchases 13,606.15 11,240.80
18,102.26 14,514.76
Less; Inventory at the end of the year (4,999.45) (4,496.11)
] 13,102.81 10,018.65
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods
Opening balance
Work-in-progress 818.08 793.51
Finished Goods 624.00 417.63
Traded goods 147.77 174.71
1,589.85 1,385.85
Closing balance
Work-in-progress 1,080.88 818.08
Finished Goods 35141 624.00
Traded goods 100.62 147.77
1,532.91 1,589.85
(Increase)/ decrease in inventory
Work-in-progress (262.80) (24.57)
Finished Goods 272.59 (206.37)

Traded goods

47.15

26,94

56.94

(204.00)
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25 Employee bencfits expense

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 7,994.68 7,219.76
Contribution to provident and other funds 402.25 335.05
Gratuity expense (refer note 36) 80.47 7492
Leave compensation/ compensated absences 2330 838
Share based payments to employees - 403.14
Staff welfare expenses 153.45 205.84
8,654.15 8,247.69

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent in September
2020, The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Certain sections of the code came into effect on 3 May 2023. However, the final rules/ interpretation have not
yet been issued, The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Cade becomes effective,

26 Finanee costs

Tnterest expense on financial liability measured at amortised cost
Interest on lease liabilities

Interest on customer advance

QOthers

27 Deprecintion and amortisation expense
Degreciation on property plant end equipment (refer note 4)
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets (refer note 31)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 5)

28 Other expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Rent (refer note 31)
- Immovable property
- Equipment hire
Legal and professional fees
Repairs and maintenance
- Plant and machinery
- Others
Software subcription charges
Power and fuel
Bank charges
Communication cosis
Advertising and sales promotion
Rates and taxas
Sales support service and commission
Insurance
Advances written off
Provision for warranties, foreseeable losses on contracts and others (net of reversals)
Loss allowance on trade receivables
Freight and forwarding charges
CSR expenditure (refer note 34)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Exchange differences (net)
Miscellaneous expenses

Payment to Auditors

As auditor:
Audit fee
Other services

In other capacity:
Reimbursement of expenses

0.06 1.43
81.74 7037
15.88 -

- 6.49
97.68 78.29
27647 256.70
399.37 370.03
83.77 51.40
759.61 678.13
33575 303.99
30.84 2737
208.50 242.14
475.55 491.85
3118 48.70
194.95 180.91
17336 117.62
88.06 79.19
71.13 43.00
18.11 19.85
3848 5147
22,00 16.00
109.63 118.37
2438 3374
- 0.40

- 1937

3.07 [5.79
36.53 12.27
56.52 53.81

3.65 237
30.56 -
44.07 41.60

1,996.32 1,919.81
50.00 25.00

- 24.50

- 3.96
50.00 53.46
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Income-tax

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are:

Standalone statement of profit and loss:

Profit or loss section
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current income tax: .
Current income tax charge 1,360.11 1,168.76
Deferred tax:
Atiributable to origination and reversal of temperary differences (8.29) (31.04)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 1,351.82 1,137.72
OCI section ’ ;
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Re-measurement [osses on defined benefit plans 4.65 0,37
Deferred tax charged to OCI 4.69 0.37
Reconciliation of tax expense and the sccounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rute for 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Accounting profit before tax 5,292.42 3,312.99
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (31 March 2023: 25.17%) 1,332.00 833.82
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes:
Expenditure incurred on cancellation of Employee stock option plan - 241.55
Others 19.82 62.35
At the effective income tax rate of 25.54% (31 March 2023: 34,34%) 1,351.82 1,137.72
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 1,351.82 1,137.72

Deferred {nx

Deferred tax relates to the following:

Standalone Balance Sheet

Standalone statement of profit and loss

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Impact of difference between depreciation charged for financial 50.49 56.65 (6.16) (3.33)
reporting and expenses allowed for tax purposes
Lease liabilities 353.44 119.47 233.97 30,01
Right-of-use assets (351.30) (110.10) (241.20) (36.57)
Nun-dzductible expenses for tax purposc nilowed on puymuonl husis 43,55 37 A 5.86 2,11
Other items 36.83 16,32 20,51 39.15
Net deferred tax assets 133,01 120.03
Deferred tax income - 12.98 3141
Reconclllation of deferred lux asset (net)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Asat 1 April 120.03 88.62
Tax income during the period recognised in profit or loss 829 31.04
Tax income during the period recognised in OCI 4.6% 0.37
As at 31 March 133.01 120.03

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares

outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by
the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all

the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following table reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Profit attributable to the equity sharcholders 3,940.60 2,175.27
Iess: Dividend on fully convertible cumulative participative preference shares 0.00 0.00
Less: Profit atiributable to fully convertible cumulative participative preference shares 8994 20,49
Profit attributable for basic earnings 3,850.66 2,154.78
Add: Adjustment for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 89.94 20.49
Profit adjusted for the effect of dilution 3,940.60 2,175.27
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 40,67,870 39,95,647
Effect of dilution:
Weighted average nutnber of convertible preference shares 95,015 38,000
Weighted average number of cquity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 41,62,885 40,33,647
Eamings per share;
- Basic 94.66 53.93
- Diluted 94.66 53.93

There have been no other transactions involving equity shares or potential equity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of th;q»ﬁnancial
P |

statements.
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1
31 Leases i
Company as a lessee

The Company has lease contracts for vehicles and immovable properties used in its operations, Leases of vehicles generally have lease terms between 3 and 5 years, while
immovable properties generally have lease terms between 3 to 9 years, The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets,

The Company also has certain leases of machinery and testing equipment with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the ishort-term lease" recognition

exemptions for these leases.
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

Immovable Vehicles Total
properties

Asat 1 April 2022 556.68 25.97 582,65
Additions 224.79 - 22479
Depreciation expense {348.81) (21.22) (370.03)
As at 31 March 2023 432,66 4.75 43741
Additions 1,357.66 - 1,357.66
Depreciation expense (394.62) (4.75) (399.37)
As at 31 March 2024 1,395.70 - 1,395.70

Set out below aie the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Asat1 Aprl 467.21 593.89
Additions 1,307.45 216.00
Accretion of interest 81.74 70.37
Payments (452.20) (413.05)
As at 31 March 1,404.20 467.21
Current 364.05 297.95
Non-current 1,040.15 169.26

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate for lease liabilities is between 8.40% - 10.40% per annum, with maturities between financial year 2025-2031 for leasehold

properties

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Less than three months 122,78 10229
Three to twelve months 362.13 215,55
One to five years 1,183.93 149.26
More than five years 41.14 111,74

The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Depreciation expense of ripht-of-use assets 39937 370.03
Interest expense on lease liabilities 81.74 70.37
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 239.34 269.51

720.45 709.91

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 691.54 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: Rs. 682.56 lakhs). The Company has made non-cash
additions of Rs. 1,357.66 lakhs (31 March 2023; Rs 224,79 lakhs) and Rs, 1,307.45 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 216.00 lakhs) to right-of-use assets and lease liabililies,

respectively. There are no future cash outflows relating fo leases that have not yet commenced.

32 Contingent liabilities and commitments
32.1

Asat Asat
March 31,2024 March 3], 2023

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt:
Income tax matters (see Note (i) below)

Other legal matters (see Note (if) below)

Financial guarantees

Bank Guarantees

Notes:

337.62 210.06
79.81 79.81

4,243.99
4,661.42

3,762.61
4,052.48

®

()

(ii)

In respect of tax matters, the Company is contesting the tax litigations in respect of various years from FY 2008-09 to FY 2021-22 for several disallowances made by the tax
authorities. The Management, including its tax advisors, belives that it's position will likely to be upheld at various forums where the matters are pending. The Company has
reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in
its standalone financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial position,

The Company had received a frivolous claim and based on the advise of its legal counsel, the Company is of the view that the outcome of these proceedings will not have a
materially adverse effect on its financial position and accordingly, no provision is recognised in the financial statements,

During the year, the Company is one of the corporate guarantor and has issued a corporate guarantee to Vistara [TCL (India) Limited ("Debenture Trustee") on behalf of the
Holding Company, AXISCADES Technologies Limited, amounting to Rs. 21,000 lakhs (31 March 2623: Nil).
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33 i) Details of non-current investments purchased and sold:

a) Non-current investments purchased and sold during the current year

As a;;z‘;\pm . dul:il;;cr::?dear Sold t;'l:::g the Chanf:i] in fair Reclassification As M:(:zﬁmr‘!h
Investments in real estate fond 200.86 - (16.96) (21.27) - 162.63
b) Non-current investments purchased and sold during the previous year (Rs. in Lakhs)
Asat1 April Purchased  Sold during the Changes in fair Reclassification As at 31 March

2022 during the year year value 2023
Investments in real estate fund 203.92 - (6.55) 3.49 - 200.86

ii) Details of Current investments purchased and sold:

2} Current investments purchased and sold during the current year

CAsatl April Purchased  Sold during the Changes in fair Reclassification Asat3l March
2023 during the ycar year value 2024
Investments in mutual fund 2,453.21 10,865.00 (10,652.05) 117.78 - 2,783.94

b) Current investments purchased and sold during the previous year

As at 1 April Purchased  Sold during the Changes in fair Reclassification As at 31 March
2022 during the year year value © 2023
Investments in mutual fund 305.34 8,200.00 (6,085.16) 33.03 - 2,453.21
Investments in other fund 500.35 - (511.17) 10.82 -

34 Details of CSR expenditure

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 57.66 46.62
Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 5170 4743
Amount spent during the year ending on 31 March 2024: In Cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
(i) Construction or acquisition of any asset - - -
(i) On purposes other than (i) abolve (refer note 1 below) 57.66 - 57.66
Amount spent during the year ending on 31 March 2023; In Cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
(i) Construction or acquisition of any asset - - -
(ii) On purposes other than (i ) above (refer note 2 below) - 4743 - 47.43
Details of related party transactions - -
Details related to spent / unspent obligations: 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(i} Contribution to Charitable Trust 29.00 26.43
(i1) Contribution to other 28.66 21.00
(iiii) Unspent amount in relation to:

Ongoing project - -

Other than ongoing project - -

CSR expenditure has been incurred for promoting industrial consultancy and sponsored research, health & poverty.

Details of ongoing project and other than ongeing project for the year ended 31 March 2024
In case of 8. 135(6) (Ongoing Project)

Opening Balance as at 1 April 2023 R Amount spent during the year Closing
Amount requited Balance as at 31 March 2024
- to be spent
With Company In Separate CSR during the year From Company’s From Separate ~ With Company . In Separate CSR
Unspent Afc bank Alc CSR Unspent Afc

In case of S. 135(5) {Other than ongoing project) .
Opening Balance as at 1 April 2023 Amaount Amount spent during the year Closing Balance as at 31 March 2024

deposited in
Specified Fund .
ofSch,v___ Amoust eguied
With Company In Separate CSR durin 3111 car From Company's From Separate  With Company In Separate CSR
Unspent Afc ETEYEL Lank Ale CSR Unspent Alc
Unspent Afc

- - 57.66 57.66 -
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34 Details of CSR expenditure (continued)

Details of ongoing project and other than ongoing preject for the year ended 31 March 2023
In case of S. 135(6) (Cngoing Profect)

Opening Balance as at 1 April 2023 . Amount spent during the year Closing
Amount required Balance as at 31 March 2024
to be spent -
With Company In Separate CSR  dyring the year From Company’s From Separate ~ With Company In Separate CSR.
Unspent A/c bank Afc CSR Unspent Alc
- - 87 - 8.71 - -

In case of 8. 135(5) (Other than ongoing project)

Opening Balance as at 1 April 2023 Amount Amount spent during the year Closing Balance as at 31 March 2024
deposited in
Spesified Fund  Amtount required

of Sch, VIl to be spent
With Company In Separate CSR.  during the year From Company's From Separate ~ With Company In Separate CSR
Unspent Afc bank Alc CSR Unspent Afc
Unspent Afe
- - 46.62 4743 - - -

Notes:
1 Itincludes Rs. 0.81 lakhs excess spent in previous year ended 31 March 2023

2 It excludes Rs. 8.71 lakhs related to and not spent in the year ended 31 March 2022 but have spent in the year ended 31 March 2023.
3 Overhead expense of Rs. 2.83 lakhs (31 March 2023 Rs, 2.33 lakhs) incurred towards CSR activities is included in note no 25.

35 Related party disclosures

Nature of relationship Name of party
1, Ultimate holding company Jupiter Capital Private Limited

Holding Company AMISCADES Technologies Limited

Fellow subsidiary AXISCADES Aerospace & Technologies Private Limited
Explosoft Tech Solutions Private Limited
AXISCADES UK Limited
Cades Studec Technologies (India) Private Limited

Subsidiary companies Mistral Solutions, Inc., USA

Mistral Technologies Private Limited
Aero Electronics Private Limited®
Associate company Aero Electronics Private Limited*
*Subsidiary till 3 September 2023 and associate thereafter
2. Name of other related parties as per Ind AS 24 with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Managing Director Anees Ahmed (till 22 December 2022)

Director- Rajeev Ramachandra (stepped down w.e.f. 22 December 2022 and reappointed on 2 February 2023)
Chief Executive Officer and Director Mujahid Alam (stepped down w.e.f. 22 December 2022 and reappointed on 2 February 2023)
Director Arun Krishnamurthy (appointed w.e.f. 15 December 2023)

Director Shashidhar SK (appointed w.e.f. 1 December 2022)

Director Srinivas A (till 30 November 2022}

Director Sharadhi Chandra Babu Pampapathy

Director Ashok Radhakrishna Kamath (till 4 June 2022)

Independent Director Anuradha (appointed w.e.f. 3 June 2022)

Independent Director Mariam Mathew

Chief Financial Officer Anoop Agarwal

3. Transactions with related parties:

Nature of transactions Relationship Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Revenue from operations

Sale of products
Mistral Solutions Inc., USA Subsidiary 441.37 27523
System engineering and (raded sales
Mistral Solutions Inc., USA . Subsidiary 2936 -
Professional Engineering Services
AXISCADES Technologies Limited Holding Company 19.32 -
AXISCADES UK Limited Fellow subsidiary 382.66 2517

Mistral Solutions Inc., USA Subsidiary
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35 Related party disclosures {continued)

Nature of transactions Relationship Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Other Income
Income from support services
Mistral Solutions Inc., USA Subsidiary 12433 49.99
Interest Income
AXISCADES Technologies Limited Holding Company 221.87 -
Aero Electronics Private Limited Subsidiary - 396
Expenses incurred on behalf of
Mistral Solutions Inc., USA Subsidiary 3.74 7.48
AXISCADES Technologies Limited Holding Company 112.02 600.00
Explosoft Tech Solutions Private Limited Fellow subsidiary - 0.25
Purchase of goods/ services
Mistral Solutions Inc., USA Subsidiary 3,769.07 589.24
Cades Studec Technolopies (India) Private Limited Fellow subsidiary 6.46 -
Sales of support service and commission
Mistral Solutions Inc., USA Subsidiary 109.63 113.88
Services received from
Mistral Technologies Private Limited Subsidiary 127.50 128.22
Reimbursement of expenses by .
Mistral Solutions Inc., USA Subsidiary - 12.63
Advertising and sales promotion
AXISCADES Technologies Limited Helding Company - 20.62
Insurance expenses
AXISCADES Technologies Limited Holding Company - 11.37
Cancellation & settlement of ESOI's
AXISCADES Technologies Limited Holding Company - 1,414.44
Option premium on fair valuation of derivative (refer note 39)
AXISCADES Technologies Limited Holding Company (565.18) 565.18
Intercorporate deposits given to
Aero Electronics Private Limited Subsidiary - 20.08
Aero Electronics Private Limited (interest thereon) Subsidiary - 396
AXISCADES Technologies Limited Holding Company 3,200.00 -
Intercarporate deposits repaid by
Aero Electronics Private Limited Subsidiary - 45091
Investments
Aero Electronics Private Limited Subsidiary - 450.11
Key management personne! compensation
Short-term employee benefits Key Management Personnel 557.84 973.09
Post-employment defined benefit* Key Management Personnel 23.12 2248

This space has been intentionally left blank.
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35 Related party disclosures (continued)

36

Balances as at the year end:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Trade receivables

Mistral Sclutions Inc., USA Subsidiary 127,50 . -
AXISCADES UK Limited _ Fellow subsidiary 283.74 21.48
Trade Payables
Mistral Solutions Inc., USA Subsidiary 841.11 32592
Mistral Technologies Private Limited ) Subsidiary 10.56 -
Cades Studec Technologies {India) Private Limited Fellow subsidiary 1.24 -
Unbilled revenue
Mistral Solutions Inc., USA Subsidiary 133.76 14.30
Recoverable for reimbursement of expenses
AXISCADES Technologies Limited Holding Company - 600,00
Remuneration payable Key Management Personnel 116.92 5141
Loans to related parties
31 March 2024
Particulars Opening balance  Loans given Received  Loan outstanding terest receivable
AXISCADES Technologies Limited - 3,200.00 - 3,200.00 181.99
31 March 2023
Particulars Opening balance __ Loans given Received  Loan outstanding terest receivable
Aero Electronics Private Limited 426.87 24.04 (450.91) - -

*Does not include gratuity and compensated absences as these are provided in the books of accounts on the basis of acturial valuation for the Company as a whole and hence
invidual cannot be determined.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Cutstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and scttlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related panty
receivables or payables. The Impairment assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which
the related party operates.

Lozn to Holding Cempany )
The loan granted to AXISCADES Technologies Limited is intended for the purpose of meeting their working capital/corporate restucturing. The loan is unsecured and
repayable in full in thres years. Interest is charged at 11.5%. The loan has been utilized for the purpose it was granted.

Corporate Guarantee to Holding Company
During the year, the Compaiy is one of the corporate guamator and has issued a corporate guarantee to Vistara ITCL (India) Limited ("Debenture Trustee”) an behalf of the
Holding Company, AXISCADES Technologies Limited, amounting to Rs. 21,000 lakhs (31 March 2023: Nil).

Employee benefits

(a) Defined benefit contributions
The Company makes contribution to statutory provident fund as per Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952 for its employees. This is a defined
contribution plan as per Ind AS 19, Employee benefits. Contribution made during the year ended 31 March 2024: Rs, 402.25 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 335.05 lakhs).

(b) Defined benefit plans

The Company has provided for gratuity, for its employees as per actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary on the Balance Shezt date. The valuation has been
carried out using the Project Unit Credit Method as per Ind AS 19 to determine the present value of Defined Benefit Obligations end the related current service cost. Thisisa
defined benefit plan as per Ind AS 19,

The gratuity plan is govemned by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has campleted five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level
of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. The fund has the form of a trust and it is govemed by the trustees.

The trustees of the plan have outsourced the investment menagement of the fund to an insurance company. The insurance company in tumn manages these funds as per the
mandate provided to them by the trustees and the asset allocation which is within the permissible limits prescribed in the insurance regulations,

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary overtime. Thus, the Company is exposed to
various risks in providing the above benefit which are as follows:

a Interest rate risk
The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will
thus result in an increase in the value of the liability as shown in financial statements.
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36 Employee benefits (continued)
b Liquidity risk .
This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short-termn gratuity pay-outs. This may arise due to non avdilability of enough cash/cash equivalents to meet the
liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

¢ Salary escalation risk . i
The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of employees in future. Deviation in the rate of interest in future for
employees from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

d Demographic risk

The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of actual experience tuming out to be
worse compared to the assumption,

e Regulatory risk

Gratuity benefits are paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act,1972 (as amended from time to time), There is a risk of change in regulations

requiring higher gratuity pay-outs.
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows Gratuity
(i) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation: Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 749.94 735.25
Current service cost 76.46 68.96
Interest cost 53.63 49.13
Benefits paid (30.35) (86.14)
Actuarial gain arising from change in financial assumptions 19.18 (3267
Actuarial loss arising from change in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial loss arising from experience adjustments 23.07 16.02
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year ’ 891.93 749.54
(it) Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets:
Plan assets as at 1 April 673,55 627.00
Expected retum on plan assets 49.62 43.17
Returti on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) 23.62 (18.12)
Contributions by employer 76.39 108.24
Benefits paid (30.35) (86.74)
Plan assets at 31 March at fair value 792.83 673.55
(iii) Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability
Present value of obligation as at 31 March 891.93 749.94
Plan assets at 31 March at fair value 792.83 673.55
Benefit ability {99.10) (76.39)
Current 99.10 76.39
2. Components of expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss ’
Employee benefits expense
-Current service cost - 76.46 68.96
Finance costs
-Interest expense on defined benefit obligation 4.01 5.96
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year 80.47 7452
3. Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income
Recognised net actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in financial assumptions 19.18 (32.67)
Recognised net actuarial loss arising from change in demographic assumptions - -
Recognised net actuarial loss arising from experience variance 23.07 16.02
Actual returns on plan assets less interest on plan assets (23.62) 18.12
Re-measurement loss in other comprehensive income 18.63 1.47
4, Experience adjustment:
On plan liabilities loss ’ 23.07 16.02
On plan assets gain / {loss) 23.62 18.12)
5. Investment details: % Invested % Invested
insurer managed funds 99.89% 100.00%
Others 0.11% 0.00%
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36 Employee benefits (continued)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

6. The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity ebligations fer the Company’s plans disclosed below

Discount factor [Refer note (i) below] 7.20% 7.45%
Estimated rate of return on plan assets [Refer note (ii) below] 7.20% 7.45%
Aftrition rate:
Age related (Service related):
21-30 Years : 20.00% 20,00%
31-34 Years ' 15.00% 15.00%
35-44 Years 5.00% 5.00%
45-50 Years 3.00% 3.00%
51-54 Years 2.00% 2.00%
55-59 Years 1.00% 1.00%
Salary escalation rate [Refer note (jii) below] ' 8.00% until years 2, - &;Ottl);f; l:.lsl'll‘t'li
inclusive then 7.00% Y 0
Retirement age (in years) 60 60

The assumptions were developed by Management with the assistance of independent actuaries. Discount factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to
market yields of Government bonds that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the gratuity obligation. Other assumptions are based on current actuarial
benchmarks and Management’s historical experience,

7. Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

Within 1 year 110.53 60.03

1-2 year 87.69 . 69.88

2-3 year 104.60 77.02

3dvyear | 54.06 92.31

4-5 year ’ 85.10 43.29

5-10 year and above 1,566.21 1,445.76
Notes:

(i) The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield on Government Securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of obligations.

(i) The expected retumn on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factors mainly the composition of the plan assets held, assessed risks of asset
management, historical results of the return on plan assets and the Company's palicy for plan asset management.

(iii) The estimate of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such.as supply and
demand in the employment market.

Sensitivity analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, attrition rate, expected salary increase and mortality, The sensitivity
analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other
assumptions constant. The following table summarizes the impact of change in the defined benefit obligation resulting from the specified percentage change in the
aforementioned assumptions,

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

A, Discount rate

Discount rate -100 basis points 84.61 74.47

Discount rate +100 basis points ’ (72.56) 6397
B. Salary escalation rate

Salary rate -100 basis points (38.49) (33.15)

Salary rate +100 basis points 39.58 34.05
C. Monality Rate

Moerality rate -10% basis points (0.81) (0.75)

Morality rate +10% basis points . 0.80 075
D. Leaving Service Ratio .

Attrition rate -50% basis points (17.37) (21.52)

Attrition rate +50% basis points 12.26 15.67

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

There is no change in the method and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from previous years.
The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting peried is 9.02 years (31 March 2023: 9.19 years).
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Capital management .

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital inchides issued equity capital, convertible preference shares, securities preminm and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company, The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditicns. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital vsing a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, [ease liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio.

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total debt {incleding lease liability)* 205.03 -
Total equity 21,061.19 16,565.21
Gearing ratio : ) 0.96% -

*  For previous year, where the total debts are less than cash and cash equivalent, the net debts were shown as Nil.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

Share-based payments

Employee Stock Option Plan 2010

The Board of Directors of the Company approved the “Mistral Selutions Private Limited Employee Stock Option Plan 2010° on 15 July 2010 and it is effective from 1 April
2010, The options grented have vesting period in the range of 1 to 4 years.

The movement in the options under the plan is set out below;

Partienlars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Options outstanding as at beginning of the year - 3,63,000
Options granted during the year - -
Options vested during the year - -
Options forfeited during the year - -
Options exercised during the year - 2,62,500
Shares allotted against options exercised during the year - -
Optidns expired/relinguished during the year : - 1,00,500

Options outstanding at the end of the year - -
Options exercisable as at the end of the year - -
Weighted average price per option (Rs.) - 5

Fair Value Measurement:

* The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes valuation option-pricing model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the share

price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option. The Company has

. pranted Nil option (31 March 2023; Nil option) during the year.

39

During the previous year ended 3! March 2023, the Board of Directors had approved cancellation of 100,500 ESOP’s which were granted but not vested. AXISCADES asa
part of the acquisition had paid Rs 1,414.44 lakhs to the employees for the aforesaid cancelled ESOPs and 65,212 promised but not granted ESOP.
The Company in line with the Accounting Standards had recognized Rs. 362,61 lakhs as an expense for the cancelled ESOPs which were granted but not vested comprising
of the following;

- Rs. 189.49 lakhs — Difference between the zamount paid and fair value as on the date of settlement.

-Rs. 173.12 lakhs — Accelerated vesting of cancelled ESOPs.
The difference between the settlement date fair value and grant date fair value of Rs. 289.91 lakhs have been charged to other equity. Furthermore, the amount of Rs, 556,62
lakhs paid by AXISCADES for promised but not granted ESOP has also been recognized as an expense, The total amount paid by Axiscades amounting to Rs. 1,414.44
lakhs has been recognized as a credit to capital reserve.

During the previous year ended 31 March 2023, the holding company AXISCADES Technologies Limited (*AXISCADES’) had issued Non-convertible debentures ("'NCD")
amounting io Rs, 14,500 lakhs to Grand Anicut Fund II {*Investor”) for the purpose of completing the acquisition of Mistral Solutions Pvt. Lid. (‘Company’). Consequent to
issuance of the NCDs, AXISCADES entered into an investment agreements with the Investor and the same had been ratified by the Board of directors of the Company in its
146th board meeting on 13 March 2023, whereby the Company has granted to Investor the right to subscribe (“warrants’) to 4,14,039 partly paid compulsorily convertible
preference shares ("CCPS”) having a face value of Rs. 5.00 each, at a price of Rs. 969.11 at a pre-money equity valuation of Rs. 42,000 lakhs (*specified valuation’).

As per the agreed terms of the CCPS, between the Company, AXISCADES and Investor, approved by board of directors of the Company in its 146th board meeting on 13
March 2023, if the Investor has been able to liquidate the NCD within 36 months from the date of allotment, then at any time thereafter, the Investor/CCPS Holder, shall
have the right io cause the Company to buy back the securities held by the Investors at fair market value (FMV).

The above warrants have been classified as a derivative financial liability in terms of Ind AS 32. Accordingly, the Company have valved the share warranis as at the
transaction date at Rs. 565.18 lakhs and recorded liability through equity.

During the year, the Company has entered into an Amendment to Share Subscription cum Shareholders' Agreement dated 22 July 2023 on 29 September 2023, thereby
amending the terms of right of investment by the Investor, wherein the Investor is entitled to invest only upon discretion and consent of the Company and does not have
unconditional contractul ebligation to buy back these CCPS, Consequent to the aforesaid amendment, the derivative liability of Rs. 565.18 lakhs has been reversed during the
year ended 31 March 2024 to equity.
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Acconnting classification and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of finaneial assets and f

40 Financinl instruments - fair values and risk management

inancial lisbilities as at 31 March 2024, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

Particulars Carrying amount Fair value
. Derivative Other . .
Note FVIPL Fvoc] CSfumentsuot o calassets Ofherfnancial Totalearrying yoppyy  peverz  Lovel3
in hedging —amortised cost Liabilities amount
relationship
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investment in real estate fund 6 162,63 - - - - 162.63 - 162.63 -
Investment in mutual finds 6 2,783.94 - - - - 2,783.94  2,783.94 - -
2,946.57 - - - - 2,946.57  2,783.94 162.63 -
Financial assets not measured af fair value
Loans 7 - - - 3,200.00 - 3,200.00
Other financial assets 8 - - - 1,515.17 - 1,515.17
Trade receivables 12 - - . 6,996.15 - 6,996.15
Cash and cash equivalent 13 - - - 1,199.17 - 1,199.17
Bank balances other than ¢agh and cash 14 - - - 597.63 - 597.63
equivalent
- - - 13,508.12 - 13,508.12 - - -
There have been o transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2024.
Financial liabilities measured at fair vaiue
Other financial liabilities (Option premium on
fair valuation of derivatives) 19 - - - - - - - - -
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Lease liabilities 31 - - - - 1,404.20 1,404.20
Trade payables 138 - - - - 2,670.94 2,670.94
Other financial Liabilities 19 - - - - 711.77 711,77
- - - - 4,786.91 4,786.91 - - -
There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2024,
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2023, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.
Particulars Carrying amount Fair value
. Derivative Other . .
Note FVIPL Fvocl ‘OStUmentsnot o calagsety Otherfinancial Totalearrying  yoooy pevels  Levers
in hedging -amortised cost Tiabilities amount
relationship
Financial nssets measured at fair value-
Investment in real estate fund 6 200.86 - - - - 200.86 - 200.86 -
Investment in mutiial fimds 6 245321 - - - - 2,453.21 2,453.21 - -
2,654.07 - - - - 2,654.07 2,453.21 200.86 -
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Loans 7 - - - - - -
Other financial assets 8 - - - 912.38 - 912.38
Trade receivables 12 - - - 5,327.10 - 5,327.10
Cash and cash equivaleat 13 - - - 1,222.68 - 1,222,68
Bank balances other than cash and cash 14 - - - 1,446.63 - 1,446.63
equivalent
- - - 8,908.79 - 8,908.79 - - -
There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during year ended 31 March 2023,
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Other financial Liabilities (Option premium on
fair valuation of derivatives) 19 - - 565.18 - - 565.18 - - 565.18
- - 565.18 - - 565.18 - - 565.18
Fioancial liabilities not measured at fair value
Lease liabilittes 31 - - - - 467.21 467.21
Trade payables 13 - - - - 2,600.07 2,600.07
Other financial liabilities 19 - - - - 501.16 501.16
= - - - 3,568.44 3,568.44 - - -

There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during year ended 31 March 2023.




Mistral Solutions Private Limited .

Notes on standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

CIN: U72200KAI999PTCO25232 N
(All amounts in Rs. lakbs, unless otherwise stated)

40 Financial instruments = fair values and risk management (continued)

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a curent transaction between willing parties, other than in
a force liquidation sale,

The fair value of cash and cash equivaleats, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, loans, trade payables, lease liabilities and other financial assets and liabilities
approximate their carrying amount largely due to the short-term nature of these instraments. The Company's loans have been contracted at market rates of interest. Accordingly, the carrying
value of such loans approximate fair value, Investments in equity shares in subsidiary and associate is not appearing as financial asset in the table above being investment in subsidiaries
accounted under Ind AS 27, Seperate Financial Statements is scoped out under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments.

Tnvestments in tiquid and short- term mutual fands which are classified as FVTPL are measured using net assets value at the reporting date multiplied by the quanfity held.

Valuation technigue and significant unobservable input
Type Valuation technique Sigoificant unobservable inputs Range Inter-relationship between
significant unobservable inputs and
fair value measurement

Option premium on fair valuation of derivative Binomial option pricing  Exercise price per share Rs. 9692.10 These inpats would result in
model Risk fres rate 71% fair value loss on derivative
Sigma range 50.6% - 51.8% by Rs. 565.18 lakhs

Valuation process
The Corporate finance team has requisite knowledge and skills. The team headed by the Company CFO directly reports to the audit committee to arrive at the fair valve of financial
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40  Financial instruments - fair values and risk management (continzed)

Financial risk management [
The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and exccute its business strategies. The Company’s management risk policy is set by the Board.
The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company’s primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of
financial markets and seck to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. A summary of the risks have been given below.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign

exchange transactions and other financial instruments. The Company only deals with parties which has good credit rating/ worthiness given by external rating agencies or
based on Companys internal assessment,

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management.

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers primarily located in India, United States of America and Europe. Credit risk
has always. been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the
Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, Financfal Instruments, the Company uses expected credit loss model to
assess the impairment loss or gain. The provision for expected credit loss takes into account available external and internal credit risk factors including the credit ratings of
the various customers and Company’s historical experience for customers. .

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed below. The Company does not hold collateral as
security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables and contract assets as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and
industries and operate in largely independent markets.

Financial assets that are not credit impaired
The Company has financial assets which are in the nature of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, security deposits, interest acerued on fixed deposits and
other receivables which are not credit impaired. These are contractually agreed where the probability of default is negligible.

Financial assets that are credit impaired
Trade receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the type of each customer, Sirlce, the receivables from Government entities are sovereign in nature and
default rate will be remote, they are excluded from expected credit Joss, In monitering customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics,
including whether they are into defense sector or non defense sector, industry, trading history with the Company and existence of previous financial difficulties.

The Company’s expasure to credit risk for trade receivables by the type of counterparty is as follows:

Carrying amount 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Defence sector 5,179.87 3,865.96
Non defence secter 1,464.33 1,495.88
Related parties 411.24 21.48
7,055.44 5,383.32

The Company has calculated the impairment loss arising on account of past trends in the default rate for time bucket.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Out of the total trade receivables of Rs. 7,055.44 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs 5,383.32 lakhs) , the exposure considered for expected credit loss is Rs. 1,875.57 lakhs (31
March 2023: Rs. 1,517.36 lakhs). The balance which is not considered for impairment pertains to Government entities where default in collection as a percentage to total
receivable is low.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade and other receivables:

Gross carrying  Weighted average Loss
amount loss rate allowance
31 March 2024 :
Current (not past due) 1,236.45 0.23% 2.82
0-90 days 564.31 0.50% 2.83
91-180 days 42.22 62.17% 26.24
181-270 days 4,70 11.11% 0.52
271-365 days 1.54 34.56% (.53
> 365 days 26.35 100.00% 2635

1,875.57 59.29
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40  Financial instruments - fair values and risk management (continned)

Gross carrying Weighted average Loss
amount loss rate allowance
31 March 2023 -
Current {not past due) 952 44 0.01% 0,12
0-90 days 278.88 7.95% 22.17
91-180 days 204.71 0.23% 047
181-270 days 16.55 0.96% 0.16
271-365 days - 0.00% -
> 365 days 33.30 100.00% 33.30
1,495.88 56,22
Movement in the allowance for impairment in trade receivables 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 56.22 40.43
Amount provided for 21.52 2543
Amount reversal for (18.45) (9.64)
Amount utilised for - -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 59.29 56.22
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation,

The Cempany believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived, )

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payment ay year end:

Particulars

As at 31 March 2024

Less than 3 months

3 months - 1 year

1-5 years 5 years and above.

Dearvative financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (Option premium on fair valuation of derivatives)

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Lease liabilities 12278 362.13 1,183.93 41,14
Trade payables 2,670.94 - - -
Other financial liabilities 71177 - - -
3,505.49 362.13 1,183.93 41.14
Total financial liabilities 3,505.49 362,13 1,183.93 41,14
Particulars As at 31 March 2023
Less than 3 months 3 months - 1 year 1-5 years S years and abhove
Dearvative financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities {Option premium on fair valuation of derivatives) - 565.18 -
’ ] 565.18 -
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 102,29 215.55 149.26 111.74
Trade payables 2,600.07 - - -
Other financial liabilities 501.16 - - -
3,203.52 215.55 149.26 111.74
Total financial liabilities 3,203.52 215.55 714.44 111.74

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.
Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables. The Company is exposed to market risk
primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk. Thus, the exposure to market risk is a function of investing and bomowing activities and revenue generating and operating
activities in foreign currency, The objective of market risk management is to avoid excessive exposure in our foreign currency revenues and costs.

This space has been intentionally left blank.
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40  Financial instruments - fair values and risk management (continued)

Exposure to currency risk
The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk as reported to the management is as follows.
Particulars 31 March 2024

USD exposure  EURO exposure GBPF exposure
Trade and other payables . 1,842 49 - 1.69
Trade and other receivables 1,231.87 21434 283,74
Net exposure in respect of recognised assets and (liabilities) 610.62 (214.34) {282.05)
Particulars 31 March 2023

USD exposure  EURO exposure GBP exposure
Trade and other payables 1,652.64 22.70 0,50
Trade and other receivables 1,223,30 34,70 -
Net exposure in respect of recognised assets and {liabilities) 429.34 (12.00) 0.50
Sensitivily analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the US Dollar, Eure or GBP against all other currencies as at 31 March would have, affected the measurement of
financial instrurnents denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases,

. Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
31 March 2024 Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
USD (for 1% movement) 6.11 (6.11) 457 (4.57)
EURO (for 1% movement) (2.14) 2.14 (1.60) 1.60
GBP (for 1% movement) . (2.82) 2.82 (2.11) 2.11
’ 1.15 {1.15) 0.86 (0.86)
Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
31 March 2023 Strenpthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
USD (for 1% movement) . 4.29 (4.29) 321 (3.21)
EURO (for 1% movement) 0.12) 0.12 {0.09) 0.09
GBP (for 1% movement) 0.01 {0.01) 0.00 (0.00)
4.18 (4.18) 3.12 (3.12)

Price risk
The Company invests in mutual funds schemes of leading fund houses. Such investiments are suspectible to market price risks. However, given the short tenure of the
underlying portfolio of the mutual fund shcemes in which the Company has invested, such price risk is not significant.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company's financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The

Company does not have any leng term debt obligations with fleating interest rates, hence, is not exposed to any significant interest rate risk,
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41 Raftio analysis and its elements , '
“The following are analytical ratios for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

Ratio Numerator Denominator 315t March 2024 | 31st March 2023 | % change | FE24008 for
Current ratio Current assets Curreat Jiabilities 2.60 2,56 2%
Debt- equity ratio Total debt (including lease lishilities) Shareholder’s equity ao7 0.03 122%  |*

. . Eamings for debt service = Net profit after | Debt service = Interest & Lease o .
Debt service coverage ratio taxes + Non-cash operating expenses payments + Principal repayments 1061 6.59 2%
Return on equity ratio Net profit after taxes Average shareholder’s equity 0.21 0.14 0% [
Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average inventory 242 242 0%
Trade receivable turnover ratio  |Revenue from operations Average trade receivables 5n 531 4%
Trade payable turnover ratio Net credit purchases Average trade payable 595 4,95 20%

" " N Working capital = Current assets —

Net capital turnover ratio Revenue from operations Current liabilities 218 193 13%
Net profit ratio Net profit after taxes Revenue from operations 0.13 0,08 51%  |**
Refurn on capital cmployed Eamings before interest and taxes m".ﬁ,’g‘;ﬁ:’ Tangible net 024 0.20 20%
Retum ¢n investnrent Interest (Finance Income) Investment 0.04 0,02 84%  |***

Explanations have been given where the change in the ratio is more than 25% as compared to the preceding year.

Variance in the ratios is due to the following reasons:

# The variance is majorly dus to renewal/addition of leases during the year which has resulted in increase of the closing debt.

** Increase in profit during the year and the effect of cancellation of ESQP in the previous year resulted in increase in the net profit percentage during the year.
#%% Remm on investment - Hipher gains from mutual finds during the year resulted in increase in the return on investment.

42 Other statutory Infarmation

(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami propesty under the Benami
Trensactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and miles made thereunder,

(i) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(fes), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall; ’
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or oa behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarante, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{vi) The Company have not received eny fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including forelgn entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarzntes, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vii) The Company have not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority,
{viii) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961). .

43 In accordance with Ind AS 108, Operating Segments, segment information has been provided in the consolidated financial statements of the Company and no separate disclosure on
segment information is given in these standalone financial statements.

44 Transfer Pricing regulations for computing the taxsble income and expenditure from ‘international fransections’ between ‘zssociated enterprises’ on an ‘arm’s length’ basis, These
regulations, inter alia, also require the maintenance of prescribed documents and information including furnishing a report from an Accountant within due date of filing the Retum of
Income. The Company is in the process of updating the Transfer Pricing documentation for the financial year ended 31 March 2024 following a detailed transfer pricing study conducted
for the financial year ended 31 March 2023, In the opinion of the Management, the same would not have an impact on these financial statements. Accordingly, these financial statements
do not include the effect of the transfer pricing implications, if any.

45 The Company has used two accounting software for maintaining its books of account.
i) With respect to one accounting software, the Company has migrated to an upgraded version of accounting software from legacy accounting software during the year effective from 19
June 2023. The audit trail feature in respect of the legacy accounting software is not enabled. The upgraded accounting software used for maintaining its books of account has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the sofiware. There is no instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with in respect of upgraded accounting software,
ii) Further, the audit trail feature is not enabled for accounting software used for inventory management,

46 Standards notified but not yet effective
There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Mistral Solutions Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Mistral Solutions Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and
its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and its associate comprising of the consolidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other
comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of material dccounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of the subsidiaries and associate, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associate as at March 31, 2024, their
consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group and associate in
accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Other Information
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

5.R. Batliboi & Asscciates LLP, a Limiled Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. Aa8-4295
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
Group including its associate in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of their respective companies and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparmg the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective
companies to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of their respective companies.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group and its associate to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or

_ business activities within the Group and its associate of which we are the independent auditors, to

express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a staternent that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Other Matter

(©

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of two

subsidiaries, whose financial statements include total assets of Rs. 2,659.36 lakhs as at March 31,
2024, and total revenues of Rs. 6,185.57 lakhs and net cash outflows of Rs. 450.36 lakhs for the
year ended on that date. These financial statement and other financial information have been audited
by other auditors, whose financial statements, other financial information and auditor’s reports have
been furnished to us by the Management. The consolidated financial statemcnts also include the
Group’s share of net loss of Rs. 0.30 lakhs for the period September 04, 2023 to March 31, 2024,
as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of an associate, whose financial
statements, other financial information have been audited by other anditors and whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and
associate, and our report in terms of Sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associate, is based solely on the reports of such other auditors.

(b) The accompanying consolidated financial statements include unaudited financial statements and

other unaudited financial information in respect of one subsidiary, whose financial statements and
other financial information reflect total revenues of nil and net cash inflows of Rs. 3.00 lakhs for

‘the period April 01, 2023 to September 03, 2023. These unaudited financial statements and other

unaudited financial information have been furnished to us by the Management. Qur opinion, in so
far as it relates amounts and disclosures included in respect of the aforesaid subsidiary and our
report in terms of Sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiary, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements and other unaudited financial
information. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
Management, these financial statements and other financial information is not material to the
Group.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023, included
in these consolidated financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on May 21, 2023.

QOur opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other
financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and
on the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other
financial information of the subsidiary companies and associate company, incorporated in India, as
noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3(xxi) of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries and
associate, as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:
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(a)

(b)

(€)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid conselidated financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination
of those books and reports of the other auditors except for the matters stated in the paragraph (i)(vi) -
below on reporting under Rute 11(g);

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary
companies and associate company, none of the directors of the Group’s companies and its
associate, incorporated in India, is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company and associate company,
mcorporated in India, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure 2% to this report;

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the subsidiary
and associate, incorporated in India, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31,
2024 has been paid / provided by the Holding Company, its subsidiary and associate, incorporated
in India, to their directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Act;

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (DH(vi)
below on reportmg under Rule 11(g);

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial
information of the subsidiaries and associate, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:

i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group and its associate in its consolidated financial
statements — Refer note 32 to the consolidated financial statements; '
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ii.

iii.

iv.

Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts — Refer notes 17 and 42 to the consolidated
financial statements in respect of such items as it relates to the Group and its associate;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the [lolding Company, its subsidiary and associate incorporated
in India during the year ended March 31, 2024.

a) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary and associate
which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary and associate
respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and associate to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and associate
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary and associate
which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited -
under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary and associate
respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the respective Holding
Company or any of such subsidiaries and associate from any person or entity, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and associate shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary
and associate which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has
caused us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and
(b) contain any material mis-statement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company, its
subsidiary company and associate company, incorporated in India.
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vi. Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the respective
auditors of the subsidiary and associate which are companies incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, except for the instances discussed
in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements, the Holding Company, subsidiary and
associate company have used accounting software for maintaining its books of account
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded. Further, during the course of our
audit, we and respective auditor of the above referred subsidiary and associate did not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, in respect of
accounting software where audit trail has been enabled.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Suml Gaggar

Partnkr

MemBership Number: 104315
UDIN: 241943 15BKEXHM9223

Place of Signature: Bengaluru
Date: May 08, 2024
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Annexure 1 referred to in clause 1 of paragraph under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Re: Mistral Solutions Private Limited (‘the Holding Company’)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Holding Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we state that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditors Report) Order reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial
statements. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Holding Company. ‘

For 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants .
Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per SnanY Gaggar

Partngr

MembBershtp Number: 104315
UDIN: 431 5SBKEXHM9223

Place of Signature: Bengaluru
Date: May 08, 2024
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MISTRAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE
LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Mistral Solutions Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended March 31,
2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
of the Holding Company and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred
to as “the Group™) and its associate, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its associate, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding
Company considering the essential components of internal contro! stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective Company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both, issued by ICAI Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements.
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Chartered Accountants

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of Management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group and its associate, which are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained
in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
staterments and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL
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Chartered Accountants
Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, in so
far as it relates to the subsidiary and associate, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on
the corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiary and associate incorporated in India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Syni Gaggar

Partne

Membeégshiy Number: 104315
UDIN: 224643 1SBKEXHM9223
Place of Signature: Bengaluru
Date: May 08, 2024




Mistral Solutions Private Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
¥ CIN: U72200KA1999PTC025232

;
_(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated) |
|
|

N Asat Asat
otes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Assels
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 1,038.90 875.70
Intangible assets 5 231.36 154.13
Right-of-use assets 33 1,407.65 ' 826.76
Financial assets
Investments 6 750.08 200.86
Loans 7 4,000.00 500.00
Other financial assets 8 751.40 227.80
Deferred tax assets (net) 30 137.76 123.93
Non-current tax asset (net) 9 18332 183.99
Other non-current assets i0 1.20 6.03
8,547.17 3,099.20
Current assets
Inventories 11 6,826.98 6,493.88
Financial assets
Investments 6 2,783,904 245321
Trade receivables 12 7,183.93 5,537.11
Cash and cash equivalent 13 1,348.22 1,822.14
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 14 597.63 1,446.63
Other financial assets 8 676.92 679.15
Other current assets 10 4,547.94 5,764.58
) 23,965.56 24,196.70
Total assets 32,512.73 27,295.90
Equity and liabilities
Equity )
Equity share capital 15 203.39 203.39
Instrument entirely equity in nature 15 : 6.04 1.90
Other equity 16 22,646.06 17,738.04
Total equity 22,855.49 17,943.33
Non- current liabilities
Finaocial labilities
Lease liabilities 33 1,043.70 169.26
Provisions 17 163.13 141.50
1,206.83 310.76
Current liabilities .
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 33 37251 301.17
Trade payables 18
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 77.72 135.84
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 1,910.36 2,313.98
and small enterprses
Other financial liabilities 19 804.90 1,146.34
Other current liabilities 20 3,663.38 3,811.50
Provisions 17 1,070.04 1,032.83
Current tax liabilities (net) 551.50 294.15
8,450.41 9,041.81
Total liabilitics 9,657.24 9,352.57
Total equity and liabilities 32,512.73 27,295.90

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm registcation number: 101049W/E300004

Supi\Gaggar

Date; 08 May 2024

far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Mistral Solutions Private Limited
CIN : U72200KA1999PTC025232

\_/'4' r-""\————“‘//\ N

Rajeev Ramachandra Mujahid Alam
Director Chief Executive Officer and Director
DIN: 00178796 DIN: 02651595

Place: Phoenix, USA
Date: J8jMay 2024

Place: Los Angeles, USA
Date: 08 May 2024




Mistral Solutions Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: U72200KA1999PTC025232

{All amounts in Rs, lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from coantracts with customers 21 33,126.08 28,207.37
Other income 22 770.38 236.66
Total income 33,896.46 28,444.03
Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consiumned 23 13,403.71 10,016.26
Purchase of traded goods 24 2,267.19 3,419.82
Decrease/(increase) in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods 25 39.95 (226.46)
Employee benefits expense 26 9,636.95 9,231.01
Finance costs 27 98.71 79.84
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 768.32 696.48
Other expenses 29 1,893.55 1,823.35
‘Total expense 28,108.98 25,040.30
Profit before share in loss of an associate and tax 5,787.48 3,403.73
Share in loss of an associate, net of tax 0.30) -
Profit before tax 5,787.18 3,403.73
Income tax expense . )
Catrrent tax 30 1,456.85 1,190.63
Deferred tax credit 30 (8.9 (22.40)
1,447.88 1,168.23
Profit for the year 4,339.30 2,235.50
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement losses on defined berefit plans {16.32) (1.71)
Income tax effect 4.86 0.43
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods (14.46) (1.28)
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 18.00 63.42
MNet other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 18.00 69.42
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 354 68.14
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 4,342.84 2,303.64
Profit attributable to:
Cwmers of the Company 4,339.30 2,235.50
Non-controlling interests - -
Profit for the year 4,339.30 2,235.50
Other comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 3.54 68.14
Non-controlling interests . .
Other comprehensive income for the year 3.54 68.14
Tofal comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 4,342.84 2,303.64
Non-controlling interests - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,342.84 2,303.64
Earnings per share
Attributable to owners of the Company
Basic (Rs. 5 per share), computed on the basis of profit for the year 31 104.24 5542
Diluted (Rs. 5 per share), computed on the basis of profit for the year 31 104.24 5542
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date
for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Mistral Solutions Private Limited
irm registration number: 101049W/E300004 CIN : UT2200KA1999PTCO025232
L

.

—

Date: 08 May 2024

Rajeey Ramachandra
Director
DIN: 00178796

Place: Phoenix, USA
Date: 08 May 2024

Al’lqup % A
Chisf Figankial Officer

Place: Benghluru, India
Date: 08 EP’ 2024

Mujahid Alam
Chief Executive Officér and Director
DIN: 02651595

Place: Los Angeles, USA
Date: 08 May 2024




Mistral Solutions Private Limited .
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: U72200KA1959PTC025232

(Al amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 March 2024 '

a. Equity Share Capital
Equity shares
Equity shares of Re, 5 each Issued, subscribed and fully paid Number
in lakhs Amount
As at 1 April 2023 40.68 203.39
Add: Issued and subseribed during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 40.68 203.39
b. Instruments entirely equity in nature
. " hi . & fully pai Number
i) Scries B preference shares of Rs, 5 cach issued, subscribed and fully paid in lakhs Amount
Asat 1 April2023 0.38 1.90
Add: Issued and subscribed during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 038 1.90
ji) Serfes C preference shares of Rs. 5 each issued, subscribed and partly paid Number
i) Series C pre 5 o ssued, 1 partly pak in lakhs Amount
Asat1 April 2023 _ _
Add; Issued and subscribed during the year (partly paid-up, Rs. 1 each paid-up) (Note: 15) 4.14 4.14
Asat31 March 2024 4.14 4.14
Total instruments entirely equity in nature 4.52 6,04
For the year ended 31 March 2023
a. Equity Share Capital
Equity shares
Equity shares of Rs. § each issued, subscribed and fully paid Number
in lakhs Amount
As at'l April 2022 38.05 190.27
Add: Issued and subseribed during the year* (Note: 15) 2.63 13.12
As at 31 March 2023 40.68 203.39

* During the previous year ended 31 March 2023, the Company allotted 262,500 equity shares of Rs. 5 each aggregating Rs. 13.12 lakhs, consequent to the exercise of stock options by
employees of the Company under the “Mistral Solutions Private Limited Employee Stack Option Plan 20107,

b. Instruments entirely equity in nature

i) Series B preference shares of Rs. 5 each issued, subscribed and fully paid I::‘;:E;: Amount
As at 1 April 2022 ’ 0.38 1.90
Add: Issued and subscribed during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 0.38 1.90
ii) Series C preference shares of Rs, Nil each issued, subscribed and partly paid lzl“;: l]:l:: A t
moun
As at I April 2022 - -
Add: Issued and subscribed during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 - -
Total instruments entirely equity in nature 0.33 1.90

This space has been intentionally left blank.




Mistral Solutions Frivate Limited
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
CIN: UT2200KAI999PTC025232

{All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. Other Equity (refer note 16)
Far the year ended 31 March 2024

Reserves and surplus

Securities Share based Equity contribution by preference Capital Capital General Retained Foreign currency
premium payment reserve sod equity share holders on redemption reserve reserve earnings translation reserve Total
] : relinquishment of rights reserve
As at 1 April 2023 1,193.70 - 941.65 45.73 1,414.44 55,30 [3,938.61 148.61 17,735.04
Profit for the year - - - - - - 4,339.30 - 4,339.30
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans, net of tax - - - - - - (14.46) - (14.46)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign cperations- - - - - - - - 18.00 18.00
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 4,324.84 18,00 4,342.84
Option premium on fair valuation of derivative (refer note 42) - - - - - - 565.18 - 565,18
As at 31 March 2024 1,193.70 - 941.65 45.73 1,414.44 55.30 18,828,563 166,61 212,646.06
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Reserves and surplus
Securitics Share based  Equity contribution by preference Capital Capital General Retained Foreigo currency Total
premium paymient reserve and equity share holders on redemption reserve reserve earnings translation reserve
- relinquishment of rights reserve )
Asat 1 Apnil 2022 888.19 470.28 941.65 45.73 - 5530 12,55548 79.19 15,039.82
Profit for the year - - - - - - 2,235.50 - 2,235.50
Re-measurement losses on defined benefil plans, net of tax - - - - - - (1.28) - (1.28)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 69.42 69.42
Tolal comprehensive incom for the year - - - - - - 2,234.22 69.42 2,303.64
Share based payments to employees {refer note 26 and 41) - 403,14 - - 556.62 - (289.91) - 669.85
Transfer from share based payment reserve (refer note 41) 305,51 (873.42) - - 857.82 - - 289.91
Option premium on fair valuation of derivative (refer nate 42) - - - - - - (565.18) - (565.18)
As at 31 March 2023 1,193.70 - 941,65 45.73 1,414.44 5530 13,938.61 148.61 17,738.04
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Staternents.
As per our report of even date
for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Mistral Solutions Private Limited
Finn registration number: 101049W/E300004 CIN: U72200KA1999PTC025232
Rajeev Ramachandra Mujahid Alam
Director Chief Execitive Officer and Director
DIN: 00178796 DIN: 02651595

Place: Phoenix, USA
Date: 08 May 2024

Piace: Los Angeles, USA
Date: 08 May 2024



Mistral Solutions Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024

CIN: U72200KA1995PTC025232
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

|
| Notes Year cnded Year cnded
' 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
H
Operating activities '
Profit before tax ' 5,787.18 3,403.73
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 . 768.32 696.48
Share based payments to employees 26 - 403.14
Payment by Holding Company for cancellation of ESOPs promised but not granted - 556.62°
Gain on dilution of control in subsidiary . 22 (235.94)
Option premium on fair valuation of derivative 565.18 (565.18)
Fair value gain on financial instraments at fair value through profit and loss (net) 22 (110.50) (83.15)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 29 . 3.65 237
Advances written off 29 - 0.40
Provisions/liabilities no longer required, written back 22 (2.02) -
Reversal of loss allowance on trade receivables (net) 22 (18.88) -
Provision for doubtful debts 29 . - 15.79
Provision for warranties, foreseeable loss on contracts and others (net of reversals) 29 - 19.37
Net foreign exchange differences (unrealised) 27.59 (5.53)
Finance income (396.71) (141.25)
Finance costs 27 98.71 79.84
6,486.18 4,382.63
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase) in inventories (326.51) (1,754.30)
{Increase) in trade receivables (1,618.84) (478.61)
Decrease/(increase) in other assets including financial assets 1,408.84 (1,517.46)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables, other liabilities and provisions (942.82) 1,708.83
5,006.85 2,341.09
Income tax paid (net) (1,203.73) (919.14)
Net cash flows from operating nctivities 3,803.12 1,421.95
Investing activities .
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (622.22) (437.86)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 26.26 4.50
Purchase of units of mutyal fund (11,180.00) (8,975.00)
Proceeds from sale of units of mutual fund 10,998.39 7.417.69
Investment in fixed deposits {598.22) (55.86)
Redemption/maturity proceeds of fixed deposits 689.07 838.36
Interest received (finance incotne) 380.70 139.10
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (306.02) (1,0069.07)
Financing activities
Interest paid {15.94) (7.91)
Inter corporate deposits given 7 (3,500.00) -
Proceeds from issuance of preference shares 15 4.14 -
Payment of principal and interest portion of lease liabilities 33 (460.65) (432.63)
Net cash flows used in financing activities " (3,972.45) (440.54)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalent (475.35) (87.66)
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 1,822.14 1,888.66
Effect of exchange rate changes 143 21.14
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 13 1,348.22 1,822.14
Notes: -
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
a) Cash and cash equivalent include:
Cash on hand ' 0.26 0.30
Balances with banks
On current accounts 1,343.82 1,821.84
On Escrow account * 4.14 .
1,348.22 1,822.14




Mistral Solutions Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
CIN: U72200KA1999PTC025232

(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:
Opening balance of lease liabilities 470.43 614.77
Non-cash items
Additions to lease liability . 1,323.66 216.37
Others 82.77 71.92
Cash flows (460.65) {432.63)
Closing balance of lease liabilitics 1,416.21 470.43
Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
) Non cash financing and investing activities
Acquisition of Right-of-use assets (Note 31) 1,374.50 224.79
Changes in fair value of investment in mutual and other funds (Note 33) 110.90 83.15
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Conso]idatgd Financial Staternents.
As per our report of even date
for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP fdr and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Mistral Solutions Private Limited
irm fegistration number: 101049W/E300004 CIN: U72200KA1999PTC025232 y,
.
- —
Gaggar Rajeev Ramachandra Mujahid Alam
Director Chief Executive Officer and Director
ip Number: 104315 DIN: 00178796 DIN: 02651595
Place; Bengaluru, India Place: Phoenix, USA Place: Los Angeles, USA
Date: 08 May 2024 Date: 08 May 2024 Date; 08 May 2024
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Mistral Solutions Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financia! Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: U72200KAI999PTC025232
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

| 1 Corporate information:

The Consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Mistral Solutions Private Limited (the Company/ ‘Mistral’) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the Group) (CIN: U72200KA1999PTC025232) and an associate for the year!ended 31 March 2024, Mistral Solutions Private Limited is a company domicilied in
India, with its registered office situated at Bangalore. The Company was inéorporated on 20 May 1999 under the proyisions of the Indian Companies Act. The
Registered Office of the Company is "#60, Adarsh Regent, 100 Feet Ring Road, Domlur, Bangalore, Karnataka, India, 560071".

The Group is primarily engaged in rendering cnd-to-end services for product design and development in the embedded space. The Group offers design and
development services covering hardware and software, customizable product designs and IPs, system integration and other solutions that improve quality and
accelerate time-to-market for a broad range of embedded systems.

The Consolidated financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 08 May 2024.

Group Information
Information about subsidiaries

. Country of % of equity interest
Name .
Incorporation 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Mistral Technologies Private Limited (MTPL) India 100% 100%
Mistral Solutions Inc. USA 100% 100%
Acero Electronics Private Limited* India 74% 100%
Associate .

Aero Electronics Private Limited* India 4% 100%

*Sybsidiary till 3 September 2023 and associate thereafter (refer note 6)

2 Material accounting policies |
A. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation }
The Consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies |

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time}) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule III to the Companies Act,
2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule IIT}, as applicable to the Consolidated financial statements.

The Group has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as & going concern.

B. Functional and presentation currency

These Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs), which is also the parent company’s functional currency. All amounts have been
rounded off to two decimal places to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

C. Basis of measnrement
The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at
fair value:
- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value [refer accounting policy 3(f) relating to financial instruments]
- Share based payments

D. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2024, Control is achieved when the |
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the |
investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

» Power over the investee (i.c. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
» Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
» The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. Te support this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investes, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including;

» The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

» Rights arising from ather contractual arrangements

» The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

» The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of i
control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.

Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date

the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to contro! the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances, If a member of
the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the
Group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of conselidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended
on 31 March. When the end of the reparting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes,
additional financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the
subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.




Mistral Solntions Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

D. Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation procedure:

(8 Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries, For this purpose, income and
expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Busine
combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.

{c) Eliminate in fult intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or
losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may
indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise
from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting pelicies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and ligbilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a
subsidiary, it: -

P Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when contro! is lost

P Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

P Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

P Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

P Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

» Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

»Recognise that distribution of shares of subsidiary to Group in Group's capacity as owners

» Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings, if required by other In
ASs as would be required if the Group bad directly disposed of the related assets or liabilitics

E. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Group®s Consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and labilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilitics. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.
Judgements

In the process of applying the Group®s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the Consolidated financial statements

- Note 21 - revenue recognition: whether revenue from professional engineering service is recognized over time or at a point in time.

- Note 33 - leases: whether an arrangement contains a lease. Whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise extension options.

- Note 38 - measurement of defined benefit obligations - Key actuarial assumptions

Assumptions and estimation uncertainities

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the-reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are deseribed below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the Consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
accur.

- Note 30 - recognition of deferred tax assets; availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used;
- Note 33 - leases: lease term and incremental borrowing rate .

- Note 38 - measurement of defined benefit obligations: key acturial assumptions;

- Note 17 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;
- Note 44 — fair value measurement of financial instruments

- Note 4 and 5 - useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

-Note 6,7, 8, 12, 13 and 14 - impairment of financial assets

This space has been intentionaily Jeft blank.
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Mistral Solutions Private Limited
Notes on Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

F. Measurement of fair values |
Certain accounting policies and disclosures of the Group require the measdrcment of fair values, for both financial and non financial assets and liabilities.
The Gmﬁp has an established cuntml.ﬁ*amework with respect to the measullrement of fair values,
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy baéed on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:
- Leve! 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (ie. derived
from prices) ‘
- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inpus).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an
asset or a liability fall into a different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirely in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the Jowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

|

)

Further information about the assumptions made in the measuring fair values is included in the following notes:
- Note 38 - share-based payment; and :
- Note 44 - financial instruments

G. Current/ Non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current! non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when ~

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; .

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afler the reporting period.

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.
The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle,
3 Summary of material accounting policies
(a) Property, plént and equipment
Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Piant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction

projects if the recognition criteria are met. Repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred, The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non-
current assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under *Capital work-in-progress’. Subsequent expenditures relating to property,
plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon dispesal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain-or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference betweén the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The Group depreciates depreciates the following assets over their estimated useful lives using the written down value (WDV) method except for vehicles, The
estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Asset Useful Life

Plant and equipment 15 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computer system (including testing equipment)* 6 years

Fumniture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles* 6 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over its lease peried including renewable period or estimated useful life, whichever is shorter, on a written down value
(WDV) basis.

* Based on an technical assessment, the Management believes that the useful lives as given above represents the period over which Management expects te use the
assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule I of the Companies Act, 2013.

The expected useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at-least annually.

Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under development as at the balance sheet date.




Mistral Selutions Private Limited
Notes on Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
(b) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is

complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss unless such expenditure forms part of camrying value of another asset,

Others
Intengible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation:

Intangible assets are amortized on written down value method over their respective individual estimated useful lives commencing from the date the asset is available
to the Group for its use,

The estimated usefiil lives are as follows:

Asset Useful Life
Computer Software 6 years

The expected useful lives are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriate.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite.

Tntangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
teporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates, The amortisation expense on intangible assets with
finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipicnt obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

(c) Impairment
i Financial Assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contraciual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contrectual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are
provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in eredit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-locking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

ii. Noa - financial Assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account, If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which
the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifih year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing
rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which
the Group operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.
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Mistrat Solutions Private Limited
| Notes on Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March zuzf; (continued)

Summary of material accounting policies (continzed)
ii. Non - financial Assets (continued)

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there,!is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU"s recoverable amount, A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the camying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

{d) Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is or contains a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

AsaLessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises
lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets,

a) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, The cost of right-of-use assets
| includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straipht-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. If ownership of the right-of-use asset
transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

b) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments {including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of & purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the [ease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate,
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which
the eveht or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable, After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the
lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

c) Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less fiom the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-lerm leases are recopnised as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

(¢) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first

in, first out basis.

Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating

| capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first

in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale,

(D Financial instruments

i Recognition and initial measurement ‘ |
Trade receivables and debt securites issued are initially recognised when they are originated, All other financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair
value on initial recognition. Trade receivables that do not contain significant financing component are measured at transaction price. Regular way purchase and
sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.
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Mistral Solutions Private Limited
Notes on Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued) .

Summary of material accounting policies (continned)
Financial instruments (continued)

il Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial Assets

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset {s subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, : .

Financial assets al fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is echieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

Investment in subsidiaries & associales .
Investment in subsidiaries & associates is carried at cost in the financial statements.

Financial liahilities
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, For trade and other p.ayab]es maturing within one year from
the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments,

ill Derecaognition
Financial assels

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the coniractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the right to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or in which the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group enters into transactions whereby the transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractusl obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case,
anew financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value, The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished
and a new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv Offestting

Financial assets and financial labilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(g) Foreign currencies

The Group’s Consolidated financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Group’s functional currency.

Transactions and balances:

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifes for recognition.
However, for practical reasons, the Group uses average rate if the average approximates the actual rate ot the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional cucrency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange
differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-tnanetary iters measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or
loss arising on translation of non-monetary ilems measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or Joss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it} on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asse{ or
non-menetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Group companies

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements
of profit and loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. For practical reasons, the group uses an average rate to translate income
and expense items, if the average rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for
consolidation are recognised in OCL, On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular forgign operation is recognised in profit
and loss.
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Mistral Solutions Private Limited

Notes on Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

(h) Revenue Recogrition

i

—

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of th' goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for thote goods or services. The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its

revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services befor;e transferring them to the customer.

Revenue towards satisfection of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of the transaction price (net of variablé consideration) allocated to that
performance obligation.

The Group derives its revenue primarily from professional engineering services, sale of products and system engineering and traded sales.

Revenue from professional engineering services includes development contracts is cither on time-and-material basis or fixed price contracts. Revenue on time-and-
material basis is recognised as the related services are rendered. Revenue from fixed price contracts, where the performance obligations are satisfied over time and
where there is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of consideration, is recognised as per the percentage-of-completion method. When there is
uncertainty as to measurement or uitimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. Costs expended have been used to
measure progress towards campletion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity.

Revenue from sale of products is recognized at the point in time when control of the goods is passed to the customer. The point at which control passes is
determined based on the terms and conditions by each customer arrangement, but generally occurs on delivery to the customer. The contracts that Group enters into
relate to sales order containing single performance obligations for the delivery of goods as per Ind AS 115. Transaction price is the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods to a customer, Variable consideration is estimated using the expected value method or
most likely amount as appropriate in a given circumstance. Payment terms agreed with a customer are as per business practice and there is no financing component
involved in the transaction price. The Group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion
of the transaction price needs to be allpcated,

Maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the term of the underlying maintenance arrangement.

Provision for estimated losses, if any, on incomplete coniracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the current contract
estimates.

Other operating income includes benefits arising out of transactions from the operations at the Group where payment is not done by the Group. The same is
recognised when there is reasonable certainity about its realisation.

Revenue in excess of invoicing are classified as’ cantract assets (referred as unbilled revenue) while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract
liabilities (referred as deferred revenues).

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope or contract price. The accounting for
modifications of contracts involves whether the services added to an existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the Consolidated selling price.
Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative cateh up basis, while those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a
separate contract, if the additional services are priced at the Consalidated selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new contract if
not priced at the Consolidated selling price.

Income from support services is recognized and accounted in accordance with the terms of the agreement for service.

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a sherter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset. Interest income is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investment in assocfate

The group holds an interest in an associate, Aero Electronics Private Limited.

The financial statements of Aero Electronics Private Limited are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. The accounting policies are aligned with those
of the Group. Therefore, no adjustments are made when measuring and recognising the Group's share of the profit or loss of the investee.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence js the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence are similar to those necessary to determine control over the subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in ils associate are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is initially recognised
at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate since the acquisition date.
Impairments and reversals are presented within “Share of profit/(loss) of an associate in the statement of profit or loss.

The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations of the associate. Any change in OCI of investee is presented as part of the
Group's OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the
extent of the interest in the associate.

If an entity’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds ils interest in the associate (which includes any long-term interest that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the entity discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate, If the associate subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes
recognising its share of those profits only afier its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group's share of profit or loss of an associate is shown on the face of the statement of profit and loss outside operating profit.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting
policies in line with those of the Group

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its investment in its associate. At cach
reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share
of profit of an associate * in the statement of profit and loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or




Mistral Solutions Private Limited
Notes on Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

Summary of material accounting pelicies (continued)

(i) Income Tax
Tax expense comprises current tax expense and deferred tax.

i Current Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the ameunt expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates
taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax retuns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a
taxation authority will zccept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most
likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

it Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability' method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes at the reporting date, Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill ar an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences;

In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reversc in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recogmised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that isnota
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences;

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
recognised coly to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foresecable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at cach reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the Group relies on the same forecast assumptions used elsewhere in the financial statements and in other
management reports.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. :

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised utsidé profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
which intends either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered. :

(%) Provision and contingent liabilities
i General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) es a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group
expects some or all of 2 pravision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and Joss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money fs material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

i Warranty provisions

The Group provides warranties for peneral repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale, as required by law. Provisions related to these assurance-type
warranties are recoghised when the product is sold, or the service is provided to the customer. Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The initial
estimate of warranty-related costs is revised annually.
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Notes on Conselidated financial statcments for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

() Provision and contingeat liabilities (continued)

iif Onerous contracts |

If the Group has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision. However, before a separate
| provision for an onerous contract is established, the Group recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.
* An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the Group cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of
exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling a
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract (i.e., both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities).
Contingent Liability
Contingent liability is:
(a) a possible obligation arising from past cvents and whose existence will be confirmed only by the eccurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the entity or

<

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because;
-it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or
-the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.
() Employee benefits

i Defined contibution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Group makes specified monthly contributions towards government administered provident fund scheme.
Obligations for conteibutions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employce benefit expense in profit or lass in the periods during which the related
services are rendered by employees.

Provident fund
Contribution towards provident fund for certain employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Group has no further obligations. Such benefits are
classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Group does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on 2 menthly basis.

il Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in the carrent and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair
value of any plan assets.

The Group's gratuity plan is a defined benefit plan. The present value of gratuity obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial
valuations carried out by en independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional
unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The abligation is measured at the present value of
estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on
Government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the
asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in OCIL The Group determines the net intercst expense (income) on the net defined benefit lizbility (asset)
for the period by applying the discount rate used to measurc the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit
liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net
jnterest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

iii. Compensated leave
Compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date using the projected unit
credit method.

(m) Share-based payments

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is
recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and / or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

(n) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in manner consistent with the internal reperting provided 1o the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The director of the
Group is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments and accordingly is identified as the CODM.
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Mistral Solutions Private Limited
Notes on Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

(o) Cash and cash equivalents

(p) Earnings per share

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Basic eamnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of parent Group (after deducting preference dividends and
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entifled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid ‘equity share
during the reporting period, The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted-for events such as bonus issue, bonus element
in & rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares cutstanding, without a corresponding
change in resources,

For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the Group and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(q) Share capital

Incremental costs directly attributable fo the issued equity shares are recognised as a deduction from equity. Income tax relating to transaction costs of an equity
transaction is accounted for in accordance with IND AS 12.

(r) New and amended standards

(&)

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following
Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. The Group applied for the first-time these amendments.

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS &

The emendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been
clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Group’s Consolidated financial statements.

(i) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more uscful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their
*significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of
materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

“The amendments have had an impact on the Group®s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the
Group’s financial statements. )

(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12
The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences such as leases.

_The Group previously recognised for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. As a result of these amendments, the Group has recognised a separate deferred tax asset

in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability in relation to its right-of-use assets, Since, these balances qualify for offset as per the requirements of
paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12,there is no impact in the balance sheet. There was also no impact on the opening retained earnings as at | April 2022,

Apart from these, consequential amendments and editorials have been made to other Ind AS like Ind AS 101, Ind AS 102, Ind AS 103, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 109, Ind
AS 115 and Ind AS 34,

Climate — related matters .

The Group considers climate-related matters in estimates and assumptions, where appropriate. This assessment includes a wide range of possible impacts on the
Group due to both physicat and transition risks. Even though climate-related risks might not currently have a significant impact on measurement, the Group is
closely monitoring relevant changes and developments, such as new climate-related legislation,
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Mistral Solutions Private Limited

CIN: UT2200KA1995PTC025232
{All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

4 Property, plant aad equipment (FPE)

Cost

Asat 1 April 2022

Additions

Disposals

Other adjustments (refer note 1 below)
As at 31 March 2023

Additions

Disposals

Other adjustments (refer note 1 below)
As at 31 March 2024

Depreciation

Asat | April 2022

Charge for the year

Disposals

Other adjustments (refer note 1 below)

As at 31 March 2023

Charge for the year

Disposals

Other adjustments (refer note 1 below)
As at 31 March 2024

Net book value

As at 31 March 2024
As at 31 March 2023

Notes:

Details of properties pledged are as per note 13.

3 Capitalised borrowing cost

Capital work in progress (CWII')
As at 31 March 2024

Projects in progress
Total
As at 31 March 2023

Projects in progress
Total

2 Property, plant and equipment pledged as security

No borrowing costs are capitalised during the year ended 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: Nil),

1 Represent adjustments consequent to foreign exchange translation of property, plant and equipment in foreign geographies.

Plant and Office Furniture and Computer Vehicles Test Leaschold Total
equipment equipment fixtures system equipment improvements
331.10 49,20 71.47 485.10 375.37 33525 5732 1,704.81
10.15 18.71 7.82 55.28 144,15 34.83 38.09 309.03
- - - (349 (28.83) - - (32.32)
- 0.36 0.13 1.95 - - - 2.44
341.25 68.27 7942 538.84 490.69 370.08 95,41 1,983.86
6.74 9.35 0.02 130,58 258.29 47.36 2390 476,24
(16.92) (0.42) (0.51) (0.70) (76.49) (1.63) (5.50) (102.17)
- 0.07 0.02 0.40 - - - 049 .
331.07 71.27 78.95 669.12 672.49 415.81 113.81 2,358.52
65.29 34.15 37.99 312.65 138.70 256.36 28,05 873.19
46.15 11.40 16.82 68.68 5842 27.42 29,38 258.27
- - - (2.55) (22.91) - - (25.46)
- 0.36 0.11 1.79 - - - 2.26
111.44 4591 54.92 380.57 17421 283.78 5743 1,108.26
3873 9.92 823 76.69 2810 33.57 2242 277.66
(12.84) (0.38) (0.51) (0.61) (51.19) (1.23) - (66.76)
- 0.07 0.02 0.37 - - - 046 - — -
137.33 55.52 62.66 457,02 211.12 316.12 79.85 1,319.62
193.74 2175 16.29 212.10 461.37 99.69 33.96 1,038.90
229.81 22.36 24.50 158.27 316.48 86.30 37.98 875,70
1 April 2023 Additions during Capitalised during 31 March 2024
the year the year
- 23.90 (23.90) -
- 23.90 {23.90) -
1 April 2022 Additions during Capitalised during 31 March 2023

There is no project whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

the year the year
- 21.08 (21.08)
- 21.08 (21.08)




Mistral Solutions Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
CIN: U72200KA1999PTC025232

(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5 Intangible assets

Cost

Asat 1 April 2022
Additions

Disposals

As at 31 March 2023
Additions

Disposals

As at 31 March 2024

Depreciation

Asat 1 April 2022
Charge for the year
Disposals

As at 31 March 2023
Charge for the year
Disposals

As at 31 March 2024

Net book value
As at 31 March 2024
As at 31 March 2023

Computer Total
software

301.32 30132
112.88 112.88
414.20 414.20
161.50 161.50
575.70 575.70
208.67 208.67

51.40 51.40
260.07 260.07

83.77 83.77
343.84 343.84
231.86 231.86
154.13 154.13

Refer note 13 for details of intangible assets pledged as security
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Mistral Solutions Private Limited )
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cnnﬁfnued)

CIN: U72200KA1999PTC025232 I
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

i
Investments | ¢

I Asat Asat

31 March 2024 31 Mavch 2023

Non-current
Ungtioted investments
Investnient in equity shares of associate carried at cost:
Aero Electronics Private Limited & 627.41 -
70,688 equity shares {31 March 2023: 70,688) of Rs.5 each, fully paid up '
Total investment carried at cost 627.41 -
Investments at fair value through FYTPL
Imvestment in real estate fund 162.67 200.86
Total FVTPL investments 162.67 100.86
Total non-current investments 790.08 200.86
Current
Quoted investments
Investments at fair value through FVTPL .
Investment in mutual funds 2,783.94 2,453.21
Total FVTPL investments 2,783.94 2,453.21
Total current investments 2,783.94 2,453.21
Aggregate value of investments . 3,574.02 2,654.07
Agpregate value of unquoted investments 790.08 200.86
Aggregate book vahie of quoted investments 2,783.94 2,453.21
Aggregate market value of quated investments 2,783.94 2,453.21

Aggregate provision for impainment in value of investments -

Refer note 13 for details of investments pledged as security

~ As per the Shareholders’ Agreement and Share Subscription Agreement (“Share Agreements”) between the Company, Acro Flectronics Private Limited (“Aero Electronics”), a subsidiary of
the Company and third-party Investor (*Investor, it is agreed between the parties to issue 67,900 Equity Shares and 89,486 Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares of Aero Electronics to
the Investor for o purchase consideration aggregating Rs. 1,397.59 lukhs tmd the Tnvustor is entitled to appoint and remeve the majority of directars on the Board of Directors of Aero
Electronics. Accordingly, the Group has lost control over Aero Electronics but continues to exercise significant influence over Acro Electronics and henee accounts for the investments in Aero
Lilectronics as an associate with cffect from 04 September 2023. As per Ind AS 110, Consvlidated Financial Statements, the Group fair valued its retained investment in Aero Electronics (based
on as independent valuers report) on the date of loss of control which resulted in a dilution gain of Rs. 235 94 Inkhs and disclosed under other income in the Consolidated Statement of Profit

and loss.
Loans
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non-current
{carried at amortised cost)
Unsecured
Considered geod:
Loan to a Holding compasny (refer note 37) 3,500.00 -
Lozn to a fellow subsidiary (refer note 37) 500.00 500.00
4,000.00 500.00
Disclosure required under Sec 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013
Included in loans are certain intercorporate deposits the particulars of which are disclosed below as required by Sec 186(4) of the Compantes Act 2013
Name of the Ioanee Rate of interest Due date Secured/ Asat Asat
unsecured 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
AXISCADES Technologies Limited 11.50% 10 May 2026 Unsecured 1,500,060 -
AXISCADES Technologies Limited 11.50% 03 December 2026 Unsecured 1,700.00 -
AXISCADES Technologies Limited 11.50% 03 December 2026 Unsecured 300.00 -
Axiscades Aerospace & Technologies Private Limited 9.00% 02 February 2026 ~ Unsecured 500.00 500,00
4,000.00 500.00

(i) The loan has been utilized for meeting their working capital requirements/cerporate restructuring.

(i5) Loans are non-derivative financial assets which generate a fixed interest income for the group and are mensured at amortised cost. The carrying value may be affected by changes in the credi

risk of the counterparties.
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Mistral Solutions Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financin! Stotements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continned)
CIN: U72200KA1995PTC025232

{All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Other financial assets
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non-current
(carried at nmorfised cosf}
Unsecured, considered good
Security dzposits 183,75 227,80
Margin Meney deposit with bank against working capital loan 375.54 -
Interest accrued but not due from related parties (refer note 37) [92.11 -
751.40 227.80
Current
(carried at amortised cost)
Unsecured, considered good
Esmest money deposit (mainly includes tender deposits and deposits with Govenunent zuthorities) 268 4.00
Interest accneed but not due 31.29 32.01
Unbilled revenue 30.10 6.64
Security deposits 55.62 -
Margin Money deposit with bank against working capital loan 382.60 -
Other receivables from related partizs (refer note 37) - 600.00
Liquidated damages recoverable from customers 153.69
Others 20.94 36.50
676.92 679.15
Refer note 13 for details of other financial assets pledged as security
Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost
Loutes (Non-vwieut) (efer iole 7) 4,000,00 sno,on
Trade receivables (Current) (refer note 12) T.183.93 5,537.11
Cash and cash equivalent (refer note 13) 1,348.22 1,822.14
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivaleat (refer note 14) 597.63 1,446.63
Onber financial assets (Cument and Won-carrent) (refer notz 8) 1,428.32 906.95
14,558.10 10,212.83
Non-current tax asset, net
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advance income tax 188.32 183.9%
188.32 __183.99
Other nsscts
h As at Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid expenses

Current

Unsecured, considered good
Duties and taxes recoverable
Export incentive receivable
Prepaid expenses
Advance to suppliers
Advance to employces
Contract assets
Deferred rent
Cther advances

Refer note 13 for details of other assets pledged as security

This space has been intentionally lefi blank.

1.20 6.03
1.20 6.03
270.50 1,031.39
I . 72,79
208.40 199.09
78425 357.19
10.58 8.01
3,200.75 4,076.00
0.67 0.96

- 19.15
4,547.94 5,764.58




|
'
Mistral Solutions Private Limited ‘
Notes to Consolidated Financinl Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
CIN: U72200KA1999PTCO25232 !
(All amounts in Rs. lakbs, unless otherwise stated) I

i

Inventories (at the lower of cost and net realisable value)

12

Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Raw material / components [fncluding goods-in-transit of Rs, 77.07 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 112.44 lakhs]] 524418 4,871,13
Waork-in-progress ' 1,080.88 818,08
Finished goods - 401.30 656,90
Stock-in-trade [including goods-in-transit of Rs. 39.09 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 28.96 lakhs)] 100.62 147.77
6,826.98 6,493&
Valus of inventories abovs is stated after provisions for obsolescence/slow moving of Rs. 1,380.28 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 1092.77 lakhs).
Refer note 13 for details of inventories pledged as security
Trade receivables
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current
Trade receivables from other parties 6,900.19 5,515,63
Trade receivables from related parties (refer note 37) 283.74 21.48
Tota! trade receivables 7,183.93 5,537.11
Break-up for security details:
Secured, consideréd good - -
Unsecured, considered good 7,183.93 5,537.11
Trade receivables, which have significant increase in credit risk 46.85 78.17
Trade receivables - credit impaired 12.44 -
7,243.22 5,615.28
Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade receivables, which have significant increase in credit risk (46.85) (78.17)
Trade receivables - credit impaired (12.44) -
Total trade receivables 7,183.93 5,537.11
Trade receivahles apeing schedule
As at 31 Morch 2024
Unbilled Corrent but Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
{Included in not due Less than 6 6 Months to 1 12Y 2.3 More than Total
nofe 8) Months Year A yeard 3 Years o
Undisputed trade receivables  cansidered good 30.10 3,428.80 3,712,05 35.75 7.33 - 7.183.93
Undisputed trade reccivables - which have . 233 468 105 3829 . - 46.85
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - 1244 12.44
Disputed trade receivables — considered good - - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables — which huve signiGicuul } . _ . : _ )
inerease in eredit risk
Disputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - - -
Total 30.10 3,431,63 3,716.73 36.80 45.562 - 12.44 7,243.22
As at 31 March 2023 .
Unbilled . Cutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
. Current but
(Included in not due Less than 6 6 Months to [ 1Y 23 More than
note 8) Months Year ears years 3 Years Total
Urdisputed trade receivables — considered goad 6.64 2,224,138 3,196,21 98.79 852 9.41 - 5,537.11
g;ﬂ;‘ﬂiﬁii:ﬁ‘;ﬁ’; . hich have - 012 2264 0.16 10.86 2.4 21.95 72,17
Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - - .
Disputed trade receivables = considered good - - B - - - - .
Disputed trade receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk B h - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - - .
Total 6.64 2,224.30 3,218.85 98.95 19.38 31.85 21.95 5,615.28
No trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the group either severally or jointly with any other person.
For terms and conditions relfating to related party receivables, refer nete 37,
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.
Set out below is the movement in the allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables: As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
As at | April 78.17 77.17
Provision/(reversal) for expected credit losses (18.88) 1.00
Asat3] March 59.29 7817

Refer note 13 for details of trade receivables pledged as security
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Nates to Consolidated Financiol Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
CIN: UT2200KA1999PTC025232

(All amounts in Rs, lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Cash and cash equivalent
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balances with banks:
- On current accounts * 1,343.82 1,821.84
- On Escrow accouat” 4.14 -
Cash on hand 0.26 0,30
1348.22 1,822.14

* includes debit balance in cash eredit of Rs. 962,66 lakhs (31 March 2023; Rs, 836.32 lakhs)

- Total Limits sanctioned (including non workdng capital) is Rs. 4,930.00 lakhs (31 March 2023 Rs. 4,730.00 lakhs)
- first pari-pasu charge on receivables, current assets and Oxed assets of the Group. The quarterly returns or staternents filed by the Group against the sanctioned working capital limits with
bariks are in agreement with the books of accounts.

- Cash credit rate of interest - HDFC Bank Limited "10.4%", Axis Bank Limited "Repo + 3.75%", Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited "Repo + 3.75%"
~amount received from proceeds of issuance of preference shares during the year which is to be utilised for the purpose for which it is received. Refer note no. 15 ¢ (iii) for details.

At 31 March 2024, the Group has Rs. 676.41 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 963.17 lakhs) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities available.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent comprise the following:

As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balances with banks:
- On current accounts * 1,343.82 1,821.84
- On Escrow account™ 4.14 -
Cash on hard 0.26 0.30
1,348.22 1,822.14
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent
Asat Asat
31 Morch 2024 31 March 2023
Margin money deposits (with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months) 597163 1,543.20
Bank deposits (with original maturity of more than 3 moaths but less than 12 months) - 103.43
597.63 1,446.63

Refer note 13 for details of bank balance other than cash and cash equivalent pledged as security
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Mistral Solutions Private Limited )
Nutes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
CIN: U72200KA1999PTC025232 ,
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated) |

Share capital

Asat . Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
{in lakhs) {in 1akhs)

Authorized share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 5 each 60.00 300.00 60.00 300,00
Preference shares of Rs. 5 each 10,00 50.00 10.00 50.00

70,00 350.00 70.00 350,00

‘Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 5 per share. Each holder of equity shares i entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares
and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend propesed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

b (i) Terms/ rights attached to preference shares

<

c(ii)

(i) Series B preference shares

The Company has 38,000 (31 March 2023: 38,000) Fully Convertible Cumulative Participative Preference Shares (FCCPPS) of Rs. 5 each at a premium of Rs. 225 ¢ach per
share outstanding as at the end of the year.

Each Series B preference share has a par value of Rs. 5 and is convertible upon the first occurrence of: (a) the majority investors consenting to such conversion; (b) the
closing of an underwritten public offering of the Company’s equity shares at a minimum valuation specified in the Sharcholders Agreement dated 7 January 2008 (‘the
Series B Agreement”); or (c) on 30 June 2027. The preference shares carry a dividend of 0.01% per annum. The dividend rights are cumulative. In addition, FCCPS are
entitled to participate in the distribution of the profits of the Company to the other sharehelders of the Company as per the Agreement.

In the event of any liquidation event (defined in the Series B Agreement), to the extent Series B preference shares are not converted into equity shares, the holders of Series
B preference shares shall Have a preference over the other shareholders of the Company (including the founders and the other sharcholders and any remaining equity
shareholders, including the investors' equity shares) for return of capital as set out in the Series B Agreement. ’

(i) Series C preference shares

The Company has issued 414,039 Convertible Cumulative Participative Preference Shares {CCPS) of Rs. 5 each at a premium of Rs. $64.11 per share (partly paid-up of Rs.
1 each aggregating Rs. 4.14 lakhs) to Grand Anicut 2 as per the Shareholders Agreement dated 22 July 2023 and amended Shareholders Agreement dated 29 September
2023 (collectively “the Series C Agreements’), As per the amended Sharcholders Agreement dated 29 September 2023, the unpaid monies for the Serjes C preference shares
shall be called by the Board of the Company, at its sole discretion and further it is agreed that the Company shall not as an obligation but only on best endeavour basis
provide exit to the investor upon receipt of request from the investor.

Each Series C preference share has a par value of Rs. 5 and is convertible at the option of the shareholders into Equity shares of the Company on receipt of final investment
amount as specified in the Series C Agreements in the ratio of one equity share for each Series C preference share held. In the event the conversion option is not exercised
by the shareholders, preference shares will be automatically converted into one equity share for every one Series C preference share held upon the first occurrence of: (a)
Liquidity event in the Company as specified in the Series C Agreements; (b) one day prior to the expiry of five years from the date of receipt of final investment amount. The
preference shares carry a dividend of 0.01% per annum. The dividend rights are cumulative, In addition, Series C preference shares are entitled to participate pari-passu in
any cash or non-cash dividends paid to the holders of shares of all other classes, on an as-if converted basis. Till such time that the Series C preference shares remain partly
paid, the dividend payable shall be apportioned and paid proportionately to the amounts paid or credited as paid during any portion or portions of the period in respect of
which the dividend is paid.

Subject to the Subscription Shares being fully paid up, in the event of occurence of a liquidation event {other than a liquidity event defined in the Series C Agreements), the
investor shall be entitled to reccive, in preference to the Promoter, the higher of: (i) an amount equal to one time of the investment amount plus any accrued and unpaid
dividends; or (ji) any amounts to be distributed on a pro-rata basis amongst all shareholders. In the event the proceeds from liquidation are inadequate to pay the amounts in
full to the Series C preference share holders, the entire proceeds from liquidation shall be granted to the Series C preference share holders. It is clarified that the Series C
preference share holders shall be entitled to the preference on and from the date on which the subscription shares are fully paid up.

Issued equity capital

Equity shares of Rs. 5 each issued, subscribed and fully paid Number of shares Amount
(in 1akhs)

As at 1 April 2022 : 3805 190.27

Changes during the year* 2.63 13.12

As at 31 March 2023 40.68 203.39

Changes during the year - -

As at 31 March 2024 40.68 203.39

* During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company allotted 262,500 equity shares of Rs. 5 each aggregating Rs. 13,12 lakhs, consequent to the exercise of stock options
by employees of the Company under the “Mistral Solutions Private Limited Employee Stock Option Plan 20107,

Issued convertible preference shares of Rs. 5'each issued and fully paid

Series B mandatorily convertible cumulative participative preference shares of Rs. 5 each issued, subscribed and fully paid Number of shares Amount
(in lakhs)

Asat 1 April 2022 0.38 1.90

Changes during the year - -

As at 31 March 2023 0.38 1.90

Changes during the year - -

As at 31 March 2024 0.38 1.90
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15 Share capital (continued)
¢ (it Issued convertible preference shares of Rs. 5 each issued and partly paid

Series C mandatorily convertible cumulative participative preference shares of Rs. 5 each issued, subscribed and partly paid Number of shares Amount
(partly paid-up, Rs. 1 each paid-up) _(in lakhs)
Asat 1 April 2022 Co- -
Changes during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 - -
Changes during the year 4.14 4.14
As at 31 March 2024 4.14 4.14
Shares held by holding company and its subsidiary
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Out of equity and preference shares issued by the Company, shares held by its Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
holding company and its subsidiary are as below: (in lakhs) (in Iakhs)
Axiscades Technologies Limited, a Holding Company
-Equity shares 23.64 118.21 23.56 117.81
- Series B preference shares 0.38 1.90 038 1.90
Explosoft Tech Solutions Private Limited. a fellow subsidiary 16.79 83.97 16.79 83.97
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares:
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Name of the Shareholder Number of shares % holding in the Number of shares % holding in the

(In lakhs) class (in lakhs) class
Equity shares of Rs. 5 each, par value
Axiscades Technologies Limited, a Holding Company 23.64 58.12% 23.56 57.92%
Exnlosoft Tech Solutions Private Limited. a fellow subsidiary 16.79 41.28% 16.79 41.28%
Series B mandatorily convertible cumulative participative preference of Rs. 5 each, par value
Axiscades Technologies Limited, a Holding Company 0.38 100.00% 038 100.00%
Series C mandatorily convertible cumulative participative preference of Rs. 5 each, par value
Grand Anicut Fund 2 4.14 100.00% - 0.00%

The Company has not issued any bonus shares or bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

The Company has not issued any shares for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

Shares reserved for issue under options

For details of shares reserved for issue under the “Mistral Solutions Private Limited Employee Stock Option Plan 20107, please refer note 41.

For details of shares reserved for issue on conversion of convertible preference shares, refer note "Terms/ rights attached to preference shares” above.

Details of shares held by promoters

As at 31 March 2024

Promoter Name No. of shares in Change during  No.ofsharesin % of tofal Shares % change during

Iakhs at the the year lakhs at the end of the year
beginning of the the year

Equity shares of Rs. 5 each, par value |
Axiscades Technologies Limited 23.56 0.08 23.64 58.12% 0.34% |
Explosoft Tech Solutions Private Limited 16.79 - 16.79 41.28% 0.00% |
Series B mandatorily convertible cumulative
participative preference of Rs. 5 each, par value
Axiscades Technologies Limited 0.38 - 038 100.00% 0.00%
As at 31 March 2023

Promoter Name No. of shares in Change during  No. of shares in % of total Shares % change during

Iakhs at the the year lakhs at the end of the year
beginning of the the year

Equity shares of Rs. 5 each, par value
Anxiscedes Technologies Limited . 16.33 7.23 21.56 57.92% 44.31%
Explosoft Tech Solutions Private Limited 16.79 - 16.79 41.28% 0.00%
Anees Ahmed 295 (2.95) - 0.00% -100.00%
Series B mandatorily convertible cumulative
participative preference of Rs. 5 each, par value
Axiscades Technologies Limited - 0.38 0.38 100.00% 100.00%
Anees Ahmed 0.25 (0.25) - 0.00% -100.00%
Rajeev Ramachardra 0.13 (0.13) - 0.00% -100.00%
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Other equity !
l Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Secarities premium { 1,193.70 1,193.70
Equity contribution by preference and equity share holders on relinquishment of rights 941.65 941,65
Capital reserve i 1,514.44 1,414.44
Capital redemption reserve 451 4573
General reserve 55.30 5530
Retained earnings 18,828.63 13,938.61
Foreign currency translation reserve 166.61 148,61
‘2_15646.06 1':",‘1'3_%41=

Refer Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, for movement in other equity

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Securities premiom
Sccurities preminm is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such 28 issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the
Equity contribution by preference and equity share holders on relinquishment of rights

Represents the lisbility foregone by certain equity and preference share holders on relinquishment of buyback rights.

Capital redemption reserve
The Company had purchased its own shares and as per the provisions of the applicable laws, a sum equal to the nominal value of the shares so purchased is required 10 be transferred to the capital
Capital reserve

Represents payment made by the AXISCADES Technolagies Limited, a Holding company, for cancellation of options which were granted but not vested and optiens promised but mot granted under
the “Mistral Solutions Private Limited Employee Stock Option Plan 2010™,

General reserve .
Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through transfer of net income for the purpose of issuance of bonus shares.
Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Group has eamed till date, less any transfers to generl reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. Retained eamnings include re-
measurement loss/(gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,

Provisions
Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non-current
Employee defined benefits liability
- Provision for gratuity {refer note 38) 15.11 12,84
- Provision for compensated absences 148.02 128.66
163,13 141,50
Cucrent
Employee defined benefits lability
- Provision for gratuity {refer note 38) 4 99.95 77.09
- Provision for compensated absences 27.67 23.39
Provision for foreseeable loss on contracts * 2297 2297
Provision for warranty ** 171.38 125.44
Provision for liquidated damages *** 748.07 783.94
1,070.04 1,032.83

* The provision is created to provide for expected losses in the project based on the expected cost overruns. These provisions are expected to be utilized over a period of one year.

** Provision for warmranty costs are estimated on the basis of a technical evaluation and past experience. Provision is made for estimated liability in respect of warrenty costs in the year of sale of
goods. These provisions are expected to be utilized over the period of warranty.

%+ Provision for liquidated damages relates to estimated outflow in respest of products sold by the Group and estimated to be incurred due to delay in delivery of products to customers. These
provisions are expected to be utilized over a period of one year,

The disclosure of provisions movement as required under the provisions of Ind AS 37 *Provisions, Contingent Linbilities and Contingent Assets’ is as follows:

Provision for Provisien for Provision for

foresecable warranly liquidated
losses on damages
contracts
As st 1 April 2022 3,59 74.65 648.86
Provisions made during the year ' 21.33 17119 883.01
Reversal made during the year - - (520.58)
Utilizations during the year (1.95) {120.40) (227.35)
As at 31 March 2023 i 22.97 125.44 783.94
Provisions made during the year 10.50 182.70 1,518.29
Reversal made during the year i - - (1,426.90)
Utilizations during the year (10.50) {136.76) {127.26)
As at 31 March 2024 22.97 171.38 148,07

This space has been intentionally left blank,
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18 Trade payables

Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 18A below) T 135.84
Total outstanding duss of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,598.10 2,156.91
Accrued expenses 312.26 157.07
128&08 2!449.82

Trade payables to other partics 1,986.34 2,449.82

Trade payables to related partics (tefer note 37) L1.24 -

1,988.08 2,449.82

Trade payables apeing schedule
As at 31 March 2024

Qutstanding for the followlng periods from due date of payment

Accrued
Not d
expenses otduc Less than 1 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 Total
year years
(i) Undisputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.20 65.73 1.79 - - - .72
(i) Undigpucted dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 31206 1,391.07 206.02 - 121 - 1,910.36
(iii) Disputzd dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - -
Total 312.26 1,456.80 217.81 - 1.21 - 1,988.08
Ag at 31 March 2023
' Accrued Qutstanding for the followlng periods from due date of payment
cerul
Not di
expenses 04 Gl Lesy than 1 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 Total
year years
(i) Undisputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 38.57 95.18 - 0.09 2.00 135.84
(i) Undisputed dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and small enterprises 157.07 1,479.67 591.74 85.50 - - 2,313.98
(iii) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - .
Total 157.07 1,518.24 686.92 85.50 0.09 2,00 2,449.81
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled in 0-60 day terms.
For terms and conditions with related parties, refer note 37.
18A  Detalls of dues to micro and small enterprises os defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
As at Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

The principal amount and the interest due thercon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

Principal amount dus to micro and small enterprises 71.72 135.84
Interest dus on above . - -
The ameunt of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Smell and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with }
the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year -
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which bas been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but
without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 - -
The amount of t d and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the
small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of & deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, - -
The amount of the payments made to micro and small enterprises beyond the oppointed day duting each accounting year 4647 64,84
Notes:
The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their
correspandence with its customers the Entrep M dum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Accondingly, the discl in respect of the amoums payable to such

enterprises a5 at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the Group.

The Group has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act. Fusther in visw of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the
provisions of the Act is not expected to be material.

19 Other financial liabilities

Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Current
{carried at amortised cost)

Dues to employees 117.97 571.50
| Other payzbles 86.93 9.66
(carried at FVTPL) .
Option Premium on fair valuation of derivative (refer note 42) - 565,18
804.90 1,146.34
Breakup of financial llabilities carried at amortised cost \
Trade payables (Current) (refer note 18) 1,988.08 2,449.82
Lease liabilties (Non-current and current) (refer note 33) 141621 470.43
Cther financial liabilitics {Current) (refer note 19) | 804.90 581,16
4,200.19 3,501.41
20 Other current liabilities
Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Statutory liabilities 504.59 286,72
Contract liabilities
- Advances from customers 2,041.56 2,605.03
- Uneamed revenue 1L117.23 925.75

3,663.38 3,817,530
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Revenue from contract with customers
! Year czded Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from operations 32,853,52 27,533.64
Other operating revenue 272.56 673.713
Total revenue from contracts with customers 33,126.08 28,207.37

A. Disaggregate revenue information

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers by market or type of customers, timing of revenue recognition and geography.The Group
believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of our revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic

factors,
Type of goods or service
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Product sales
Sale of products 19,880.82 13,053.94
System engineering and traded sales 3,42737 4,594.68
Sale of services
Professional engineering services 9,545.33 9,885.02
Other operating revenue
Other operating income * 272.56 673.73
33,126.08 28,207.37
* Input availed on import of FOC materials shipped by cutomers and duty paid by them
Primary Geographical Markets
Year ended Year ended
Geography 31March2024 31 March 2023
India 19,164.34 13,833.67
Outside India 13,689,18 13,655.97
32,853.52 27,533.64
Timing of revenue recognition
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Goods or services transferred at point in time 23,128.01 18,139.62
Goods or services transferred over time 9,725.50 9.,394.02
32,853.52 27,533.64

Note : The amaount of Rs. 272.56 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs, 673.73 lakhs) pertaining to other aperating revenue has not been considered in the above revenue disclosure.

B. Contract balances

Asat As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Trade receivables 7,183.93 5,537.11
Contract assets 3,230.85 4,082.64
Contract liabilities 3,158.79 3,530.78

Trade receivebles are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days. In 31 March 2024, (Rs. 18.88) lakhs (31 March 2023; Rs, 15.79 lakhs) was
recognised as (reversal)/provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables. As at 31 March 2024, the Group has provision for expected credit losses of trede
receivables of Rs. 59.29 lakhs (31 March 2023; Rs, 78,17 lakhs).

The Group classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as unbilled revenue. A receivable is a right to consideration that is
ungonditional upon passage of time. Revenue in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (unbilled revenue) while inveicing in excess of revenue are classified
as contract liabilities (uncamed revenues). .

Contract assets mainly relates (o revenue earned from professional engineering services. As such, the balances of this account vary and depend on the quantum of
engineering services at the end of the year. Retention money receivable from customers does not contain any significant financing element, these are retzined for
satisfactery performance of contract.

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received for sale of products and to render enginecring services in the future as well as transaction price allocated to
performance obligations not yet completed.

In case of long - term contracts payment is generally due upon completion of milestone as per terms of contract. In certain contracts, short-term advances are received
before the performance obligation is satisfied. Advance from customers pertain to balance received as advance from various parties as certain percentage of the order value.
The same will te adjusted against the order on the basis of delivery and collection of receivables. There is no significant financing component for those contracts where the
customer pay in advance as per the terms of the contract.

C. Performance obligation \

Information about the Group's performance obligations are summarised below:

Professional engineering services
The performance obligation is satisfied over-time and payment is generally due within 30 10 90 days from the date when the related services are rendered.

Sale of products and System engineering and traded sales .

‘The performance obligatton is mainly satisfied upon delivery of the promised goods and payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery.
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Revenue from contract with customers (continued)

The fransaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March are, as follows:

Year end-ed

Time Band Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Within one year ‘ 5,134.58 588112
More than one year 45.00 -
5,179.58 5,881.12
D. Changes in unbilled revenue or contract assets are as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 4,082,64 3,595.38
Additions during the year 9,379.84 9.919.96
Reclassification adjustments:
- Billing from opening balance of contract assets 1o trade receivables (2,815.98) (1,377.58)
- Billing from contract assets transferred to trade receivables {7,415.65) (8,055.12)
Clostng balance 3,230.85 4,082.64
E. Changes in deferred revenue or contract linbilities are as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 3,530.78 2,362.88
Additions during the year 318.48 1,468.45
Reclassification Adjustments:
- Transfer of opening balances of contract liabilities to revenue (650.47) (300.55)
Closing balance 3,158.79 3,530.78
F. Reconciliation of revenue from contracts with customers
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from contracts with custometrs as per the contract price 33,031.84 27,896.07
Adjustments made to contract price on account of -
a) Liquidated damages 91.39) (362.43)
b) Interest charged by customer on advances given (86.93) -
Revenue from contracts with customers as per the Statement of Profit and Loss 32,853.52 27.533.64
22 Other income
Interest Income
- from fixed deposit 85.79 99.28
- from financials assets carried at amortised cost 15.94 15.63
- from intercompany desposits to related parties 27824 6.16
- from others 16.74 20.18
Net gain on financial asset measured at fair value through profit and loss - 11090 83.15
Provisiong/liabilities no longer required, written back 202 -
Reversal of loss allowance on trade receivables (net) 18.88 -
Gain on dilution of control in subsidiary (refer note 6) 23594 -
Exchange differences (net) - 7.94
Miscellaneous income 5.93 4.32
770.38 236.66
23 Cost of raw material and components consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year 4,871.13 3,311.62
Add: Purchases 13,776.76 11,575.77
18,647.89 14,887.39
Less; Inventory at the end of the year (5,244.18) (4,871.13)
13,403.71 10,016.26
24 Purchase of stock-in-trade
Purchases of traded goods 2,267.79 3,419.82
) 2,267.79 3.419.82
25 Changes in inventorics of firished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods
Opening inventory
Work-in-progress 818.08 793.51
Finished Goods 656.90 428.07
Stock-in-trade 147.77 174.71
1,622.75 1,396.29
Closing inventery
Work-in-progress 1,080.88 818.08
Finished Goods 401.30 656.90
Stock-in-trade 100.62 147.77
1,582.80 1,622.75
(Increase)/ decrease in inventory
Work-in-progress (262.80) (24.57)
Finished Goods 255.60 (228.83)
Traded goods 47.15 26,94
39.95 (226.46)
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Employee benefits expense |

! : Year ended Yesr ended
f 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus | 8,921.64 8,146.14
Contribution to provident and other funds 454.84 38839
Gratuity expense (refer note 38) 82.20 77.65
Leave compensation/ compensated absences 23.64 819
Share based payment expense (refer note 41} . - 403.14
Staff welfare expenses 154,63 207.50
9,636.95 9,231.01

The Code on Sccial Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent in September
2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Certain sections of the code came into effect on 3 May 2023, However, the final rules/ interpretation have not
yet been issued. The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective,

Finance costs
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest expense on financial [iability measured at amortised cost 0.06 1.43
Integest on Lease Liability 8277 71.92
Interest on customer adavance 15.88
Others - 6.49
- 93.71 79.54
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on property plant and equipment (refer note 4) 277.66 25827
Depreciation on right of use assets (refer note 33) 406.89 386.81
Depreciation on other intangible assets (refer note 5) 83.77 5140
’ 768.32 696.48
Other expenses
Travelling and conveyance 369,17 . 341,67
Rent (refer note 33)
- Immovable property 55.97 39.39
- Equipment hire . 208.50 242.14
Legal and professional fees ' 376.98 414,67
Repairs and maintenance .
- Plant and machinery 31.35 49.52
- Others 202.61 193.32
Software subcription charges 175.63 117.62
Power and fitel : ’ - . 89.69 80.47
Bank charges 73.33 44,76
Communication costs 26.14 27,99
Advertising and sales promotion 42,18 59.73
Rates and taxes : 2548 19.64
Insurance 2438 3314
Advances written off’ - 0.40
Provision for warranties, foresesable losses on contracts and others (net of reversals) - 19.37
Less allowance on trade receivables . - 15.79
Freight and forwarding charges 39.49 14.65
CSR expenditure (refer note 35) 56.52 53.81
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 3.65 237
Exchange differences (net) : ’ 30.56 0.02
Miscellaneous expenses 61.92 52.28
1,893.55 1,823.35
Payment to Auditors
As auditor: .
Audit fee 50,00 25.00
Other services - . 24,50
In other capacity:
Reimbursement of expenses . - . 3.96
50.00 53.46

This space has been intentionally lefi blank.
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Income-tax

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are:

Consolidated statemeat of profit and loss:

Profit or loss section
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current income tax: ’
Cusrent income tax charge 1,456.85 1,190.63
Deferred tax: .
Attributable to origination and reversal of temporary differences (8.97) (22.40)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 1,447.88 1,168.23
OCI section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans 4.86 0.43
Deferred tax charged to OCIL 4.86 0.43
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Accounting profit before tax 5,787.18 3,403.73
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (31 March 2023: 25.17%) 1,456.52 856.65
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes:
Expenditure incurred on cancellation of Employee stock option plan - 283.02
Cthers (8.64) 28.56
At the effective incomte tax rate of 25.02% (31 March 2023: 34.32%) 1,447.88 ~ 1,168.23
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 1,447.88 1,168.23
Deferred tax
Deferred tax velates to the following: Consolidated Balance Sheet Consolidated statement of profit and loss
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Impact of difference between depreciation charged for financial 50.49 56.65 (6.16) (3.33)
reporting and expenses allowed for tax purposes ’
Lease liabilities 356.46 120.28 236.18 30.82
Right-of-use assets (354.30) (110.76) (243.54) (37.23)
Non-deductible expenses for tax purpose allowed on payment basis 61.00 32.16 28.84 (1.83)
Other items 24.11 25.60 (1.49) 34.40
Net deferred tax assets 13776 123.93
Deferred fax income 13.53 22.83
Reconciliation of deferred tax asset (net)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Asat 1 April 123,93 101.10
Tax income during the period recognised in profit or loss 897 2240
Tax income during the period recognised in OCI 4.86 0.43
As at 31 March 137.76 123.93
Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding

during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit atiributable to equity holders of the parent {after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive

potential Equity shares into Equity shares,

The following table reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Profit attributable to the equity shareholders 4,339.30 2,235.50
Less; Dividend on fully convertible cumulative participative preference shares 0.00 0.00
Less: Profit attributable to fully convertible cumulative participative preference shares 99.04 21.06
Profit attributable for basic earnings 424026 221444
Add: Adjustment for the purpose of diluted eamings per share 99.04 21.06
Profit adjusted for the effect of dilution 4,339.30 2,235.50
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 40,67,870 39,95,647
Effect of dilution:
Weighted average number of convertible preference shares 95,015 38,000
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 41,62 885 40,33,647
Eamnings per share:
- Basic 104.24 55.42
- Diluted 104.24 55.42

There have been no other transactions involving equity shares or potential equity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial statements,

.,\"U Tt O
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32 Contingent [iabilities and Commitments
32.1 Contigent liabilities

Agat As at
. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt:
Income tax matters [see note (i) below] : 33762 210.06
Other legal matters [see note (ii) below] . 79.81 ) 79.81
Financial puarantees :
Bank Guarantees 4,243.99 3,762.61
4,661.42 4,052.48
Notes:

(i) Inrespect of tax matters, the Group is contesting the tax litigations in respect of various years from FY 2008-09 to FY 2021-22 for several disallowances made by the tax authorities, The
Manzgement, including its tax advisors, belives that it's position will likely to be upheld at various foruris where the matters are pending. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations
and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its consolidated financial statements. The Group
does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial position,

(ii) The Group had received & fivolous claim and based on the advise of its legal counsel, the Group is of the view that the outcome of these proceedings will ot have a materially adverse
effect on its financial position and accordingly, ne provision is recognised in the financial statements.

{ili) During the year, the Group is one of the corporate guarantor and has issued a corporate guarantes to Vistara ITCL (Indiz) Limited ("Debenture Trustee™) on behalf of the Holding
Compzny, AXISCADES Technologies Limited, amounting to Rs, 21,000 lakhs (31 March 2023: Nil).

322 There are no capital and other commitments as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

33 Leases

Groap as alessee

The Group has lease contracts for vehicles and immovable properties used in its operations. Leases of vehicles gencrally have lease terms between 3 and 5 years, while immovable
properties generally have lease tenms between 3 to 9 years, The Group’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets. There are several lease contracts
that include extension and termination options.

The Group also has'cumin leases of machinery and testing equipment with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Group applies the ‘short-term lease’ recopnition exemptions for these

leases.
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Immovable Vehicles Total
As at T April 2022 962.46 2597 988,43
Additions 224.79 - 224.79
Depreciation expense (365.59) (21.22) (386.81)
Exchange difference 0.35 - 0.35
As at 31 March 2023 . 82201 4,75 . 826.76
Additions 1,374,50 - 1,374,50
Depreciation expense (402.14) {4.75) (406.839)
Deletions . (386.72) - (386.72)
As at 31 March 2024 1,407.65 ' - 1,407.65
Set out below are the carrying smounts of lease liabilitles and the movements during the vear:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

As at 1 April 470.43 614,77
Additicns 1,323.66 216.37
Accretion of interest 82.37 71.92
Payments '{460.65) (432.63)
As at 31 March 1,416.21 470,43
Current 372.51 301.17
Non-current 1,043.70 169.26

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate for lease liabilities is between 8.40% - 10.40% per annum, with maturities between financial year 2025-2031 for leasehold properties

The table below provides detalls regarding the contractun] maturitics of lense liabilities on an undiscounted hatis:

) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Less than three months 124,98 104.29
Three to twelve menths 369.23 216,88
Oune to five years 1,187.96 149.26
More than five years 41.14 111.74
The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss:
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
. Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 406.89 386.81
Interest expense on lease liabilities 82,77 71.92
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 264.47 281.53
754,13 240,26

The Group had total cash cutflows for leases of Rs. 725.12 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: Rs. 714.16 lakhs). The Group has made non-cash additions of Rs.
1,374.50 lakhs (31 March 2023; Rs 224.79 lakhs) and Rs. 1,323.66 lakhs (31 March 2022: Rs. 216.36 lakhs) to right-of-use assets and lease Habilities, respectively. There are no firture
cash outflows relating to leases that have not yet commenced.
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34 1) Details of non current investments purchased and sold:

a) Non current investments purchased and sold during the current year

As at 1 April Purchased Sold during the  Changes in fair

2023 during the year year value Reclassification As at 31 March 2024

Investments in real estate fund 200.86 - {16.96) (2127 - 162.63

1Non current investments purchased and sold during the previous year

Asat] April Purchased Sold duringthe  Changes in fair

2022 during the year year value Reclassification As at 31 March 2023

Investments in real estate fund 203.92 - (6.55) 349 - 200.836

if) Details of current investments purchased and sold:
2) Current investments purchased and sold during the carrent year

Asat1 April Purchased Sold during the  Changes in fair
2023 during the year yenr value

Investments in mutual fund 2,453.21 11,180.00 (10,981.44) . 13217 - 2,783.94

Reclassification As at 31 Mareh 2024

b Current investnents purchased and sold during the previous year

Asatl April Purchased Sold during the  Changes in fair Reclassification As at 31 March 2023

2022 during the year year ’ value
Investments in mutual fund - 309.34 8,975.00 (6,899.97) 68.84 - 245321
Investments in other fund 500,35 - (51117 10.82 -
35 Details of CSR expenditure
] 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year 57.66 46.62
Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 57.70 47.43
Amount spent during the year ending on 31 March 2024: In Cash  Yct to be paid in cash Total
() Construction or acquisition of any asset - -
(ii) On purposes other than {i ) above (refer rote 1 below) 5766 - 57.66
Amount spent during the year ending on 31 March 2023: InCash Yet to be paid in cash Total
(i) Construction or acquisition of any asset - -
(i) On purposes other than (i ) above (refer note 2 betow) 47.43 - 4743
Details of related party transactions - -
Details related 1o spent / unspent obligations: 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(i) Contribution to Charitable Trust 29.00 26.43
(ify Contribution to other . 28.66 21.60
{iii) Unspent amount in reletion to:
Cnpgoing project - -
Other than ongoing project - -

CSR expenditure has been incurred for promoting industrial consultancy and sponsered research, health & poverty.

This space has been intenticnally left blank.
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35

36

Details of CSR expenditure (continued)
Details of ongoing project and other than ongoing profect

In case of 8. 135(6) (Ongolng Project)

Opening Balance as at 1 April 2023 Amount required Amount spent during the year Closing Balance as at 31 March 2024
i to be spent during
With Group In Separate CSR "2 7f From Group’s From Separate  With Group In Separate CSR
Unspent A/c bank Afe CSR Unspent Alc
Unspent Alc :

In ease of S. 135(5) (Other than ongoing project)

Opening Balance as at 1 April 2023 Amount required Amount spent during the year Closing Balance as at 31 March 2024
to be spent during
With Group In Separate CSR L0 Y& From Group's From Separate  With Group In Separate CSR
Unspent Alc bank Afc CSR Unspent Alc
Unspent Afc
- - 57.66 57.66 - - .-

Details of ongoing project and other than ongoing project for the year ended 31 March 2023
In case of S. 135(6) (Onpoing Profect)

Opening Balance as at 1 April 2022 Amount required Amount spent during the year Closing Balance as at 31 March 2023
to be spent during
With Group In Separate CSR. the year From Group's From Separate With Group In Separate CSR
Unspent Afc ) bank Alc CSR Unspent Afc
i Unspent Afc '
- - 8.71 - 8.71 - -
In case of 8. 135(5) (Other than ongoing project)
Opening Balance as at 1 April 2022 Amount required Amount spent during the year Closing Balance as at 31 March 2023
to be spent during
With Group In Separate CSR  the year From Group's From Separate With Group In Seperate CSR
Unspent Afc bank Alc CSR Unspent Alc
[Inspent Afc

- - 46.62 4743 - - -

Notes:
1 Itincludes Rs. 0,81 lakhs excess spent in previous year ended 31 March 2023,
2 Tt excludes Rs. 8.71 lakhs related to and not spent in the year ended 31 March 2022 but have spent in the year ended 31 Manch 2023.
3 Overhead expense of Rs. 2.83 lakhs (31 March 2023 Rs. 2.33 [akhs) incumred towards CSR activities is included in note no 26.

Segment reporting

A. Basis for segmentation

Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about operating segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic
areas, and major customers, The Board of Directors of the Company hes been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments.
“The CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of produet suppert and engineering services. Based on the “management approach” as
defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Group’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators
by segments. The accounting principles used in (he preparation of the financial statements are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure in individual segments, and are a3 set
out in the material accounting policies.

Segment revenue, results, assets and labilities figures include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the segments. Other unallocable income net off unallacable expenditure are
towards common services to the segrnents which are not directly identifiable to the individual segments as well as those at a corporate level which relate to the Group as a whole.

The following summary describes the products included in each of the Group's reportable segment:

Reportable segments Products / Services
Engineering design services Desipn and development services covering hardware and software.
Strategic technology solutions Products, systein integration end other solutions.

B. Information about reportable segments

Information regarding the results of cach reportzble segment is included below. Performance is measured based on segment profit (before tax), as included in the internal management
reports that are reviewed by the CODM. Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaltuating the results of
certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Segment revenue (revenue from contract with customer) )
a) Engincering design services 12,81025 13,424,33
b) Strategic technology solutions . 20,312.55 14,783.04
¢) Unallocable 328 -

Total revenue 33,126.08 28,207.37
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36 Segment reporting (continued)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Segment results
a) Engineering design services 3,000.28 4232.53
b) Strategic technology solutions 2,505.55 (277.21)
c) Unallocable 3.28 0.00
Total segment resnlts 5910.11 3,955.31
Less ; Interest expense (98.11) (79.84)
Less : Depreciation and amortisation (768.32) (696.48)
Add: Other un-allocable income net off un-allocable expenditure 744.10 224.73
Profit before tax 5,787.18 3,403.73
Tax expense (1,447.88) (1,168.23)
Profit after tax 4.339.30 2,235.50
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Sepment assets
a) Engineering desipn services 3,314.51 4,860.43
b) Strategic technology solutions 14,972.50 11,752.60
c) Unallocable 14,225.32 10,682.87
Total assets 32,512.73 27,295.90
Segment liabilities
a) Engineering design services 1,285.50 2,044.4]
b) Strategic technology solutions 547173 5,283.74
¢) Unallocable 2,894.01 2,024.42
Total liabilities 9.657.24 9352.57
Capital expenditure
a) Engineering design services - -
b) Strategic technology solutions - -
¢) Unallocable 637.74 421.91
Total capital expenditure 637.74 421.91
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
a} Engingering design services - -
b) Strategtc technology sclutions - -
¢) Unallocable 7€8.32 696.48
Total depreciation / amortisation expenses 76832 696.48
Information by Geographies
Revenue by Geopraphical Market
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
India 19,164.34 13,833.67
Qutside India 13,961.74 14,373.70
Total 33,126.08 28,207.37
Scgment ron current assets*
Year ended Year ended
. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 ~
India 2,866.07 2,043.01
Qutside India 1.86 3.60
Total 2,867.93 2,046.61

* Non current assets are exchuding financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

This space has been intentionally left blank.
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37 Related party disclosures

Nature of relationship Name of party
1. Ultimate Holding Company Jupiter Capital Private Limited
Holding Cempany AXISCADES Technologies Limited
Fellow subsidiary AXISCADES Aerospace & Technologies Private Limited
Explasoft Tech Solutions Private Limited
Cades Studec Technologies ([ndia) Private Limited
AXISCADES UK. Lirnited
Subsidiary companies Mistral Solutions, Inc., USA
Mistral Tectmelogies Private Limited
Aero Electronics Private Limited*
Associate company Aero Electronics Private Limited*

*Subsidiary tll 3 September 2023 and associate thereafier (refer nete 6)

Name of other related parties as per Ind AS 24 with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Managing Director
Director

Chief Executive Officer and Director

Anees Ahmed (till 22 December 2022)

Rajeev Remachandra {stepped down w.e.f. 22 December 2022 and reappointed on 2 February 2023)
Mujahid Alam (stepped down w.e.f. 22 December 2022 and reappointed on 2 February 2023)

Director Arnum Krishnamurthy (appointed w.e.f. 15 December 2023)
Director Shashidhar SK (appointed w.e.f. 1 December 2022)
Director Srinivas A (till 30 November 2022)
Director Sharadhi Chandra Babu Pampapathy
Director Ashok Radhakrishna Kamath (till 4 June 2022)
Independent Director Anuradha (appeinted w.e.f. 3 June 2022)
Independent Director Marjam Mathew
Chief Financial Officer Anoop Agarwal
Transactions with related parties:
Nature of transactions Relationship Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from contract with customers
Professional Engineering Services
AXISCADES UK Limited Feltow subsidiary 382.65 2517
AXISCADES Technologies Limited Holding Company 19.32 -
Other Income
Interest Incoms
AXISCADES Technologies Limited Holding Cempany 233,12 -
AXISCADES Aerospace & Technologies Private Limited Fellow subsidiary 45.12 6.16
Expenses incurred on behalf of
AXISCADES Technolopies Limited Holding Cornpany i12.02 600,00
Explosoft Tech Seluticns Private Limited Fellow subsidiary - 0.25
Purchase of goods/sexvices
Cades Studec Technolopies (India) Private Limited Fellow subsidiary 6.46 -
Advertisement and business promotion
AXISCADES Technelogies Limited Holding Company - 20.62
Insurance expenses
AXISCADES Technologies Limited Holding Company - 11.37
Cancellation & Settlement of ESOPs (refer note 41)
AXISCADES Technologies Limited Holding Company - 1,414.44
Option Premium on fair valuation of derivative (refer note 42)
AXISCADES Technologies Limited Holding Company (565.18) 565.18
Loans given !
AXISCADES Technologies Limited Holding Company 3,500.00 -
AXISCADES Aerospace & Technologies Private Limited Fellow subsidiary - 500.00
Key management personnel compensation
Short-term employee benefits 557.84 973.09
Post-employment defined benefit* 2312 2248
Balances as at the year end:
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade Receivable
AXISCADES UK Limited Fellow subsidiary 283.74 21.48
Trade Payables .o :
Cades Studec Technologies (India) Private Limited Fellow subsidiary 1.24 -
Recoverable for reimbursement off expenses .
AXISCADES Technelogies Limited Holding Company - 600.00
Remuneration payable Key Management Personnel 116.92 51.41
VT
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Related parties (continued)
Loans to related parties
31 March 2024
Particulars Opening balance Loans given Received Loan outstanding Interest receivable
AXISCADES Technologies Limited - 3,500.00 - 3,500.00 192.11
AXISCADES Aerospace & Technologies Private Limited 500.00 - - 500.00 -
31 March 2023
Particulars Opening balance Loans given Received Loan oufstanding Interest receivable
AXISCADES Aerospace & Techrologies Private Limited - 500,00 - 500,00 -

*Does not inclede gratuity and compensated absences as these are provided in the books of accounts on the basis of acturial valuation for the Group as a whole and hence invidual cannot
be determined.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstending balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlerment ocours in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or
payables, The impairment assessment is undertaken each financial year throngh examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party cperates.
Loan to Holding Company

The loan granted to AXISCADES Technologies Limited is intended for the purpose of meeting their working capital/corporate restecturing. The loan is unsecured and repayable in full in
three years. Interest is charged at 11.5%. The loan has been utilized for the purpose it was granted.

Corporate Guarantee to Holding Company

During the year, the Company is one of the corporate guarnator and has issued a corporate guarantes to Vistara ITCL (India) Limited ("Debenture Trustee") oa behalf of the Holding
Company, AXISCADES Technologies Limited, amounting to Rs. 21,000 lakhs (31 March 2023: Nil}.

Employee benefits

(a) Defined benefit contributions
The Group makes contribution to statutory provident fnd as per Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952 for its employees. This is a defined contribution plan
as per Ind AS 19, Employee benefits. Contribution made during the year ended 31 March 2024 : Rs. 454.84 lakhs (31 March 2023 : Rs. 388.39 lakhs).

(b) Deflned benefit plans
The Group has provided for gratuity, for its employees as per ectuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary on the Balance Sheet date. The valuation has been carried out using

* the Project Unit Credit Method as per Ind AS 19 to determine the present vahe of Defined Benefit Obligations and the related current service cost. This is a defined benefit plan as per

Ind AS 19.

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits
provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. The fund has the form of a trust and it is governed by the trustees.

‘he frustees of the plan have outsourced the investment management of the fund to an insurmcs company. The insurance company in turn manages these funds as per the mandate
provided to them by the trustees and the asset allocation which is within the permissible limits prescribed in the insurance regulations.

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary overtime. Thus, the Group is exposed to various risks in
providing the above benefit which are as follows:

a Interest rate risk

The plan exposes the Group to the risk of fzll in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in zn
increase in the value of the liability a3 shown in financial statements.

b Liquidity risk

This is the risk that the Group is not able to meet the short-term gratuity pay-outs. This may arise due to non availability of enough cash/cash equivalents to meet the liabilities or holding
of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

¢ Salary escalation risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of employees in future. Deviation in the rate of interest in firture for employees from
the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability,

d  Demographic risk

The Group has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in vatuation of the liability. The Group is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the
assumption.

e Repulatory risk

Gratuity benefits are paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act,1972 (as amended from time to time). There is a risk of change in regulations requiring
higher gratuity pay-outs.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows Gratuity

(i) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation As at Asat

' 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Obligations as at the beginning of the year 763.51 765.03
Current service cost 71.20 69.66
Tntergst cost 54.62 51.16
Benefits paid (30.35) (105.94)
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in financial assumptions 19,60 (33.38)
Actuarial loss arsing from change in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial loss arising from experience adjustments 2334 16.98
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 907.92 763.51

(ii} Reconciliation of present value of plan asset:
Plan assets as at 1 April ) 673.58 T $27.00
Expected return on plan assets 49.62 43.17
Return on plan assets {excluding amounts in¢luded in net interest expense) 23.62 {18.11)
Contributions by employer . 76.3% T 12746
Benefits paid (30.35) (105.94)

Plau assets at 31 March at fair valoe 792.86 673.58
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38 Employee benefits (continued) |
(iif) Reconcillation of net defined benefit liability

Present value of obligation as at 31 March
Plan assets at 31 March at fair value
Benefit liability

Non-Current

Current

2. Components of expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Employes benefit expense:
-Current service cost
Finance costs
-Interest expense on defined benefit obligation
Expenses recopnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year

3. Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income
Recogpised net actuarial loss/{gain) arising from change in financial assumptions
Recognised net actuarial loss arising from change in demographic assumptions
Recognised net actuarial loss arising from experience variance
Actual returns on plan assets less interest on plan assets
Changes in demographic assumptions
Re-measurement loss in other comprehensive income

4. Experience adjustment:
Oin plan liahilities loss
Ua plan assets galn / (10ss)
5. Investment details:

Insurer managed funds
Others

6. The principal assumptions used in determining
Discount factor [Refer note (i) below]
Estimated rate of return on plan assets [Refer note (if) below]
Attrition rate:
Age related (Service related):
21-30 Yewrs
313 Yeurs
35-44 Yoors
45.50 Years
51-54 Years
55-59 Years
Salary escalation rate [Refer note (iii) below]

Retirement age (in years)

Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

907,92 763.51
(792.86) (673.58)
11506 89.93

15.11 12.84

9995 77.09

77.20 69.66

5.00 799

82.20 77.65
19.60 (33.38)

23.34 16.98

(23.62) 18.11

19.32 1.71

23.34 16,98
262 (18.11)

% Invested %% Invested
99.89% 100.00%
0.11% 0.00%

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

7.20%
7.20%

20,00%
15,00%
5.00%
3.00%
2.00%
1.00%

8.00% until years 2,
inclusive then 7.00%

60

7.45%
745%

20.00%
15,00%
5.00%
3.00%
2.00%
1.00%

8.00% until years 3,
inclusive then 7.00%

60

The assumptions were developed by Management with the assistance of independent actuaries. Discount factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to market yields

Management's historical experience.

7. Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:
Within 1 year
1-2 year
2-3 year
3-4 year
4-5 year
5- 10 year and above

Notes:

111.38
88.57
105.51
54.84
8591
1,601.53

(i) The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield on Government Securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of abligations.

of Government bonds that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the gratuity obligation. Other assumptions are based on current actuarial benchmarks and

60.74
70.61
7778
93.11
4396
147731

(ii} The expected retumn on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factors mainly the composition of the plan assets held, assessed risks of asset management, historical

resulis of the return on plan assets and the Group's policy for plan asset management.

(iif) The estimate of future salary increases cansidered in acruarial valuation takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the

employment market,
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Employee benefits (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, attrition rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis
below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting perod, while holding all cther assumptions constant. The
following table summarizes the impact of change in the defined benefit obligation resulting from the specified percentage change in the aforementioned assumptions.

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
.A. Discomtrate -

Discount rate -100 basis points 86.46 76,09

Discount rate 100 basis points - (74.16) (65.32)
B. Salary escalation rate '

Salary rate - 100 basis points (35.32) (33.84)

Salary rate +100 basis peints . 40,13 ‘ 34.77
C. Morality Rate

Morality rate -10% basis points (0.79) (0.78)

Maorality rate +10% basis points 0.78 0.78
D. Leaving Service Ratio

Attrition rate -50% basis points (17.19) (21.98)

Attrition rata +50% basis points 12,64 16.09

The sensitivity'ana.lysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined bensfit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would oceur in
isolation of one ancther as some of the assumptions may be correlated. .

‘There is no change in the method and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from previous years.

The average duration of the defined benefit plan cbligation at the end of the reporting period is 9.02 years (31 March 2023: 9.19 years).

Transfer Pricing regulations for computing the taxable income and expendinire fram ‘intemational transactions’ between “associated enterprises’ on an ‘arm’s length® basis. These
regulations, inter alia, also require the maintenance of prescribed documents and information including furnishing a report fiom an Accountant within due date of filing the Return of
Income. The Group is in the process of updating the Transfer Pricing documentation for the financial year ended 31 March 2024 following 4 detailed transfer pricing study conducted for
the financial year ended 31 March 2023. In the opinion of the Management, the same would not have an impact on these financial statements. Accordingly, these financial statements do
not include the effect of the transfer pricing implications, if any.

Capital management
Fer the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, convertible preference shares, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value. -

The Group manages 1ts capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic couditivis, To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjuet the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders of issue new shares, The Group ooy capilal usiug o gearing ratio, which is nct debt divided by total capital plue net debt. The
Group lweludes within net debt, interext bearuyg louns dnd bormowings, lense Hahlllifez, Teas cash and cash equivaleuts.

Tl Quuup iwonitars capital on the basis of the following gearing rotio.

Particulars ' 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total debt {including lease liability)* 67.99 -
Total equity 2285549 17,943.33
Gearing ralio 030%, -

* For previous year, where the total debts are less than cash and cash equivalent, the net debits were shown as Nil
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March-2023.
Share based payments

Employee Stock Option Plan 2010
The Board of Directors of the Group approved the *Mistral Solutions Private Limited Employee Stock Option Plan 2010° on 15 July 2010 and it is effective from 1 April 2010, The
options granted have vesting period in the range of 1 to 4 years.

The movement in the options under the plan is set out below:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opticns outstanding as at beginning of the year - 3,63,000
Options granted during the year - -
Opticas vested during the year - -
Options forfeited during the year - -
Options exercised during the year - 2,52,500
Shares allotted against options exercised during the year - -
Options expired/relinquished during the year - 1,00,500

Options outstanding at the end of the year - -
Options exercisable as at the end of the year - -
Weighted average price per option (Rs.) - 5
Fair Value Measurement:

The fair value at grant date is dstermined using the Black Scholes valuation option-pricing model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at
grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option. The Group has granted Nil option (31
March 2023: Nil option) during the year.
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Share based payments (continued) ;
During the previous year ended 31 March 2023, the Board of Directors have approved cancellation of 100,500 ESOP’s which were granted but not vested. Axiscades as & part of the
acquisition has paid Rs 1,414.44 lakhs to the employess for the aforesaid cancelled ESOPs and 65,212 promised but not granted ESOP.
The Group in line with the Accounting Standards has secognized Rs 362,61 lakhs as an expense for the cancelled ESOPs which were granted but not vested comprising of the following:

- Rs, 189.49 lakhs — Difference between the amount paid and fair value as on the date of settlement,

- Rs, 173,12 1akhs — Accelerated vesting of cancelled ESQPs.
The difference between the settlement date fair value and grant date fair value of Rs,289,91 lakhs have been charged to other equity, Furthermore, the amount of Rs, 556,62 lakhs paid by
Axiscades for promised but not granted ESOP has also been recognized os an expense, The total amount paid by Asxdscades amounting to Rs. 1,414.44 lakhs has been recopmized as a
credit to capital reserve,

During the previous year ended 31 March 2023, the helding company AXISCADES Technologies Limited ('AXISCADES®) had issued Non-convertible debentures {‘NCD*) amounting
to Rs. 14,500 lakhs to Grand Anicut Fund II (*Investor’) for the purpose of completing the acquisition of Mistral Solutions Pvi. Ltd. (‘Company’). Consequent to issuance of the NCDs,
AXISCADES entered into en investment agresments with the Investor and the same has been ratified by the Board of directors of the Company in its 146th board meeting on 13 Merch
2023, whereby the Company has granted to Tnvestor the right to subscribe (‘warrants’) to 4,14,039 partly paid compulsorily convertible preference shares {'CCPS") having a face vatue of
Rs. 5.00/- each, at a price of Rs, 969.11/- at a pre-money equity valuation of Rs. 42,000 1akhs (*specified valuation).

As per the agreed terms of the CCPS, between the Company, AXISCADES and Investor, approved by board of directors of the Company in its 146th board meeting on 13 March 2023, if
the Tnvestor has been able to liquidete the NCD within 36 months from the date of allotment, then at any time thereafier, the Investor/CCPS Holder, shall have the right to cause the
Company to buy back the securities held by the Investors at fair market value (FMV).

The above warrants have been classified as a derivative financial Kability in terms of Ind AS 32. Accordingly, the Company have valued the share warrants as at the transaction date at Rs.
565.18 lakhs and recorded liability through equity.

During the year, the Company has entered into an Amendment to Share Subscription cum Sharcholders' Agreement dated 22 July 2023 on 25 September 2023, thereby amending the
terms of right of investment by the Investor, wherein the Investor is entitled 1o invest only upon discretion and consent of the Company 2nd does not have unconditional contractul
obligation to buy back these CCPS. Consequent to the aforesaid amendment, the derivative liability of Rs. 565.18 lakhs has been reversed during the year ended 31 March 2024 to equity.

‘T'his space has been intentlonally left blank.
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" 43 Additional information pursuant to para 2 of general instructions for the preparation of Consolidated Financial information for the year ended 31st March 2024:

. Net assets Share in profit or loss Share in other comprehensive Share in total comprehensive income
Name of the Entity .
income
Asa % of Amount Asa % of Amount Asa % of Amount As a % of total Amount
Consolidated consclidated consolidated comprehensive
Net Assets profit or loss other " income
comprehensive
income
Parent
Mistral Solutions Private Limited 90.33% 21,061.19 92.59% 3,940.60 96.47% (13.94) 02.58% 3,926.66
Indian Subsidiary .
Mistral Technologies Private Limited 3.80% 886.61 1.65% 70.42 3.53% (0.51) 1.65% 6991
Indian Associate
Aero Electronics Private Limited 0.76% 176.60 -0.01% (0.30) 0.00% - -0.01% (0.30)
Foreign Subsidiary
Mistral Solutions Inc. 5.11% 1,191.46 5.76% 245.09 0.00% - 5.78% 245.09
100% 23,315.86 100% 4,255.81 100% (14.45) 100% 4,241.36
Adjustment arising out of Consolidation (460.37) 83.49 18.00 101.49
Total 22,855.49 4,339.30 3.54 4,342.85

This space has been intentionally left blank.
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43 Additional information pursuant to para 2 of general instructions for the preparation of Consolidated Financial information for the year ended 31st March 2023:

. Net assets Share in profit or loss Share in other comprehensive Share in total comprehensive
Name of the Entity . .
income income
Asa % of Amount Asa % of Amount Asa % of Amount As a % of total Amount
Consolidated consolidated consolidated comprehensive
Net Assets profit or loss other income
comprehensive
income
Parent
Mistral Solutions Private Limited 88.57% 16,565.21 97.30% 2,175.27 85.85% (1.10) 97.31% 2,174.17
Indian Subsidiaries
Aero Electronics Private Limited 2.09% 391.80 -1.85% (41.40) 0.00% - -1.85% (41.40)
Mistral Technologies Private Limited 4.37% 816.70 2.25% 50.28 14.15% (0.18) 2.24% 50.10
Foreign Subsidiary
Mistral Solutions Inc. 4.97% 929.14 2.30% 51.35 0.00% - 2.30% 51.35
100% 18,702.85 100% 2,235.50 100% (1.28) 100% 2,234.22
Adjustment arising out of Consolidation (759.52) - 69.42 : 69.42
Total 17,943.33 2,235.50 ' 68.14 2,303.64

This space has been intentionally left blank.
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44 Financial instruments - fair values and risk monagement

Accounting classification and fair values )
The following tzbls shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liahiliies as at 31 March 2024, including their Jevels in the fair value hierarchy.

Particulars Cayrying amount Fair value
. Derivative Other financial .
Note  FVIPL  FyoCy losfrumentsnot assets. Other financial Totlearmying y oy pevel2  Level3
in hedging amortised cost liabilities amount
relationship
Financial assets measured nt fair value .
Investment in real estate fund 6 162.67 - - - - 162.67 - 16267 -
Investment in mutual funds [ 2,783.94 - - - - 2,783.94 2,783.94 - -
2,946.61 - - - - 2,946.61 2,783.94 162.67 -
Financial assefs not measured at fair value
Loars receivable 7 - - - 4,000.00 - 4,000.00 - - -
Other financial assets 8 - - - 1,428.32 - 1,428.32 - - -
Trade receivables 12 - - - 7,183.93 - 7,183.93 - - -
Cash end cash equivalents 13 - - - 1,348.22 - 1,348.22 - - -
Benk balances other than cash and cash equivalent 14 - - - 597.63 - 597.63 - - -
- - - 14,558,10 - 14,558.10 - - -
There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.
Financial linbilities measured at fair value
Option Premium on fair valuation of derivative 19 - - - - - - - - -
Financial Habilities not measured at fair value
Lease lisbilities 33 - - - - 141621 1,416.21 - - -
Trade payables 18 - - - - 1,988.08 1,988.08 - - -
Other financial liabilitics 19 - - - : - 804.90 804.90 - - -
- - - - 4,209.192 4,209.19 - - -

There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2023, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

Particulars Carrying amount Fair value
Derivative Other financial . .
Note FVTPL Fvoct instruments I‘JO! assets~ QOther l'mnncml Total carrying Levell Level2 Level 3
in hedging " liabilities amount
. amortised cost
relationship
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investment in real estate fund 6 200,86, - - - - 200.86 - 20086 -
Investment in mutual finds 6 2,453.21 - - - - 245321 245321 - -
2,654.07 - - - - 2,654.07 2,453.21 200.86 -
There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.
Fi ial liabilities ed at fair value
Option Premium on fair valuation of derivative 19 - - 565.18 - - 563.18 - - 565.18
- - 565,18 - - 565.18 - - 565.18
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Loans receivable 7 - - - 500.00 - 500,00 - - -
Other financial assets 8 - - - 206.95 - 906.95 - - -
Trade receivables 12 - - - 5,537.11 - 5,537.11 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents , 13 - - - 1,822.14 - 1,822.14 - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalen 14 - - - 1,446.63 - 1,446,63 - - -
- - - 10,212.83 - 10,212.83 - - -
Financial linbilities not measured at fair value )
Lease liabilities 33 - - - - 47043 470.43
Trade payables 18 - - - - 2,449,582 2,449.82
Other financial liabilities 19 - - - - 581.16 581.16
N - - - 3,501.41 3,501.41 - - -

There have been 1o transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 duaring the year.

The fuir value of the financial assets and financial liahilities is included at the amount #t which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a force
‘liquidation sale. )

The fair valus of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, loans, trade payables and other financial assets and liabilities approximate their caitying,
amount largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The Group’s loans have been contracted at market tates of interest. Accordingly, the camying value of such loans approximate fair
value. Investments in equity shares of associate is not appearing as financial asset in the table above being investment in associate accounted under Ind AS 27, Seperate Financial Statements is scoped
out under Ind AS 109, Financial Instrurnents, -

Investments in Jiquid and short- term mutual funds which are classified as FVTPL are measured using net assets value at the reporting date multiplied by the quantity held.
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44 Financial instruments - fair valunes and risk management (continued)

Valuation technique and significant unobservable input

Inter-relationship between
significant unobservable inputs
and fair value measurement

Significaut unobservable inputs Range

Type Va[ualilnn technigue
I
Option premium ¢n fair valuation of derivative Binomial cption pricing
: model

Valuation process

Exercise price per shars Rs. 969.10 Thess inputs wouald result in
Risk fice rate 7.1% fair value loss on derivative
Sigma range 50,6% - 51.8% by Rs. 565,18 lakhs

‘The Corporate finance team has requisite knowledge and skills. The team headed by the CFO directly reports to the audit committes to armive at the fair value of financial instruments.

This space has been intentionally left blank.
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44 Financial instruments - fair values and risk management (continued)

Financial risk managemen¢ i

The Group's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and its busi trategies. The Group’s management risk policy is set by the Board. The Group’s activities expose it
to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Group's primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverss effects
onits financial performance. A summary of the risks have been friven below. )

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instroment of customer contract, leading to & financial loss. The Groap is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and finarcial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments. The
Group only deals with parties which has good credit rating/ worthiness given by extemal rating agencies or based on Groups internal assessment.

Customer credit risk is managed by cach business unit subject to the Group's established pelicy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management,

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenne camed from customers primarily located in Indla, United States of America and Burope. Credit risk has always been managed
by the Group through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of
business. On account of adopton of Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Group uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The provision for expected credit loss takes
into account aveilable external and internal credit risk factors including the credit ratings of the various customers and Group”s histerical experience for customers.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date wsing a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provisioa rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar Joss pattems (i.¢., by customer type). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time valie of money and rezsonable and supportable information
that is available at the reposting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of fiuture economic conditions. The maximum exposure to eredit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value
of each class of financial assets disclosed below. The Group does not hold collateral as security. The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to-trade receivables and contract assets as
low, as its customenrs are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets, :

Ftnanctal assets that are not credit impaired

The Group has financial assets which are in the nature of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balanees, loans, security deposits, interest acerued on fixed deposits and other receivables which are
not credit impaired. These are contractually agreed where the probability of default is negligible,

Financial assets that are credit impaired

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the type of each customer, Since, the receivebles from Govemnment entities are sovereign in nature and default rate will be remote, they
are excluded from expected credit loss. In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics, inclnding whether they are into defense secter or non
defense sector, industry, trading history with the Group end existence of previous financial difficulties.

The Group's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables by the type of counterparty is as follows:

Carrying amount 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Defence sector 5,210.94 3,913.30
Non defence sector 1,748.54 1,680,50
Related parties 283714 21.48
7,243.22 5,615,28

The Group has calculated the impaimment loss arising on account of past trends in the default rate for time bucket.

When determining whether the eredit tisk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group's historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward looking information. ’

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e, the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the centract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

Out of the total trade receivebles of Rs. 7,243.22 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 5,615.28 laihs) , the exposure considered for expected credit loss is Rs. 2,032:28 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 1,701,983
lakhs). The balance which is not considered for impairment pertains to defence customers where default in collection as a percentage to total receivable is low,

The following table provides infermation about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables:

Gross carrying Weighted average loss Loss
amount rate allowance
31 March 2024
Current (not past due) [,254.21 0.23% 282
0-90 days 703.26 0.40% 2.83
91-180 days 4222 62.17% 26.24
181-270 days 4.70 11.10% 0.52
271-365 days ] 1.54 34.49% 0.53
> 363 days 26.35 100.60% 26.35
2,032.28 59.29
Gross carrying Weighted average loss Loss
amount rate allowance
31 March 2023
Current (not past due) 1,082.61 0.01% 0.12
0-90 days 321.36 6.90% .17
91-180 days 204.72 0.23% 047
181-270 days B : 16.55 0.96% 0.16
271-365 days - 0.00% -
> 365 days 55.26 99.98% 55,25
1,680.50 78.17
Movement in the allowance for impairment in trade recejvables ] 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 78.17 77,17
Ameount provided for ’ 21,52 25.43
Amount reversal for (21.95) {9.64)
Amount utilised for ) (18.45) (14.79)
Net remeasuremnent of loss allowance 59.29 78.17
Liquidity risk ’

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Graup will enrcounter difficulty in meeting the cbligations assaciated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The
Group's approach te managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meat its liabilitics when they are dize, under both nonmal and swessed co}dh{:?ﬁ‘l&o

i peptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation. / O\’

%4

that the working capital is sufficient to mest its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived.
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44 Financial instruments - fair values and risk management (continued)
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabitities based on contractual undiscounted payment ay year end:
| As at 31 March 2024

Particalars
Less than 3 months 3 months - 1 ysar 1-5 years 5 yeats and above
_ Derivative financial liabilities [

Other financial liabilities (Option premium on fafr valuation of derivatives) 1 - - - -
Noxn-derivative finaneial linbilities
Lease lisbilities 124,98 369.23 1,187.96 41.14
Trade payables 1,988.08 - - -
Other financial liabilities 804.90 - - L -

2,917.96 369.23 1,187.96 41,14
Total financial liabilities 2,917,96 369.23 l._181.96 41
Particulars As at 31 March 2023

Less than 3 months 3 ths - 1 vear 1-5 years 5 years and abave
Derivative financial liabilities )
Qther financial liabilities (Option premium on fair valuation of derivatives) : - - 565.18 -
- - - 565.18 -

Non-derivative financial Liabilities
Lease lizhilities 104,29 216.88 149.26 111.74
Trede payables 2,449.82 - - -
Other financial liabilities 1,146.34 - - | -

3,700.45 216.83 149.26 111,74
Total financial liabilities 3,700.45 216.88 714.44 111.74
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that chanpes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to
2]l market risk sensitive financial instruments incleding foreign currency receivebles znd payables. The Group is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk. Thus, the
expasure to market risk is 3 function of investing and bomrowing activities and revenis generating and operating activities in foreign currency. The objective of market risk management is to avoid
excessive exposure in our foreign currency revenues and costs.

Exposure to currency risk

The summary quanitative data about the Group's exposure to currency risk as reported to the management is as follows,

31 March 2024

Particulars

USD expoture EURO exposare GBP exposure
Trade and other payables 1,001.37 - 1.69
Trade and other receivables 980.02 214.34 283.74
Net exposure iz respect of recognised assets and liahilities 21.35 (214.34) (282.05)
Particulars 31 March 2023

USD expaosure EURO exposure GEP exposure
Trede and other payables 1,326.72 22.70 0.50
Trade and other receivables 1,209.00 34.70 -
Net exposure in respect of recognised nssets and ligbilities 117.72 (12.00) . 0.50

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the US Dollar, Ewo or GBP apainst all other currencies as at 31 March would have affected the measurement of financial instruments
denominated in a foreign cumency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other vasiables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and
ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
31 March 2024 Strengthening Weakening Strenpthening Weakening
USD (for 19 movement) 0.21 ©21) 0.16 (0.16)
EURO (for 1% movement) (2.14) 2.14 (1.60) 1.60
GBP (for 1% movement) (2.82) 2.82 (2.11) 211
{4.74) 4,74 (3.55) 3.55
Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
31 March 2023 Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
USD (for 1% movement) 118 (1.18) 0.88 (0.88)
EURO (for 1% movement) (0.12) 0.12 (0.09) 0,09
GBP (for 1% movement) 0.01 (0.01) 0.00 (0.00)
1.07 {1.07) 0.79 (0.79)
Price risk

The Group invests in rautual funds schemes of leading fund houses. Such investments are suspectible to market price risks. However, given the shest tenure of the undedying portfolio of the mutual fund
sheemes in which the Group has invested, such price risk is not significant,

Interest rate risk .

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group's financial instruments will fluctunte because of changes in masket interest rates. The Group does not have any long, term
debt obligations with floating interest rates, hence, is not exposed to any significant interest rate risk.

45 Ratio Analysis and its elements
The ratios have not been disclosed in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements pursuant to the guidance under the Revised Guidance Note on Division If - Ind AS Schedule 1II to the Companies Act,
2013 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {"ICAT™).

This space has been intentionally left blank.
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46 Other statutory information
(i) The Group do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder,

(i) The Group do not have any transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,

(iif) The Group do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

{iv) The Group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year,

(v) The Group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{vi) The Group have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{ics), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Group shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vii) None of the entities in the Group have not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or govermment or any government authority.

(viii) The Group does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

»

47 The Holding Company, subsidiary and associate which are companies incorporated in India and whose financial statements have been audited under the Companies Act, 2013 have
complied with the requirements of audit trail except for the following:

i) The Holding Company and subsidiary company has migrated fo an upgraded version of accounting software from legacy accounting software during the year effective from 19 June
2023. The audit trail feature in respect of the legacy accounting software is not enabled, The upgraded accounting software used for maintaining its books of account has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, there is no instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with in respect of upgraded accounting software,

if) The audit trail feature is not enabled for accounting software used for inventory management in respect to Holding Company.
48 Events after the reporting period
There are no events or transactions which have occured since the balance sheet date which would have a material effect and require adjustments in the consolidated financial statement

49 Standards notified but sot yet effective
There are 1o standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date.

As per our report of even date

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Direclors of
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